Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Improving People’s Lives

Corporate Audit Committee

Date: Wednesday, 25th September, 2024

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: Community Space, Keynsham - Market Walk,
Keynsham

Agenda
To: All Members of the Corporate Audit Committee

Councillors: David Biddleston (Chair), George Leach, Malcolm Treby, Sam Ross (Vice-Chair)
and Toby Simon

Independent Member: John Barker
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers

Press and Public

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Enfys Hughes
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG

Telephone: 01225 39 4435
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




NOTES:

1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’'s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Guildhall - Bath.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control. Some of our meetings
are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to
be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please make yourself known to
the camera operators. We request that those filming/recording meetings avoid filming public
seating areas, children, vulnerable people etc; however, the Council cannot guarantee this will
happen.

The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group.

Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This
means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be received in Democratic
Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday.

Further details of the scheme can be found at:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted.
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings
Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505



https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

10.
11.

Corporate Audit Committee-Wednesday, 25th September, 2024
at 5.30 pm in the Community Space, Keynsham - Market Walk, Keynsham

AGENDA

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under
Note 7.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 4.4 Appendix B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for
Registration of Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
The Chair will announce any items of urgent business.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR
QUESTIONS

ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS

To deal with any petitions, statements or questions from Councillors and, where
appropriate, co-opted and added Members.

MINUTES - 1ST MAY 2024 (Pages 7 - 12)

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 2024 (Pages 13 - 34)
ANNUAL REPORT - APRIL 2023 - MAY 2024 (Pages 35 - 60)
EXTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE (Pages 61 - 126)

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT TO 31ST MARCH 2024
(Pages 127 - 150)



12.  INTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE REPORT (PLANNED WORK 2024/25) (Pages 151 -
160)

13. RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT - CORPORATE RISK (Pages 161 - 172)
14. DRAFT WORKPLAN 2024 - 2025 (Pages 173 - 178)

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Enfys Hughes who can be contacted on
01225 394410.



Agenda Item 7

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

CORPORATE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held
Wednesday, 1st May, 2024, 4.00 pm

Councillors: David Biddleston (Chair), George Leach, Malcolm Treby, Sam Ross and
Toby Simon

Independent Member: John Barker

Officers in attendance: Enfys Hughes (Democratic Services Officer), Jeff Wring (Director
of One West & Avon Pension Fund), Andy Rothery (Chief Finance Officer (S151)), Gary
Adams (Head of Financial Management) and Andy Cox (Head of Audit and Assurance
(One West))

Guests in attendance: Beth Bowers (Grant Thornton (External Auditors)), George Amos
and David A Johnson

1

APPOINT A VICE-CHAIR

RESOLVED that Councillor Sam Ross be Vice-Chair of the Corporate Audit
Committee.

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer drew attention to the emergency evacuation
procedure as set out on the agenda.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies were received from Councillor Lucy Hodge, Councillor Toby Simon was
her substitute.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Toby Simon declared that he was a member of the Pensions Committee.
There were no other declarations of interest.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
There was none.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR
QUESTIONS

There were no items.
ITEMS FROM COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED AND ADDED MEMBERS
There were no items.

MINUTES - WEDNESDAY 7TH FEBRUARY 2024

Page 1
Page 5



RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 7t February 2024 be confirmed
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN - B&NES COUNCIL AND AVON PENSION FUND

Colleagues from Grant Thornton were at the meeting to present the External Audit
Plan. Beth Bowers introduced David Johnson who was the Audit Manager for the
Council and George Amos who was the Audit Manager for the Pension Fund.

David Johnson gave an overview of the plan for the Council briefly highlighting the
ongoing auditing delays for local authorities. He went on to outline the significant
risk areas and stated that they had determined materiality for the Council at £7.7m
for the Council and £7.8m for the group. They liaised with Aequus to form their
opinion. In respect of significant weaknesses they would have a planning meeting
and there would be a progress report to the next meeting. It was envisaged that the
sign off would be at the September or November Committee. He highlighted the
increase in fees due to the new PSAA (Public Sector Audit Appointments) contract
and IFRS 16 leases which resulted in a large amount of work and preparation. He
referred to the escalation policy which included steps to ensure that there were no
delays with sign-off in the future so that the audit was delivered in the time frame.

Beth Bowers reminded members of her previous disclosure of a close family
member being part of the Pension Fund.

The following questions were answered:

e Noting the increase in fees, over the last 15 years the costs of audits had not
increased in line with inflation and the PSAA contract would redress the
balance and support Grant Thornton in catching up with the backlog;

e page 23 the management override of controls, this was a mandated risk
(Councillor Toby Simon);

e there would be a meeting with the Chair of the Corporate Audit Committee in
September after the main audit work was under way in June — July;

¢ the terms rebuttable and non-rebuttable were explained and it was noted that
there were different forms of revenue in the public sector and revenue was not
the main driver (Councillor David Biddleston);

e Grant Thornton delved into the details and explained examples of high-risk
items. With the Roman Baths the risk and materiality were analysed and only
high-risk items were reported on (Councillor Toby Simon);

e significant risks were often similar year-on-year (Councillor David Biddleston);

e reference was made to IT audit and regard to the Horizon Post Office scandal.
There was a Grant Thornton team of IT experts who did detailed work on
systems on a risk-based frequency, plus testing year-year but if there was a
new Council system then further work would be done as it could be seen as a
significant risk (John Barker);

e a glossary of terms might be useful for new members, however, it was difficult
to know what some people didn’t know (Councillor David Biddleston);

e with changes to the structure or functionality it would be useful to have more
networking between members (John Barker);

Page 2 of 6
Page 6



10

e the suggestion was made that all members be invited to the Chair’s briefing
before a Committee (Councillor Malcolm Treby) and this would be trialled.

George Amos presented the audit plan for the Pension Fund and stated that
materiality was £62.9m. The revenue and expenditure risks were rebutted and there
was work on the journals and level 3 investments. In the IT audit there was work on
Altair which was specific to the Pension Fund. Other systems were common to both
the Council and the Pension Fund. Both audits were running at the same time and
were envisaged to be considered at the September Committee.

The following questions were answered:

e Altair was a Pensions specific system supplied by Heyward;

e there was a focus on work where materiality was mis-stated and the External
Auditors had been made aware of the financial value near the materiality
threshold (Councillor Toby Simon).

On a motion from Councillor Malcolm Treby, seconded by Councillor Toby Simon it
was

RESOLVED

1) That the 2023/23 External Audit Plan for the Council (Appendix 1) and
External Audit Plan for the Avon Pension Fund (Appendix 2) be endorsed;
and

2) that all members of the Committee be invited to the virtual Chair's briefing
before a Committee.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2023/2024 & LOCAL CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Head of Audit and Assurance One West (Finance) presented the report which
enabled the Committee to fulfil its responsibilities associated with the Council’s
Annual Governance Statement 2023/24 and sought endorsement of the revised
Local Code of Corporate Governance which would be an attachment to the Annual
Report to Council.

During questions the following matters arose:

e The process to decide on whether an issue was deemed ‘significant’ for
inclusion in the Statement was explained - Senior Officers used their
professional judgement in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, Section
151 Officer and members of Executive Leadership Team. (Councillor Malcolm
Treby);

e in determining the necessary interventions it was confirmed that the correct
Risk Management Strategy was referred to in the report (John Barker);

e the DSG (Direct Schools Grant) and the related safety valve agreement was
included in the statement and was subject to scrutiny (Councillor Toby
Simon).

Page 3 of 6
Page 7



11

On a motion from Councillor Sam Ross, seconded by Councillor Malcolm Treby it
was

RESOLVED

1) That the report on the process to produce the Annual Governance Statement
2023/24 be noted; and

2) the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance (2024) for adoption by the
Council, be endorsed.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE CHIEF AUDIT EXECUTIVE 2023/24

The Head of Audit and Assurance presented the report which was a requirement
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards to provide an annual audit opinion.
Updates on delivery of the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan had been received by the
Committee in November 2023 and February 2024. There had been 26 planned audit
reviews carried out plus 2 unplanned reviews - cash handling at two Community
Resource Centres and a review of Public Health Service Budget Management.
Other work that informs the ‘opinion’ is the ‘follow-up’ of previous audit
recommendations. During the year, 23 Audit Reports were ‘followed-up’ and it was
identified all the recommendations for 13 reports had been implemented. Focussing
specifically on 4 Audit Reports assigned a Level 2 rating (‘Limited Assurance’), it was
reported management were implementing the recommendations, but capacity issues
had resulted in delays.

In respect of IT audit reviews recorded in the report, there were two on cyber security
and implementation of recommendations was linked to the Azure migration. Work
was ongoing on the migration. It was highlighted that staff had just received a
reminder to complete the Cyber Security E-learning course.

The following issues were raised during questions:

e The reference in the report to North Somerset Council should in fact be Bath
and North East Somerset Council;

e audit of maintained schools — it was explained that there were 7 schools and
these schools were required to complete the Schools Financial Value
Standards annual return as required by the Department of Education
(Councillor Toby Simon);

e continuing issue of Internal Audit Team capacity and resourcing - it was
reported that adverts were about to go out to recruit an Auditor and Senior
Auditor. (Councillor Malcolm Treby).

On a motion from Councillor Sam Ross, seconded by Councillor George Leach it
was

RESOLVED

1) To support the conclusion that the Council’'s system of internal control was
effective; and

Page 4 of 6
Page 8



12

13

2) to confirm that the opinion of the Chief Audit Executive, based on his
assessment of effectiveness, could be relied upon as a key source of
evidence in the Annual Governance Statement 2023/24.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN -2024/2025

The Head of Audit and Assurance presented the report and stated that the
Committee had been consulted at the last meeting on areas to be included in the
Plan and the response highlighted Climate and Ecological Emergency Response —
Performance and funding to the Third Sector. These areas have been included in
the Plan for approval. He highlighted the long list of audit reviews being the core
activity of the team and that the Plan also recorded other areas of work including —
fraud prevention and detection, corporate governance annual review, and
independent certification of grant funding including WECA grants.

In response to comments on monitoring Climate Emergency it was highlighted that
members could attend the Climate Emergency and Sustainability Policy
Development and Scrutiny Panel if they wished. The Director of One West
explained that it was important to separate internal audit and risk management,
issues were considered by this Committee and some by the scrutiny panel. Officers
worked hand in hand with scrutiny.

Management of the Heritage Collection/Exhibits was noted as below the line of
available capacity and this was questioned (Toby Simon). The Head of Audit and
Assurance explained that he was aware of the service seeking accreditation for their
management of collections and so if accreditation was achieved this would provide
external assurance about systems and processes.

On a motion from Councillor Toby Simon, seconded by Councillor Sam Ross it was
RESOLVED to approve the Internal Audit Plan 2024/25 (Appendix 1).
RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT - FRAUD RISK

The Director One West presented the report and explained that moving forward the
Committee would be looking at the Corporate Risk Register every other meeting. He
introduced one of the Senior Auditors who gave a powerpoint presentation on fraud
risk. The presentation would be circulated to members of the Committee.

After the presentation following questions, the issues below were raised:

e The increase in data matches for the prevention and detection of fraud, could
be a result of improved data matching and possibly an increase in fraudulent
activity;

e The investigation of any potential fraudulent activity would be co-ordinated by
the internal audit team and assisted by officers from other services;

e It’s likely that the cost of living crisis and the pandemic had led to an increase
in fraud activity.

RESOLVED to note the report/presentation and the Council’s approach to managing
Fraud Risk.

Page 5 of 6
Page 9



14  AUDIT COMMITTEE - DRAFT WORKPLAN
The Director One West presented the workplan for the next 4 meetings.
RESOLVED
1) To note the workplan; and

2) to note that the September 25" meeting would be in the Community Space in
Keynsham, with a later start time of 5.30pm.

The meeting ended at 6.05 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 6 of 6
Page 10



Agenda Iltem 8

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: Corporate Audit Committee

MEETING 25" September 2024 AGENDA
DATE: ITEM
NUMBER

TITLE: Corporate Audit Committee — Review of Effectiveness 2024
WARD: ALL
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — CIPFA Position Statement 2022

Appendix 2 — Completed self-assessment of good practice
Appendix 3 — B&NES 2024 Action Plan

Appendix 4 - Revised Terms of Reference 2024

1 THE ISSUE

1.1 This report updates the Corporate Audit Committee on best practice
requirements as set out in the CIPFA Position Statement 2022 to carry out a self-
assessment and evaluation of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee.

1.2 The assessment process and the results need to be considered by the
Committee and an action plan agreed to implement any improvements required
based on the assessment completed.

1.3 The action plan resulting from the assessment process will include the need for
the Chair of the Committee to report on the self-assessment exercise to Council.

2 RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.1 The Corporate Audit Committee is asked to:

¢ Note the process followed to carry out the self-assessment and evaluation of
the effectiveness of the Audit Committee.

¢ Comment on the findings, conclusions and recommended actions of the self-
assessment.

Page 11



3 THE REPORT
Background / Issues for Consideration

3.1 As part of best practice and to support good governance the Audit Committee
should carry out a self-assessment review of its effectiveness on a periodic
basis.

3.2 An audit committee’s effectiveness should be judged by the contribution it makes
to and the beneficial impact it has on the authority’s business. Since it is primarily
an advisory body, it can be more difficult to identify how the audit committee has
made a difference. Evidence of effectiveness will usually be characterised as
‘influence’, ‘persuasion’ and ‘support’.

Figure 1: The influential audit committee

GOOD
GOVERNANCE
AND DECISION
MAKING

EFFECTIVE RISK

EFFECTIVE
INTERNAL
CONTROLS

MANAGEMENT

EFFECTIVE THE INFLUENTIAL
IMPROVING
AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE VALUE
ASSURANCE SUPPORTS: FOR MONEY

EMBEDDING
ETHICAL ACHIEVEMENT

VALUES AND OF

COUNTERING  /j\pROVING PUBLIC et

FRAUD REPORTING,
TRANSPARENCY
AND

ACCOUNTABILITY

3.3 The CIPFA Position Statement Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police
2022 sets out the purpose, model, core functions and membership of the audit
committee, and it represents CIPFA’s view on audit committee practice and
principles that local government bodies in the UK should adopt (see Appendix 1).

3.4 During June 2024 the Head of Audit & Assurance met the Chair and Deputy
Chair of the Corporate Audit Committee to consider a completed self-
assessment (see Appendix 2) and draft action plan (see Appendix 3).

Page 12



3.5 The draft action plan refers specifically to making minor amendments to the
Committee’s Terms of Reference (ToR). A revised version to fully comply with
best practice is attached (See Appendix 4). The proposed amendments are
highlighted in red text. The Head of Audit and Assurance has been advised that
if the Committee request amendments to the ToR then it can be taken to Council
in November, when the Constitution Working Group will be requesting Council
approval to other parts of the Constitution based on its work.

3.6 Itis proposed that the Committee’s Annual Report to Council in November
records that a review of the effectiveness of the Committee has been carried out
in compliance with CIPFA guidance and that actions have been taken or are
planned for implementation.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 There are no specific statutory considerations related to this report.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 There are no direct resource implications relevant to this report.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 An ineffective Committee would mean that the organisation would not be
provided with the required high-level independent assurance that the Council’s
governance, risk and control framework was robust and effective.

7 EQUALITIES

7.1 An equalities impact assessment has been considered using corporate
guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

8 CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 There are no direct climate change implications related to this report.

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 No other options to consider related to this report.

Page 13



10 CONSULTATION

10.1 The Council's Section 151 Officer has had the opportunity to input to this report
and has cleared it for publication.

Contact person Andy Cox, Head of Audit & Assurance (01225 477316)

Background
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Page 14



The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accountancy Appendix 1

cipfa.org

CIPFA\

CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities
and Police 2022

Scope

This position statement includes all principal local authorities in the UK, corporate joint committees
in Wales, the audit committees for PCCs and chief constables in England and Wales, PCCFRAs
and the audit committees of fire and rescue authorities in England and Wales.

The statement sets out the purpose, model, core functions and membership of the audit
committee. Where specific legislation exists (the Local Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021
and the Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016), it should supplement the requirements
of that legislation.

Status of the position statement

The statement represents CIPFA’s view on the audit committee practice and principles that local
government bodies in the UK should adopt. It has been prepared in consultation with sector
representatives.

CIPFA expects that all local government bodies should make their best efforts to adopt the
principles, aiming for effective audit committee arrangements. This will enable those bodies to
meet their statutory responsibilities for governance and internal control arrangements, financial
management, financial reporting and internal audit.

The 2022 edition of the position statement replaces the 2018 edition.

The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities and the Home Office support
this guidance.

Page 15

CIPFA, registered with the Charity Commissioners of England and Wales No. 231060 and the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator No.SCO37963.
CIPFA Business Limited, the trading arm of CIPFA, registered in England and Wales no.2376684. Registered Office 77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN.



CIPFA’s Position Statement 2022: Audit committees in local
authorities and police

Purpose of the audit committee

Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. Their purpose is
to provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and control
arrangements. The committee’s role in ensuring that there is sufficient assurance over governance
risk and control gives greater confidence to all those charged with governance that those
arrangements are effective.

In a local authority the full council is the body charged with governance. The audit committee may
be delegated some governance responsibilities but will be accountable to full council. In policing,
the police and crime commissioner (PCC) and chief constable are both corporations sole, and thus
are the individuals charged with governance.

The committee has oversight of both internal and external audit together with the financial and
governance reports, helping to ensure that there are adequate arrangements in place for both
internal challenge and public accountability.

Independent and effective model

The audit committee should be established so that it is independent of executive decision making
and able to provide objective oversight. It is an advisory committee that has sufficient importance in
the authority so that its recommendations and opinions carry weight and have influence with the
leadership team and those charged with governance.

The committee should:
e be directly accountable to the authority’s governing body or the PCC and chief constable
e inlocal authorities, be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny functions

¢ in police bodies, be independent of the executive or operational responsibilities of the PCC
or chief constable

e have rights of access to and constructive engagement with other committees/functions, for
example scrutiny and service committees, corporate risk management boards and other
strategic groups

e have rights to request reports and seek assurances from relevant officers

e be of an appropriate size to operate as a cadre of experienced, trained committee
members. Large committees should be avoided.

The audit committees of the PCC and chief constable should follow the requirements set out in the

Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice and be made up of co-opted independent
members.

Page 16



The audit committees of local authorities should include co-opted independent members in
accordance with the appropriate legislation.

Where there is no legislative direction to include co-opted independent members, CIPFA
recommends that each authority audit committee should include at least two co-opted independent
members to provide appropriate technical expertise.

Core functions

The core functions of the audit committee are to provide oversight of a range of core governance
and accountability arrangements, responses to the recommendations of assurance providers and
helping to ensure robust arrangements are maintained.

The specific responsibilities include:

Maintenance of governance, risk and control arrangements
e Support a comprehensive understanding of governance across the organisation and among
all those charged with governance, fulfilling the principles of good governance.

e Consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements. It should
understand the risk profile of the organisation and seek assurances that active
arrangements are in place on risk-related issues, for both the body and its collaborative
arrangements.

e Monitor the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including arrangements for

financial management, ensuring value for money, supporting standards and ethics and
managing the authority’s exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption.

Financial and governance reporting
e Be satisfied that the authority’s accountability statements, including the annual governance
statement, properly reflect the risk environment, and any actions required to improve it, and
demonstrate how governance supports the achievement of the authority’s objectives.

e Support the maintenance of effective arrangements for financial reporting and review the
statutory statements of account and any reports that accompany them.

Establishing appropriate and effective arrangements for audit and assurance
e Consider the arrangements in place to secure adequate assurance across the body’s full
range of operations and collaborations with other entities.
e In relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:

o oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and conformance to
professional standards

o support effective arrangements for internal audit

o promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework.

Page 17



Consider the opinion, reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection
agencies and their implications for governance, risk management or control, and monitor
management action in response to the issues raised by external audit.

Contribute to the operation of efficient and effective external audit arrangements,
supporting the independence of auditors and promoting audit quality.

Support effective relationships between all providers of assurance, audits and inspections,
and the organisation, encouraging openness to challenge, review and accountability.

Audit committee membership

To provide the level of expertise and understanding required of the committee, and to have an
appropriate level of influence within the authority, the members of the committee will need to be of
high calibre. When selecting elected representatives to be on the committee or when co-opting
independent members, aptitude should be considered alongside relevant knowledge, skills and
experience.

Characteristics of audit committee membership:

A membership that is trained to fulfil their role so that members are objective, have an
inquiring and independent approach, and are knowledgeable.

A membership that promotes good governance principles, identifying ways that better
governance arrangement can help achieve the organisation’s objectives.

A strong, independently minded chair, displaying a depth of knowledge, skills, and interest.
There are many personal skills needed to be an effective chair, but key to these are:

o promoting apolitical open discussion

o managing meetings to cover all business and encouraging a candid approach from
all participants

o maintaining the focus of the committee on matters of greatest priority.
Willingness to operate in an apolitical manner.
Unbiased attitudes — treating auditors, the executive and management fairly.
The ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when required.

Knowledge, expertise and interest in the work of the committee.

While expertise in the areas within the remit of the committee is very helpful, the attitude of
committee members and willingness to have appropriate training are of equal importance.

The appointment of co-opted independent members on the committee should consider the overall
knowledge and expertise of the existing members.

Page 18



Engagement and outputs
The audit committee should be established and supported to enable it to address the full range of
responsibilities within its terms of reference and to generate planned outputs.

To discharge its responsibilities effectively, the committee should:

e meet regularly, at least four times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to be
considered in private and those to be considered in public

e be able to meet privately and separately with the external auditor and with the head of
internal audit

e include, as regular attendees, the chief finance officer(s), the chief executive, the head of
internal audit and the appointed external auditor; other attendees may include the
monitoring officer and the head of resources (where such a post exists). These officers
should also be able to access the committee members, or the chair, as required

e have the right to call on any other officers or agencies of the authority as required; police
audit committees should recognise the independence of the chief constable in relation to
operational policing matters

e support transparency, reporting regularly on its work to those charged with governance
e report annually on how the committee has complied with the position statement, discharged

its responsibilities, and include an assessment of its performance. The report should be
available to the public.

Impact

As a non-executive body, the influence of the audit committee depends not only on the effective
performance of its role, but also on its engagement with the leadership team and those charged
with governance.

The committee should evaluate its impact and identify areas for improvement.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



APPENDIX E
Self-assessment of
ocood practice

This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in

CIPFA’s Position Statement and this publication. Where an audit committee has a high degree
of performance against the good practice principles, it is an indicator that the committee is
soundly based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in
developing an effective audit committee.

A regular self-assessment should be used to support the planning of the audit committee work
programme and training plans. It will also inform the annual report.

Good practice questions Does not Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed* complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5
Audit committee purpose and governance

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit /
committee that is not combined with other
functions (eg standards, ethics, scrutiny)?

2 Does the audit committee report directly to the J
governing body (PCC and chief constable/full
council/full fire authority, etc)?

3 Has the committee maintained its advisory role /
by not taking on any decision-making powers?

4 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the J
purpose of the committee in accordance with
CIPFA’'s 2022 Position Statement?

5 Do all those charged with governance and in J
leadership roles have a good understanding of
the role and purpose of the committee?

6 Does the audit committee escalate issues and ‘/
concerns promptly to those in governance and
leadership roles?

7 Does the governing body hold the audit /
committee to account for its performance at
least annually?

* Where the committee does not fully comply with an element, three options are available to allow distinctions between
aspects that require significant improvement orp&@@ giy requiring minor changes.

1



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE

Good practice questions Does not Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5

8 Does the committee publish an annual report in
accordance with the 2022 guidance, including:

e compliance with the CIPFA Position J
Statement 2022

e results of the annual evaluation, J
development work undertaken and planned
improvements

e how it has fulfilled its terms of reference /

and the key issues escalated in the year?
Functions of the committee

9 Do the committee's terms of reference explicitly
address all the core areas identified in CIPFA’s
Position Statement as follows?

Governance arrangements J
Risk management arrangements J
Internal control arrangements, including: /

e financial management
e value for money
e ethics and standards

e counter fraud and corruption

Annual governance statement

Financial reporting

Assurance framework

Internal audit

External audit

10 Over the last year, has adequate consideration
been given to all core areas?

NN NN NN

11 Over the last year, has the committee only /
considered agenda items that align with its
core functions or selected wider functions, as
set out in the 2022 guidance?

12 Has the committee met privately with the /
external auditors and head of internal audit in
the last year?

Page 22



APPENDIX E \ SELF-ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE

Good practice questions Does not  Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5

Membership and support

13 Has the committee been established in
accordance with the 2022 guidance as
follows?

e Separation from executive

B

e A sjze thatis not unwieldy and avoids use
of substitutes

e Inclusion of lay/co-opted independent /
members in accordance with legislation or
CIPFA’'s recommendation

14 Have all committee members been appointed J
or selected to ensure a committee membership
that is knowledgeable and skilled?

15 Has an evaluation of knowledge, skills and /
the training needs of the chair and committee
members been carried out within the last two
years?

16 Have regular training and support J
arrangements been put in place covering the
areas set out in the 2022 guidance?

17 Across the committee membership, is there a /
satisfactory level of knowledge, as set out in
the 2022 guidance?

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative
support provided to the committee?

|

19 Does the committee have good working
relations with key people and organisations,
including external audit, internal audit and
the CFO?

|

Effectiveness of the committee

20 Has the committee obtained positive feedback J
on its performance from those interacting with
the committee or relying on its work?

21 Are meetings well chaired, ensuring key /
agenda items are addressed with a focus on
improvement?

22 Are meetings effective with a good level /
of discussion and engagement from all the
members?

23 Has the committee maintained a non-political /
approach to discussions throughout?

Page 23
3



AUDIT COMMITTEES \ PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE

Good practice questions Does not Partially complies and extent of Fully

comply improvement needed complies

Major Significant Moderate Minor No further
improvement improvement improvement improvement improvement

Weighting of answers 0 1 2 3 5

24 Does the committee engage with a wide range /
of leaders and managers, including discussion
of audit findings, risks and action plans with
the responsible officers?

25 Does the committee make recommendations J
for the improvement of governance, risk and
control arrangements?

26 Do audit committee recommendations have /
traction with those in leadership roles?

27 Has the committee evaluated whether and
how it is adding value to the organisation?

~

28 Does the committee have an action plan to
improve any areas of weakness?

~

29 Has this assessment been undertaken /
collaboratively with the audit
committee members?

Subtotal score

Total score 153
Maximum possible score 200**
*x 40 questions/sub-questions multiplied by five. Page 24

4



Appendix 3

B&NES Council Corporate Audit Committee — Annual Review of Effectiveness — June 2024

High Level Action Plan

Area of Improvement

CIPFA
Self-Assessment
Question Reference

Action(s) Required

1) Terms of Reference -

The Committee’s TOR to be considered in
relation to:

1) CIPFA Guidance that Committee -
Monitor the effectiveness of the
system of internal control, including
arrangements for financial
management, ensuring value for
money, supporting standards and
ethics and managing the authority’s
exposure to the risks of fraud and
corruption.

2) CIPFA Guidance that Committee -
Consider the opinion, reports and
recommendations of external audit
and inspection agencies and their
implications for governance, risk
management or control,....

3) CIPFA Guidance that Committee -
Support effective relationships
between all providers of assurance,
audits and inspections, and the
organisation, encouraging openness to
challenge, review and accountability.

4) CIPFA Guidance that Committee -be
able to meet privately and separately
with the external auditor and with the
head of internal audit

5) CIPFA Guidance that Committee - have
the right to call on any other officers or
agencies of the authority as required

CIPFA Area —

Audit Committee Purpose &
Governance

Question(s)
4

Summary -

WORK IN PROGRESS

1) Propose a revised TOR
for consultation with
Audit Committee
Members — consult with
Chair and Vice Chair of
the Committee.

2) Submit revised TOR to
25 September 2024
meeting of Audit
Committee within a
report explaining the self-
assessment review based
on the CIPFA Position
Statement 2022.

3) Revised TOR to be
agreed by Full Council in
November 2024. A Report
to Full Council on the
Constitution is due to be
tabled at the November
meeting based on the
work of the Constitution
Working Group.

Target Date for
Completion — 1) August
2024, 2) 25t September
2024, 3) November 2024

2) Understanding of role and purpose of
Audit Committee — Members and Senior
Officers

Could be included in the Annual Governance

Review to obtain evidence that those charged

with governance and in leadership roles have a

good understanding.

Understanding of Role of
Corporate Audit Committee

Question(s)
5

WORK IN PROGRESS

1) Include as an Annual
Governance Review
question(s) to Council
Officers.

2) Annual Report of the
Committee to Full

Page 25




Appendix 3

B&NES Council Corporate Audit Committee — Annual Review of Effectiveness — June 2024

High Level Action Plan

Council to provide an
explanation of the
TOR of the Audit
Committee.

Target Date for
Completion — 1) Summer
2024, 2) November 2024

3) Annual Committee Report in Compliance
with CIPFA Position Statement 2022 -
Need to carry out a Review of Effectiveness to
be able to conclude on each component of the
CIPFA Position Statement and compile a
Committee Annual Report for 2023/24.

Corporate Audit Committee
Annual Report

Question(s)
8

COMPLETED
1 Carry out review of
Effectiveness and compile
a Committee Annual
Report 2023/24.
2 Consult with Chair &
Vice Chair of the
Committee,
3 Report to Committee
4 Report to Council.
Target Date for
Completion -

1) Summer 2024

2) June 2024

3) September 2024

4) November 2024

4) Risk Management Arrangements

Need to report to the Committee on the
Council’s RM arrangements and specifically
report on changes in Corporate Risks linked to
the delivery of the Corporate Strategy.

Functions of the Committee

Question(s)
9

COMPLETED

Report to Audit
Committee to provide a
RM Update on RM
Framework, Corporate
Risk Register, RM
Guidance for Decision
Making

Standard Item on the
agenda

5) Wider Functions outside of Core Functions
as set out in 2022 CIPFA Position
Statement guidance.

Treasury Management Strategy and Outturn is

outside of core functions but was added as the

historic CIPFA Treasury Management guidance
recommended - Treasury Management

Strategy and performance should receive

independent scrutiny from Audit Committee.

The need for TM Strategy scrutiny has proved

Functions of the Committee

Question(s)
11

COMPLETED

Proposal of S151
Officer to request
that Council delegate
to the Audit
Committee approval
of the TM Strategy.
This aligns with the
current responsibility

Page 26




Appendix 3

B&NES Council Corporate Audit Committee — Annual Review of Effectiveness — June 2024

High Level Action Plan

to be more important since Councils have
taken wider investment choices and more risk.
TM Strategy and performance is currently
reported to Cabinet, Audit Committee and
Council and this needs to be reviewed.

for the Committee to
approve the
Accounts.

1. Any changes of CAC

role / responsibilities
to be reported to
Committee and
Council through the
Annual Report of the
Committee.

Target Date as per TOR
section

6) Private Meeting of Committee with
External Auditors and CAE
Currently ‘private’ meetings of the Committee
with External / Internal Audit are not held.
Both Internal Audit and External Audit report
to the Committee.
Committee Members are easily able to contact
the Chief Internal Audit Executive and the
Engagement Manager of the External Auditors.
The accessibility of Chief Internal Audit
Executive and the Engagement Manager of the
External Auditors and how to contact them
could be made clear in communications to
Audit Committee Members.

The Director of One West provides Pre-
Meeting Briefings to the Chair and
Independent Co-opted Member, but this isn’t a
‘private’ meeting with the Chief Internal Audit
Executive and the Engagement Manager of the
External Auditors.

Functions of the Committee

Question(s)
12

COMPLETED

1. The offeris made

every year that the
Chair of the
Committee Members
is able to contact the
Chief Internal Audit
Executive and the
Engagement Manager
of the External
Auditors, and how to
contact them if they
have any queries
related to their role as
a Committee
Member.

7) Co-opted Independent Membership
CIPFA recommends that Local Authority Audit
Committees include at least 2 co-opted
independent members to provide technical
expertise.

B&NES Council Audit Committee has operated
with one co-opted independent member, and
this is currently viewed as sufficient to provide
expert input.

This is a paid position and there have not been
any problems with attendance.

Membership & Support

Question(s)
13

WORK IN PROGRESS

Review existing
independent member
numbers and
consider benefit of
recruiting 2 new
independent co-
opted members

Page 27




Appendix 3

B&NES Council Corporate Audit Committee — Annual Review of Effectiveness — June 2024

High Level Action Plan

The independent member has been in post
since 2006 and brings a wealth of experience.

Target Date for
Completion — Autumn
2024

8) Membership — selection of Members and
evaluation of knowledge, skills and
training needs of the Chair & Committee
been carried out in last two years.

The elections in May 2023 resulted in new

members joining the Committee. Members

were selected by the three political groups —

Lib Dems / Labour / Greens. An evaluation of

knowledge, skills and training needs is

required.

Membership & Support

Question(s)
14/15/16/ 17

WORK IN PROGRESS

1. Members to complete

a self evaluation
exercise to map the
knowledge, skills of
Members based on
the Committee’s
Terms of Reference.

2. Review existing

briefings and training
to assess options to
improve
understanding and
competency of
committee members.

3. Any presentations or

other training
material should be
made available
through a shared
folder accessible to all
CAC members.
(Consult Jo Morrison
on best resource for a
shared folder — Teams
/ SharePoint or
S:Drive).

Target Date for
Completion -

Autumn/Winter
2024

9) Positive Feedback from those relying on
its work.

The Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

was submitted to the Council meeting on 21°

September 2023.

Effectiveness of the
Committee

Question(s)
20

COMPLETED

This is carried out
through the presentation
of the report to full
Council. Ensure the

Page 28




Appendix 3

B&NES Council Corporate Audit Committee — Annual Review of Effectiveness — June 2024

High Level Action Plan

At the meeting it was resolved to note the
Annual Report and approve the Committee
Terms of Reference (September 2023)

recommendation to
Council when presenting
the Committee Annual
Report for 2023/24
should request that
Council confirm that they
have been provided with
assurance through the
annual report that the
Committee has fulfilled
its responsibilities

Target Date for
Completion — November
2024

10) Committee evaluation of it adding value
to the organisation.

The annual report of the Committee to Council

does not currently record that it has evaluated

its operation and confirmed that it adds value.

Effectiveness of the
Committee

Question(s)
27

COMPLETED

The process of annual
review carries this out
(not the annual report).
The annual report of the
Committee to Council
should note that a
process has been carried
out and an Action Plan
maintained.

Target Date for
Completion — November
2024

11) Committee Action Plan — improvement of
areas of weakness

Effectiveness of the
Committee

Question(s)
28

COMPLETED

The completion of the
self-assessment process
will generate an Action
Plan.
Target Date for
Completion — September
2024

Page 29




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



TERMS OF REFERENCE Appendix 4 —

(Proposed TOR fer-CAC-to seek Council Approval)

CORPORATE-AUDIT COMMITTEE

2

Committee Scope

The Cerperate-Audit Committee is responsible for the Council’s powers
and duties relating to the annual accounts, audit plans, the Annual
Governance Statement, risk management arrangements and the other
key financial governance procedures.

Functions

. To approve on behalf of the Council its Annual Accounts, as prepared

in accordance with the statutory requirements and guidance.

. To approve on behalf of the Council its Treasury Management Strategy

in accordance with statutory requirements and guidance.

. To review and note on behalf of the Council the audited accounts of

Council owned companies, in accordance with Council company
governance arrangements, statutory requirements and guidance.

. To monitor the effectiveness of the Council’s system of internal control,

including arrangements for financial management, ensuring value for
money, supporting standards and ethics and managing the authority’s
exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption. This includes periodically
reviewing key financial governance rules / procedures including
Financial Regulations, Contract Standing Orders, Anti-Fraud &
Corruption Strategy and related policies.

. To note the External Auditors' Audit Plan, monitor its delivery and

effectiveness during the year, and support effective relationship with the
external auditor and other review agencies.

. To approve the Internal Audit Plan within the budget agreed by the

Council and to monitor its delivery and effectiveness (including the
implementation of audit recommendations).

. To consider, prior to signature by the Leader of the Council and Chief

Executive, the Annual Governance Statement (including the list of
significant issues for action in the ensuing year), as prepared in
accordance with the statutory requirements and guidance; and to
monitor progress on the significant issues and actions identified in the
Statement.

. To review periodically the Council's risk management arrangements,

make recommendations and monitor progress on improvements.

. To consider the Auditor's Annual Report from the External Auditor and

to monitor progress on accepted recommendations.

10.To monitor and promote good corporate governance within the Council

and in its dealings with partner bodies and contractors, including review
of the Council's Local Code of Corporate Governance and in any such
other ways as the Committee may consider expedient (within the budget
agreed by the Council).

Page 31



TERMS OF REFERENCE Appendix 4 —
(Proposed TOR fer-CAC-to seek Council Approval)

11.To consider and make recommendations of any other matters relating
to corporate governance which are properly referred to the Committee
or which come to its attention, e.g. the procurement of External Audit
Services, monitoring the governance of Council owned companies.

12.To discharge its responsibilities, the Committee and individual members
of the Committee can meet privately and separately with the external
auditor and / or Chief Audit Executive and have the right to call on any
other officer.

13.To make an annual report to Council on the work [and findings] of the
Committee, including (if necessary) any measures necessary to
improve the effectiveness of the Committee.

In all of the above, the Committee will, as appropriate, wish to
develop effective liaison with the following:

a) the Standards Committee of the Council with regard to matters of
ethical governance;

b) the relevant Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel(s) - to
complement but not to duplicate the exercise of their legitimate
role in checking compliance with Council processes and policies
and in reviewing policies and practice;

c) relevant Cabinet Members, in particular the Leader and the
Cabinet Member with responsibility for Resources, whose
portfolios include executive functions related to the matters
covered by these terms of reference

d) the Council when developing the Council’'s Code of Corporate
Governance

3 Composition

The size of the Panel will be determined by Council. Appointments will be
made having regard to rules on political proportionality — as set out in the
proportionality table. There will also be a minimum of one independent
non-voting co-opted member.

4 Quorum

One quarter of the membership or 3 Councillor/voting Members of
the Committee whichever is greater.

5 Substitution

Substitute Members are permitted in line with Council Procedure
Rule 3.1.4.

Page 32


https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD1640&ID=1640&RPID=39612234

Agenda ltem 9

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: |Corporate Audit Committee

MEETING 25" September 2024 AGENDA
DATE: ITEM
NUMBER
TITLE: Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report — April 2023 — May
2024
WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Annual Report 2024

1 THE ISSUE

1.1 The Corporate Audit Committee has specific delegated powers given to it
from Full Council and as such is required to report back annually to Council
under its Terms of Reference.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Corporate Audit Committee is asked to agree the Annual Report
covering the period April 2023 — May 2024 (Appendix 1) and request that
the Chair of the Committee present it to the November meeting of Council.

3 THE REPORT

3.1 The Corporate Audit Committee is required to compile and present to
Council an Annual Report. The Head of Audit & Assurance has written a
report and is asking the Committee to agree the report and ask the Chair of
the Committee to present it to Council.

3.2 At the 15t May 2024 meeting it was agreed that the revised Local Code of
Corporate Governance as endorsed by the Committee should be an
appendix to the Committee’s Annual Report.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 There are no specific statutory considerations related to this report.

1
Page 33



5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 There are no direct resource implications relevant to this report.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 A proportionate risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations
has been undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision-making risk
management guidance.

6.2 The Corporate Audit Committee has specific responsibility for ensuring the
Council’'s Risk Management and Financial Governance framework is robust
and effective.

7 EQUALITIES

7.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

8 CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 There are no direct climate change implications related to this report.

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 No other options to consider related to this report.

10 CONSULTATION

10.1 The Council's Section 151 Officer has had the opportunity to input to this
report and has cleared it for publication.

Contact person Andy Cox, Head of Audit & Assurance (01225 477316)

Background
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

2
Page 34



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

CORPORATE AUDIT COMMITTEE

ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL — APRIL 2023 — MAY 2024

1. INTRODUCTION

The Corporate Audit Committee report annually to Council to provide assurance that
it is carrying out its role and responsibilities as recorded in the Committee’s Terms of
Reference. This report covers the period April 2023 to May 2024.

2. REVIEW OF WORK CARRIED OUT UP TO AND INCLUDING MAY 2024

a. Financial Governance — Annual Accounts (Council & Pension Fund)

i At the Committee meeting on the 15t November 2023 the Head of Financial
Management gave a presentation on the draft Accounts for 2022/23 this was
the first introduction to the council’s Statement of Accounts to Councillors
newly appointed as members of the Committee. The presentation concluded
that the external audit of the accounts was still in progress and that the
accounts and external audit findings would be presented to the next meeting
on 22" November.

ii. Atthe meeting on the 22" November 2023 the Grant Thornton Engagement
Lead presented the Audit Findings Reports for Council and the Avon
Pension Fund. Work on concluding the audit was continuing and it was
stated that an unqualified opinion would be issued. It was resolved:

a) To note the issues contained within the Audit Findings Reports for the
Council and Avon Pension Fund;

b) to approve the audited Statement of Accounts, including the Letters of
Representation for both Bath & North East Somerset Council and the Avon
Pension Fund for 2022/23, subject to, any amendments necessary upon
guantification of the impacts of any issues arising from the ongoing work
by the external auditors.

c) that the Chair of the Corporate Audit Committee and the Chief Finance
Officer make arrangements to sign the Statement of Accounts for
2022/2023 as representing a “true and fair view” of the financial position as
at 31st March 2023, following any amendments necessary upon
guantification of the impact of any issues arising from ongoing work by the
external auditors.

d) if there are any new and significant issues identified before the accounts
are signed-off, if necessary, the Chair would email the Committee for

information.
b. Financial Governance - Annual Accounts (Council Owned
Companies)

i. In line with the Committee’s Terms of Reference at thelst November 2023
meeting the final approved and signed Aequus Developments Ltd (ADL) and
Aequus Construction Ltd (ACL) Accounts for 2022/23 were reviewed. The
meeting was attended by the Managing Director — Aequus Group and he

Page 35



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

presented the accounts and answered questions raised by Committee
Members. It was resolved that that the audited accounts of ADL and ACL had
been reviewed in line with the Committee’s Terms of Reference and the
audited accounts of ADL, ACL & AGHL (Council wholly owned companies)
be noted.

Financial Governance — Treasury Management

The Treasury Management Outturn Report 2022/23 was presented to the 5%
July 2023 meeting of the Committee which was before the report to Full
Council on the 20" July 2023. The Committee noted:

a) The Treasury Management Report to 31st March 2023, prepared in
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Code of Practice.

b) The Treasury Management indicators to 31 March 2023.

A Treasury Management Performance Report to 30th September 2023 was
presented to the meeting on the 1st November 2023. This report was
presented to the Council meeting on the 30" November 2023.

Committee Members reviewed the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement for 2024/25 on the 7th February 2024. This set out the treasury
limits in force, treasury management indicators, current position, borrowing
requirement, prospects for interest rates and the borrowing and investment
strategies. It was resolved to recommend the proposed actions within the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement to the 20" February Council
meeting; and to note the Treasury Management Indicators (detailed in the
Appendix 1 of the Statement).

External Audit

i. On 22" November 2023 the External Auditor presented their Annual Report

covering two periods 2021/22 and 2022/23 (at the meeting of the Committee
on 15M" March 2023 the External Auditor had explained the issues being
experienced by Grant Thornton and therefore the need to delay the Value for
Money Report and produce a single report for a two year period).
Based on the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice a more detailed
report had to be prepared on the Council’'s overall arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (Value For
Money). Three areas (criteria) were subject to review - financial
sustainability; governance; and improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness. In terms of financial stability a significant weakness in
arrangements was identified in relation to the Dedicated Schools Grant and
be able implement the agreed recovery plan. Two key recommendations
were made:
1) The Council needs to take action to address the shortfall in the DSG
recovery plan.
2) The Council needs to take action to address the shortfall in the DSG
recovery plan.

Page 36



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

In addition improvement recommendations or opportunities for improvement
were reported including:

a. Monitor and report on the amount of non-recurrent savings planned
and delivered each year.

b. Ensure it takes advantage of the Transformation Programme to
consider service redesign and identify savings for 2024/25 and
beyond.

c. Strengthen the Medium Term Financial Strategy by including more
detailed sensitivity and scenario analysis of the key financial risks and
key demand pressures facing the Council.

d. Its Corporate Risk Register is regularly reviewed by members.

e. That member decisions are supported by risk assessments.

f. It considers and records within a risk register the risks in relating to the
Aequus Group.

g. The Aequus Group business plan is reviewed by members annually.

h. Performance management arrangements are improved for the Aequus
Group.

i. It works closely with West of England Combined Authority (WECA) to
support (within its remit) the implementation of the required
improvements to the governance of WECA (as set out in Grant
Thornton’s previous governance report on the Combined Authority).

j. Ensure that Cabinet receives quarterly performance reports on the
Council’'s strategic objectives, as set out in the Corporate Strategy.

k. Define its key partnerships and establish a register of key
partnerships.

|. The Council should consider reviewing its process for approval of
contract waivers, to ensure appropriate independence. In order to
ensure transparency and financial oversight the number and extent of
waivers should be reported periodically to members at a public
meeting, such as Corporate Audit Committee.

ii. Atthe 15t May 2024 meeting the External Auditor also presented the External
Audit Plans for the Council and the Avon Pension Fund.

The National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice records the responsibilities
of the auditors and expectations of the audited body. The external auditor’s
responsibilities are also set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement
of Responsibilities issued by the Public Sector Audit Appointments (body
appointing the Council’s External Auditors).

The Audit Plan recorded the purpose, respective responsibilities and scope
of the audit work. The external auditor as group auditor is required to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
components and the consolidation process to provide an opinion on the
group financial statements (including Aequus Developments Ltd & Aequus
Construction Ltd).

Page 37



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

e.

Other audit responsibilities recorded in the Plan:

Verify consistency between financial statements and the Narrative Report
and Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

Verify AGS is in line with CIPFA requirements.

Verify compliance with duties under legislation.

Certification of completion of the audit.

Corporate Governance

The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the Council to carry out an
annual review of its governance arrangements, and to produce an
annual statement detailing the results of that review.

The results of the governance review for 2022/23 were presented to the
Committee on 15* November 2023. The Committee was advised of the
inclusion of two ‘significant issues’:

1) Inflationary Pressures — Staff, supplies and services costs
2) Children Services — Service demand and cost increases

On 1%t May 2024 the Committee received a report on the ongoing work
to compile the 2023/24 Annual Governance Statement (AGS), and
linked to that, a recommendation to endorse a revised Local Code of
Corporate Governance for the Council. The Committee resolved to
endorse the new Local Code and agreed for the Code to be included as
an annex to this annual report (see Annex 1). To highlight the
differences between the 2024 and 2018 versions of the Code, the 2024
version (Annex 1) records the changes made in red text. The main
change is in the format of the Principles Section (Annex 1- Appendix A),
which now records ‘what the Council has in place’ rather than just
recording the ‘Behaviour and actions that demonstrate good
governance in practice’.

When the Council’s Constitution was updated in 2021, the 2018 version
of the Local Code was placed in the library of documents. The 2024
version of the Local Code will replace the 2018 version in the library.

The review of the Code carried out as part of the Annual Governance
Review considered:
a) the B&NES Council Corporate Strategy 2023-2027.
b) the B&NES Council ‘Our Values and Behaviours Framework’
document.
c) the B&NES Council ‘Protocol on Councillor / Officer Relations’.
d) the B&NES Corporate Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference.
e) Department Levelling Up, Housing & Communities Best Value
guidance (draft version for consultation)

Page 38



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

f.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 was approved by Committee on the
15t March 2023.

The Audit and Assurance Annual Report 2022/23 detailing work of the
internal audit team and performance against the 2022/23 Internal Audit
Plan was presented to the 51 July 2023 meeting. The report also
included the formal opinion of the Chief Audit Executive on the
Council’s internal control framework. It concluded that ‘Reasonable
Assurance’ could be provided over the council’s systems of internal
control to manage risk, helping to ensure Council priorities can be
achieved. The pandemic, the conflict in Ukraine and the related
increase in cost of goods and services placed the Council under further
financial pressure but the council had responded effectively and
proportionately to the challenge.

At the 15t November 2023 and 7™ February 2024 meetings the Audit
Committee received updates on completion of the 2023/24 Internal
Audit Plan. Changes to the 2023/24 plan were approved. At the
February meeting members were also consulted on Internal Audit Plan
for 2024/25 and specifically asked for their input on any activity areas or
themes that they would like considered for inclusion in the list of audit
reviews to form the core work of the internal audit function.

An audit and assurance report entitled Annual Report of the Chief Audit
Executive 2023/24 was presented to the 15t May Committee meeting.
The annual report incorporated:

a) A ‘reasonable assurance’ annual opinion on the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk, and control
framework.

b) A summary of the work that supported the annual opinion.

c) A statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.

Risk Management

At its meeting on the 7" February 2024, the Director of One West
presented an overview of the Risk Management Strategy and
Framework. It was explained that active risk management is an integral
component of the council’'s Local Code of Corporate Governance which
is designed to help achieve the council’s aspirations, priorities and
outcomes. The role of the Cabinet Office to provide guidance on
national threats and risk and the council’s membership of the Avon &
Somerset Local Resilience Forum was explained. In addition local
arrangements such as the work of the council officer's Risk
Management Steering Group were also described. The council’s
corporate risk register and its maintenance was explained and
discussed. It was agreed that risk management update reports would
be provided to the Committee.

Page 39



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

On 1%t May 2024 a report was presented to explain a forward plan to
consider particular components of risk management. The first area to
be covered was ‘Fraud Risk’. The report on ‘Fraud Risk’ was
supplemented by a presentation provided by a member of the Internal
Audit Team. The presentation was entitled ‘An introduction to fraud and
the role of internal audit’.

3. CORPORATE AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

A work plan is prepared and presented at each meeting, this plans out the work
of the Committee and links it to its terms of reference. Committee Members
have the opportunity to comment and refine the workplan at each meeting.

4. MEMBERSHIP AND SUPPORT

Councillor David Biddleston has been Chair of the Committee since July
2023. The other Committee Members are:

Councillor Lucy Hodge

Councillor George Leach

Councillor Sam Ross (Vice Chair)

Councillor Malcolm Treby

Independent Co-opted Member — John Barker

. The Committee is supported by a number of Officers notably the Service
Director for One West, the Chief Financial Officer (S151), Head of Financial
Management and the Head of Audit & Assurance.

The external auditors are currently represented by an Engagement Lead and
Audit Managers from Grant Thornton.

5. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

Finally, the Committee reviewed its effectiveness against the CIPFA Code of Best
Practice and have identified some minor improvements to its ways of working and
its own Terms of Reference

Page 40



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

Annex 1

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Improving People’s Lives

Bath & North East Somerset Council

Local Code of Corporate Governance 2024

Page 41



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

1.6

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government; Framework, published by CIPFA
in association with SOLACE, sets the standard for local authority governance in the
UK. The concept underpinning the framework is to support local government in taking
responsibility for developing and shaping an informed approach to governance,
aimed at achieving the highest standards in a measured and proportionate way. The
purpose of the Framework is to assist authorities individually in reviewing and
accounting for their own unique approach, with the overall aim to ensure that:

¢ Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to
priorities.
e There is sound and inclusive decision making.

e There is clear accountability for the use of those resources, in order to
achieve desired outcomes for service users and communities.

Governance is a term used to describe the arrangements (including political,
economic, social, environmental, administrative, legal, and other arrangements) put
in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and
achieved.

Good governance enables the Council to effectively achieve its intended outcomes,
whilst always acting in the public interest. Basically, doing the right things, in the right
way, for the benefit of the communities it serves. The Council's overriding purpose as
described in its Corporate Strategy is ‘to improve people’s lives’ and to work to that
purpose the following values and behaviours have been adopted:
e Bold - in approach. Be proactive, take action & deliver outcomes.
e Empowered - staff & people. Through knowledge make decisions, are able to
challenge and have authority to be enablers.
e Supportive — work together to build trusting relationships to care for
individuals and the environment.
e Transparent — honest & accountable to act with integrity, open to criticism.

The Council recognises that the delivery of its strategic policies and objective cannot
be done in isolation. It needs to engage with other statutory bodies and the voluntary
and community sector as well as private companies commissioned to deliver
services. As such the Council has an interest in ensuring that these partners have in
place good governance arrangements.

The Delivering Good Governance in Local Government; Framework, sets out seven
core principles of governance as detailed in the diagram below. Bath and North East
Somerset Council is committed to these principles of good governance and confirms
this through the adoption, monitoring and development of this document - the
Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance.

Our Local Code is underpinned by the Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government; Framework and is comprised of policies, procedures, behaviours and
values by which the Council is controlled and governed. These key governance
areas and how the Council provides assurance that it is complying with these are set
out in more detail within its Governance Assurance Framework.

Page 42



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

The Council recognises that establishing and maintaining a culture of good
governance is as important as putting in place a framework of policies and
procedures. The Council expects members and officers to uphold the highest
standards of conduct and behaviour and to act with openness, integrity and
accountability in carrying out their duties.

All Members have an important role to play in representing their constituents, as well
as acting together as the Council. Officers serve the Council as a corporate body
rather than any political group, combination of groups, or individual member.

Members and Officers should work in an atmosphere of mutual trust and respect.
Members determine the Council’'s policies and Officers are responsible for
implementing decisions taken by the Council, Cabinet and / or the appropriate
Committee as well as taking decisions delegated to them under the Scheme of
Delegation. Legislation requires that certain functions be exercised by a ‘proper
officer’. The statutory officers with responsibilities and powers to protect good
governance are the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive), Chief Finance Officer
(Section 151) and Monitoring Officer and their purpose of appointment is recorded in
the Council’'s Constitution. In discharging these duties all parties should act in an
open, honest and transparent manner.

For companies wholly owned, the Council will need to have regard to the
accountability and governance framework in place ensuring robust Shareholder
Agreements (Reserved Matters Schedule), appropriate Company Structures and
reporting on Business Plans, performance and annual accounts.

Page 43



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

2.1 This diagram illustrates how good governance is integral to supporting the
delivery of the organisation’s priorities.

Vision &
Ambitions

Good
Governance

Delivery of
Priorities

2.2  The principles of good governance therefore describe the outcomes this
code is attempting to deliver. The guidance prescribes these as follows —

e Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to

ethical values and respecting the rule of law.

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder

engagement.

e Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable, economic, social
and environmental benefits.

e Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the
achievement of the intended outcomes.

¢ Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its
leadership and the individuals within it.

e Managing risks and performance through robust internal
control and strong public financial management.

e Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and
audit, to deliver accountability.

2.3 Further information regarding each of the above principles and the
behaviours and actions that demonstrate good governance in practice are
detailed at Appendix A

Page 44



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit regulations 2015 (amended
2022) require an authority to conduct a review at least once in a year of the
effectiveness of its systems of internal control and include a statement
reporting on the review with any published statement of Accounts. This is
known as an Annual Governance Statement.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 stipulate that the Annual
Governance Statement must be prepared in accordance with proper practices
in relation to accounts. Therefore a local authority in England shall provide this
statement in accordance with Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government Framework (2016) and this section of the Code.

The Council will monitor its governance arrangements for their effectiveness
in practice and will review them on a continuing basis to ensure that they are
up to date. This process of review to produce the Annual Governance
Statement sets out in more detail how the Council will seek assurance on its
adherence to the adopted principles of governance detailed in this code.

On an annual basis, the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council will
therefore publish an Annual Governance Statement which will:
e assess how the Council has complied with this Code of Corporate
Governance.
e provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements.
e Provide details of how continual improvement in the systems of
governance will be achieved.

An important component of the governance review to compile the Annual
Governance Statement is the result of inspections and peer reviews /
challenge. Being open to inspection is important to good governance.

The Corporate Audit Committee has the following corporate governance
responsibility under its Terms of reference:

e To consider, prior to signature by the Leader of the Council and Chief
Executive, the Annual Governance Statement (including the list of
significant issues for action in the ensuing year), as prepared in
accordance with the statutory requirements and guidance; and to
monitor progress on the significant issues and actions identified in the
Statement.

e To monitor and promote good corporate governance within the Council
and in its dealings with partner bodies and contractors, including review
of the Council's Code of Corporate Governance and in any such other
ways as the Committee may consider expedient (within the budget
agreed by the Council).

Page 45



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

5.1

e To consider and make recommendations of any other matters relating to
corporate governance which are properly referred to the Committee or
which come to its attention e.g. the procurement of External Audit
Services, monitoring the governance of Council owned companies.

We hereby certify our commitment to this Code of Corporate Governance and
will ensure that the Council continues to review, evaluate and develop the

Council’'s Governance arrangements to ensure continuous improvement of the
Council’s systems.

Leader of the Council Chief Executive

Date: Date:

Page 46



Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

Sub Principles Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good governance

Appendix A

What the Council has in place

¢ Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture,
where acting in the public interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated
thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation.

e Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating
principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that they are
communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of
Public Life (the Nolan Principles)

¢ Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or
values as a framework for decision making and other actions.

¢ Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating
principles or values through appropriate policies and processes which are
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively.

Behaving with integrity

/v abed

Constitution (* Ref to Constitution Part)
Employee Code of Conduct (* Part 4.6)

General Employment Standards and Rules
Councillor Code of Conduct (* Part 4.2)
Protocol on Councillor / Officer Relations (*Part 4.1)
B&NES ‘Our Values and Behaviours Framework:
Improving People’s Lives’

B&NES Engagement Strategy

Employees Declaration of Interests

Employees Declaration of Gifts / Hospitality
Member Register of Interests (* Part 4.4)
Equality Policy Commitment (January 2019)
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2022-2024
Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy 2022
Whistleblowing Policy 2022

Anti-Money Laundering Policy 2022

Standards Committee

Policy Development & Scrutiny Panels

Financial Regulations

Contract Standing Orders

¢ Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical
standards and performance.

¢ Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they
permeate all aspects of the organisation’s culture and operation.

Demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values

¢ Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

emphasis on agreed ethical values.

¢ Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation
are required to act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards
expected by the organisation.

Respecting the rule of law |  Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule
of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations.

¢ Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post
holders, and members, are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance
with legislative and regulatory requirements.

e Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of
citizens, communities and other stakeholders.

¢ Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively.

e Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively.

8t abed

Sub Principles Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good governance What the Council has in place




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

¢ Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and
communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness.

¢ Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use,
forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that is
not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision
confidential should be provided.

¢ Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records
and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria,
rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact
and consequences of those decisions are clear.

¢ Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the
most appropriate and effective interventions/ courses of action.

61 abed

¢ Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the
purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship
are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably.

¢ Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be
used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively.

- Ensuring that partnerships are based on trust

o (Constitution

e Committee Structure (** - see below)

e Executive Forward Plan

e Committee & Panel Minutes

e Decision Making Register

e Council website

e Transparency and Publication Scheme

e Corporate Strategy 2023/27

e B&NES ‘Our Values and Behaviours Framework:
Improving People’s Lives’

e B&NES Engagement Strategy

e Freedom of Information Request processes

e Complaints Reporting (including report to Standards
Committee)

e Public Consultations

e Parish Charter

e Annual Governance Statement (component of the
Council’s Statement of Accounts)

- a shared commitment to change.
- a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners and that the
added value of partnership working is explicit.

¢ Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will
meaningfully consult with or involve communities, individual citizens, service
users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is
contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes.

¢ Ensuring that communication methods are effective, and that members and
officers are clear about their roles regarding community engagement.

¢ Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of
communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different
backgrounds including reference to future needs.

¢ Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how

e Voicebox annual survey — sample of households

**Council, Cabinet (sub groups), Overview & Scrutiny,
Regulatory Committees, Governance Committees
including Standards Committee, Alice Park Trust, Avon
Pension Fund Committee / Investment Panel, Avon
Pension Fund Board, Charitable Trust Board, Corporate
Audit Committee, Restructuring Implementation
Committee




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

0gG abed

Sub Principles

views have been taken into account.

¢ Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other
stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity.

¢ Taking account of the impact of decisions on future generations of tax
payers and service users

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good governance

What the Council has in place

Defining outcomes

¢ Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the
organisation’s purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate
performance indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation’s overall
strategy, planning and other decisions.

¢ Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including
citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year
or longer.

¢ Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources

Corporate Strategy 2023/27
Economic Strategy (Evidence Base)
Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy
Treasury Management Strategy
Public Consultations

Medium Term Financial Plan
Annual Budget Setting

Climate Strategy and Action Plan




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

that will be available.

¢ |dentifying and managing risks to the achieve outcomes.

¢ Managing service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining
priorities and making the best use of the resources available.

Sustainable economic,
social and environmental
benefits

Sub Principles

¢ Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and
environmental impact of policies and plans when taking decisions about
service provision.

¢ Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of
risk and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the
organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the political
cycle or financial constraints.

¢ Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting
interests between achieving the various economic, social and environmental
benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate
trade-offs.

¢ Ensuring fair access to services.

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good governance

Ecological Emergency Action Plan
Committee Report Template (e.g. Climate Change
section)

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2021-24
Think Climate, Think Local, Think Innovation

What the Council has in place

Determining
interventions

¢ Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety
of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and
associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services
are provided.

¢ Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making
decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer
required in order to prioritise competing demands within limited resources
available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future
impacts.

¢ Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the
medium-term financial plan.

Risk Management Strategy 2019-2024

Risk Management Toolkit including Risk Registers
Public Consultations

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Capital Programme

Capital Strategy Group

Procurement Steering Group

Complaints and Customer Feedback Policy




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

¢ Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic
estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing a
sustainable funding strategy.

Optimising achievement
of intended outcomes

Sub Principles

¢ Ensuring the medium-term financial strategy integrates and balances
service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints.

¢ Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full
cost of operations over the medium and longer term.

¢ Ensuring the medium-term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing
decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the external
environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order for
outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage

¢ Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and
commissioning

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good governance

What the Council has in place

Developing the entity’s
capacity

¢ Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to
ensure their continuing effectiveness.

¢ Improving resource use through application of techniques such as
benchmarking and other options in order to determine how resources are
allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved.

eRecognising the benefits of partnership working where added value can be
achieved.

¢ Developing & maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the
strategic allocation of resources.

Developing the capability
of the entity’s leadership
and other individuals

¢ Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders
negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the
relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is
maintained.

¢ Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are
delegated and those reserved for the collective decision making of the
governing body.

Constitution

Council’s Integrated Performance Framework
Member Induction

Clear Review System — staff performance
management

Learning Zone (intranet training)

Response to External Review e.g. External Auditors
Audit Findings Report (VFM arrangements)

Organisational values - bold, empowered,
transparent and supportive as communicated
through Council’s Corporate Strategy.

Employee Induction — e.g. Code of Conduct

Protocol on Councillor / Officer Relations (* Part 4.1)
Decision Making (* Part 1.12)

Staff Survey




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

¢ Ensuring the leader and the chief executive have clearly defined and
distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the chief executive
leads in implementing strategy and managing the delivery of services and
other outputs set by members and each provides a check and a balance for
each other’s authority.

Employee Assistance Programme

€g abed

¢ Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve
effective leadership and to enable the organisation to respond successfully to
changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and
environmental changes and risks by:

- ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction
tailored to their role and that ongoing training and development
matching individual and organisational requirements is available and
encouraged.

- ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills,
knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and
responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their
knowledge on a continuing basis.

- ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development
through shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance
weaknesses both internal and external.

Identifying and developing talent within the Council’s workforce.

Developing succession planning.

¢ Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation.

¢ Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring
leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and
inspections.

¢ Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take
account of training.

e Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of
the workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and
mental wellbeing.




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

Sub Principles Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good governance

What the Council has in place

Managing risk ¢ Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and
must be considered in all aspects of decision making.

¢ Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and
ensuring that they are working effectively.

¢ Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly

allocated.

G obed

Constitution (*)

Risk Management Strategy

Risk Management Toolkit incl Decision Making
Corporate Risk Management Group (Officer Group)
Committee Report Template

Corporate Risk Register and Service Risk Registers
Cyber Security Group

Integrated Performance Reporting

Council Strategic Indicator Reporting

Internal Audit Service

Corporate Audit Committee

Financial Regulations

Contract Standing Orders

Comprehensive framework of Information
Governance Policies: Data Protection, Acceptable
Use, Information Security, Information Sharing, and
Security Incident Management Policy.

Information Sharing Agreements with public sector
partners

Appointed Chief Finance Officer (S151 Officer)




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

¢ Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification,
execution and independent post implementation review.

¢ Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice
pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the organisation’s financial,
social and environmental position and outlook.

¢ Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which
provides constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives before,
during and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s
performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible (Or, for a
committee system) Encouraging effective and constructive challenge and
debate on policies and objectives to support balanced and effective decision
making.

¢ Providing members and senior management with regular reports on service
delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement.

e Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as
budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements).

Gg abed

¢ Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with

achieving objectives.

¢ Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal control on a

regular basis.

¢ Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in

place.

¢ Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of

the framework of governance, risk management and control is provided by

the internal auditor.

e Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group/ function, which is
independent of the executive and accountable to the governing body:

- provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for

managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment.
- that its recommendations are listened to and acted upon

Internal Audit Service

Corporate Audit Committee

Financial Regulations

Contract Standing Orders

Quarterly and Annual Performance Cabinet Reporting
Digital, Data & Technology Strategy

¢ Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection,




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal
data.

¢ Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively
when sharing data with other bodies.

¢ Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in
decision making and performance monitoring.

Strong public financial
management

9g abed

¢ Ensuring financial management supports both long term achievement of
outcomes and short- term financial and operational performance.

¢ Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of
planning and control, including management of financial risks and control.




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

Sub Principles

Behaviours and Actions that demonstrate good governance

What the Council has in place

Implementing good
practice in transparency

¢ Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in
a fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended
audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and interrogate.

¢ Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to
satisfy transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being too
onerous to provide and for users to understand.

Implementing good
practices in reporting

/G abed

¢ Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and
stewardship of its resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable
way.

¢ Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported.

¢ Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the
principles contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing the
results on this assessment, including an action plan for improvement and
evidence to demonstrate good governance (the Annual Governance
Statement)

¢ Ensuring that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared
service organisations as appropriate.

* Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial
statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements
allow for comparison with other, similar organisations.

Website

Public Consultations

Corporate Audit Committee

Chief Audit Executive Annual opinion (Internal Audit)
External Audit Annual Report

Statement of Accounts including Annual Governance
Statement

Cyber Security Group

Integrated Performance Reporting

Council’s Corporate and Staff Engagement Strategies
Council Strategic Indicator Reporting

Internal Audit Service

Assurance and effective
accountability

¢ Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external
audit are acted upon.

¢ Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is
in place, providing assurance with regard to governance arrangements and
that recommendations are acted upon.

¢ Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies
and implementing recommendations.

¢ Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third
parties and that this is evidenced in the Annual Governance Statement.

¢ Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability
are clear and the need for wider public accountability has been recognised
and met.




Appendix 1 — Corporate Audit Committee Annual Report

8G abed



Agenda Item 10

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | Corporate Audit Committee

MEETING AGENDA
25t September 2024 ITEM
DATE: P NUMBER
EXECUTIVE FORWARD
PLAN REFERENCE:
TITLE: External Audit - Update E

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1 — External Update Report
Appendix 2 — Audit Findings Report for the Avon Pension Fund

Appendix 3 — Annual Audit Report - TO FOLLOW

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The External Auditor will update the Committee on their work to complete the
audit of the Council’s Accounts. In addition this will include presentation of the
Audit Findings report for the Avon Pension Fund and Annual Audit report which
includes the VFM assessment for the Council.

2 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 The Corporate Audit Committee is asked to —

Note the Audit Update Report, Audit Findings Report for the Avon Pension Fund
and Annual Audit report.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are no new financial implications from this report directly.

4 THE REPORT

4.1 The External Auditor provide a verbal update on progress to complete this year’s
audit, which is planned to be presented to the Audit Committee on the 27
November.

Printed on recycled paper Page 59




4.2 Appendix 1 outlines the work carried out so far on the audit of the accounts and
remaining tasks. Appendix 2 details the findings from the audit of the Pension Fund
Accounts as this is now complete and Appendix 3 outlines the External Audit
Annual Report which includes the Council’'s VFM assessment.

5 RISK MANAGEMENT
5.1 A proportionate risk assessment has been carried out in relation to the Councils

risk management guidance. There are not any significant risks or issues to report
to the Committee as a result of this report.

6. EQUALITIES

6.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines, no significant issues to report.

7 CONSULTATION

7.1 Consultation has been carried out with the Section 151 Finance Officer.

Contact person Jeff Wring, Director — Financial Services, Assurance & Pensions
(01225 477323)

Background

papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Printed on recycled paper Page 60




° Grant Thornton

Bath and North East Somerset Council

Audit progress report and sector updates

September 2024

T9 abed




Commercial in Confidence

Contents

29 abed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Section Page

Introduction 03 The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
Progress at September 202 Ol which we believe need to be reported to you
Progress against significant risks 05 as part of our audit process. It is nota
Audit deliverables 1 comprehensive record of all the relevant
. . matters, which may be subject to change,
Ending the local audit backlog 13 and, in particular, we cannot be held
Lessons from recent Auditors’ Annual Reports 14 responsible to you for reporting all the risks
. . which may affect the Council or all
Lessons from the new unitary councils 15 weaknesses in your internal controls. This
Code of practice on good governance 16 report has been prepared solely for your
Int | Audit i health . 17 benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
nternal AUdit - supporting o heafthy service in part without our prior written consent. We
Annual review of local government complaints 18 do not accept any responsibility for any loss
Homelessness and housing targets 19 occasioned to any third party acting or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
New approaches needed to key educational issues 20 content of this report, as this report was not
Demand management for social care 21 prepared for, nor intended for, any other
. . purpose.

The social landlord role -~ what can Councils do better? 22
Devolution 23
Resources 24

Title | August 2024

2



€9 abed

Introduction

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Beth Bowers

Key Audit Partner

T: 0117 305 7726

E: beth.ac.bowers@uk.gt.com

David Johnson

Manager

T: 0117 305 7727

E: David.a.johnson@uk.gt.com

Alyssa Gomez
Assistant Manager

T: 0117 305 7635
E: Alyssa.d.Gomez@uk.gt.com

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Commercial in Confidence

This paper provides the Corporate Audit Committee with a report on
progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.

The paper also includes a series of sector updates in respect of these emerging issues which
the Committee may wish to consider.

Members of the Audit and Standards Committee can find further useful material on our
website, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can
download copies of our publications:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/public-sector/local-government/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with
Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please
contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.

Title | August 2024


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/public-sector/local-government/

Commercial in Confidence

Progress at September 2024

Financial Statements Audit
Our work on the 2023-24 financial statement audit which is substantially
complete.

The significant risks we identified within our plans were as follows:

* Management override of control
* Valuation of land and buildings
* Valuation of investment properties

* Valuation of net pension fund liability
o

oY

&@Ne have presented detailed audit plans to this Committee, setting out our

Rroposed approach to the audits of the Authority's financial statements.
We continue to work to the agreed timelines and will formally report of
findings at the November Corporate Audit Committee meeting. An update
on the latest position with our significant risks is on the following pages.

We continue to meet with Finance Officers on a regular basis which has
helped ensure that the audit process is smooth and effective. At the time of
writing there are no significant issues which we wish to report to the
Council and we would like to thank finance officers for their responsive and
supportive approach to the audit team and audit queries.

Value for Money

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'),
we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. Auditors are required to report in more detail on the Council's
overall arrangements, as well as key recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Auditors are required to report their commentary on the Council's
arrangements under the following specified criteria:

* Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness;
* Financial sustainability; and
* Governance

As part of planning our audit work, we considered whether there were
any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We did not identify any risks of significant weakness.

We have completed our work on Value for Money arrangements and
the findings are set out in our draft Auditor’s Annual Report which is
included within the 25 September 2024 Corporate Audit Committee
papers alongside this report.

As a result of our work, we have identified one significant weakness in
the Council’s arrangements during 2023/24 in relation to financial
sustainability arrangements and specifically the dedicated school
grants (DSG) high needs deficit. Work identified that the Council did
not have proper arrangements in place to manage the high needs
element of the DSG within its agreed recovery plan. This has resulted
in a deficit against the safety valve programme which has led to the
suspension of the programme and the Council being put under
enhanced measures.

Title | August 2024

[N



Commercial in Confidence

Progress against Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Progress to date

Management override of controls We have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed *  evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals.
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is

tin ol entit * used Inflo, our data analysis software, undertakes a number of checks on the data, such as unbalanced transactions,
present in all entities.

unbalanced user IDs and transactions with blank account descriptions. Where any differences were noted by Inflo, we
followed these up with management and obtained sufficient explanations and corroboration for these

* tested unusual journals made during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration.

* reviewed manual journals, within Inflo, to identify those deemed to be high risk to be selected for testing. We selected and
shared our sample with management for them to provide us with evidence to support the entries. We completed our testing
upon receipt of this supporting documentation.

gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and consider
their reasonableness, and

G9 abed

* evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions

As in previous years we note that no formal approval process exists for those journals under £600k and assurance is taken from
review of a sample of journals, below this threshold, on a monthly basis. We have tested authorisation as part of our work and
have not identified any issues but consider this is an inherent weakness within the process and have raised a recommendation.
Our work is complete and no further issues have been identified

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 5



Commercial in Confidence

Progress against Significant risks

Relates to Council and/or

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Group Commentary
Improper revenue recognition Group and Council Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk streams at the Council we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from

that revenue may be misstated due to the improper revenue recognition can be rebutted because:

recognition of revenue. This presumption can be - There is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk

of material misstatement due to fraud relating to
revenue recognition. - The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including BaNES Council,

mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable
Within the Audit Plan, presented to the Council in March 2024, we identified

- Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

Y . e . . .
o) improper revenue recognition as a risk at the group level. Having reviewed the group
% balances no material balances were identified and, therefore, this is no longer
o)) considered a significant risk at the group level.
o>
Risk of fraud related to expenditure recognition PAF  Group and Council We have

Practice Note 10 * Evaluated the groups accounting policy for recognition of expenditure for

In line with the Public Audit Forum Practice Note 10, in appropriateness;
the public sector, auditors must also consider the risk
that material misstatements due to fraudulent
financial reporting may arise from the manipulation of

*  Gained an understanding of the Council’s system for accounting for expenditure
and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

expenditure recognition (for instance by deferring * Identified and test a sample of transactions received post year end to ensure
expenditure to a later period) these have been classified to the correct year.
We will

* Agree, on a sample basis, amounts recognised as expenditure in the financial
statements to supporting documents

Our work to date has not identified any issues with expenditure. We will report any
findings to members upon completion of our work.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 6



Commercial in Confidence

Progress against Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Relates to Council and/or Commentary
Group
Valuation of land and buildings and Group and Council We have:

investment properties

The group revalue its land and buildings on a
rolling five-yearly basis. This valuation
represents a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to + written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out
the size of the numbers involved (£262.210m in
the Group balance sheet at 31/03/23) and the
sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key

* evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate,
the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

* evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

* challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness
and consistency with our understanding

_stsumptions. Additionally, management will We will
L%need to ensure the carrying value in the Council * test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the
and group financial statements is not materially group’s asset register

Qplif'ferent from the current value or the fair value
(for surplus assets) at the financial statements
date, where a rolling programme is used. The
Group also has material investment properties

* evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during
the year and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially
different to current value at year end.

(£264.431m in the Group balance sheet at As part of our review we have identified a number of assets that are fully depreciated but
31/03/23) which must be valued annually at 31 are still in the fixed asset register as operational. The gross book value of these assets is
March. £21.597m of which £15.396m relates to infrastructure assets and the remaining £6.201m
We therefore identified valuation of land and relates to other land and buildings. It is considered that management should undertake a
buildings and investment properties, review of all assets to ensure that only those that are operational are disclosed in the
particularly revaluations and impairments, as a financial statements and consider whether useful economic lives, over which assets are
significant risk, which was one of the most depreciated, are appropriate.

significant assessed risks of material

: We have not identified any further issues in our work to date and will report any further
misstatement.

findings to members upon completion of the work.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 7



Commercial in Confidence

Progress against Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Relates to Council Commentary
and/or Group
Valuation of the pension fund net liability Council We have:

The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance sheet
as the net defined benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in the
financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate due to
the size of the numbers involved (£82.7m in the Council’s balance sheet)
and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

;)UThe methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19 estimates are routine
Qand commonly applied by all actuarial firms in line with the requirements
et out in the Code of practice for local government accounting (the
Cupplicable financial reporting framework). We have therefore concluded
that there is not a significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19
estimate due to the methods and models used in their calculation.

The source data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19 estimates is
provided by administering authorities and employers. We do not consider
this to be a significant risk as this is easily verifiable.

The actuarial assumptions used are the responsibility of the entity but
should be set on the advice given by the actuary.

A small change in the key assumptions (discount rate, inflation rate,
salary increase and life expectancy) can have a significant impact on the
estimated IAS 19 liability. In particular the discount and inflation rates,
where our consulting actuary has indicated that a 0.1% change in these
two assumptions would have approximately 1.5% effect on the
liability/surplus. We have therefore concluded that there is a significant
risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate due to the assumptions
used in their calculation. With regard to these assumptions we have
therefore identified valuation of the Council’s pension fund net liability as
a significant risk.

updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by
management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not
materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated controls;

evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management
expert (an actuary] for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who
carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation;

assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by
the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability;

tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and
disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial
report from the actuary;

undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial
assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as
auditor’s expert) and performed any additional procedures suggested within
the report; and

agreed the advance payment made to the pension fund during the year to
the expected accounting treatment and relevant financial disclosures.

We will

obtain assurances from the auditor of Avon Pension Fund as to the controls
surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions
data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the
fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

Our work to date has not identified any issues and we will report any findings to
member upon completion of our work.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Title | August 2024



Commercial in Confidence

Progress against other areas

Other Area Progress to date

Group Accounts An evaluation of the group based on a measure of materiality, considering each as a percentage
of the group’s gross revenue expenditure, to assess the significance of the component and to

Risks identified in the group accounts: determine the planned audit response was undertaken. From this evaluation we determined that

no balances/transactions of the components were material and therefore only analytical

* Revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions .
procedures are required

*  Management override of controls

* Valuation of land and buildings including investment properties

nOther balances with the financial statements *  We have made good progress working through the other areas of the financial statements

Q and have selected and shared within the Council the majority of our samples selected for
L(%On receipt of the draft accounts we undertook a scoping review where we determined the testing. These have been returned and work has been completed in the majority of areas with
oytems of the financial statements are within scope for the audit and the level of required no further issues identified

Quork for each of these * All queries and information request have been dealt with in a timely manner by the Council

*  We have complete the majority of our work with the main exceptions of PPE and Investment
Property valuations which we continue to discuss with management and update members on
progress.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 9



Commercial in Confidence

Progress at September 202 (cont.)

Other areas
Certification of claims and returns

We certify the Authority’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in
accordance with procedures agreed with the Department for Works
and Pensions (DwP). The certification work for 2022-23 is in
progress and we will report any significant findings to the Audit and
Governance Committee.

We also certify the Authority’s Teacher’s Pension return. The
certification work for 2022-23 is in progress and we will report any
Eigniﬂccmt findings to the Committee.
Q

@D
\l
o

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for
members and publications to support the Council. Your officers
attended our Financial Reporting Workshop in February, which
helped to ensure that members of your Finance Team were up to
date with the latest financial reporting requirements for locall
authority accounts.

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the
Council are set out in our Sector Update section of this report

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Audit Fees

PSAA have published their scale fees for 2023/24 2023/24 auditor
appointments and audit fee scale — PSAA .

For Bath and North East Somerset Council these fees are £353,067 for the
Council audit. These fees are derived from the procurement exercise carried
out by PSAA in 2022. They reflect both the increased work auditors must now
undertake as well as the scarcity of audit firms willing to do this work.

Title | August 2024 10


https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees-2023-24-2027-28/2023-24-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees-2023-24-2027-28/2023-24-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/

Commercial in Confidence

Audit Deliverables

Below are some of the audit deliverables planned for 2023/24.

2023/24 Deliverables Planned Date* Status

Audit Plan March 2024 Complete

We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit and Standards Committee setting out our proposed
approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2023/24 financial statements.

Audit Findings Report November 2024 Not yet due
—o'he Audit Findings Report will be reported to the Audit and Standards Committee.
QD
S Auditors Report November 2024 Not yet due
NThis includes the opinion on your financial statements.
Auditor’s Annual Report September 2024 Included in
This report communicates the key outputs of the audit, including our commentary on the Council's value for agenda papers
money arrangements. for th'?
committee

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 11



Commercial in Confidence

Audit Deliverables

Below are some of the audit related deliverables planned for 2023/24.

2023/24 Audit related deliverables Planned date* Status

Teachers Pensions Scheme - certification November 2024 Not yet due

This is the report we submit to Teachers Pensions based upon the mandated agreed upon procedures we are
required to perform.

Housing Benefit Subsidy - certification

This is the report we submit to Department of Work and Pensions based upon the mandated agreed upon
procedures we are required to perform.

October 2024 Not yet due

Z/) abed

*The planned dates are subject to national timetables, agreement with officers and unforeseen technical issues that may arise during the audit period.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 12



Commercial in Confidence

Ending the local audit backlog

A plan for restoring timely assurance to the Local Government audit system was
announced by the Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution
on 30th July 2024.

When parliamentary time permits, secondary legislation is going to be used to
amend the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) and to introduce five new
backstop dates:

v
\'
w
1. Financial years up-to-and-including 2022/23: 13 December 2024;
2. Financial year 2023/24: 28 February 2025;
3. Financial year 2024/25: 27 February 2026;
4. Financial year 2025/26: 31 January 2027;
5. Financial year 2026/27: 30 November 2027; and
6. Financial year 2027/28: 30 November 2028.

Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton Partner and Head of Local Government, has
had an article published in The MJ, where he reviews the reasons for the
delays in audited accounts and considers what is required for a long-term
solution:
https://www.themj.co.uk/beyond-the-local-audit-backstop

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Key messages from the Minister are that:

For financial years up to and including 2022/23, if financial audits are not complete
by 13 December 2024, disclaimed or modified opinions will be required. The Minister
recognises that in most cases these may remain in place for up to two years.

The Minister’s statement is, however, “crystal clear” that where there are modified
opinions for financial accounts, auditors’ other statutory duties - including to report
on Value for Money (VM) arrangements, to make statutory recommendations, and
to issue Public Interest Reports, will still be a high priority.

There will be some limited grounds for exemption to meeting the audited accounts
backstop dates: Where auditors are considering a material objection; where
recourse to the court could be required; or from 2023/24, where the auditor is not
yet satisfied with the body’s Value for Money arrangements. Nevertheless, Councils
need to be aware that the Government intends to publish a list of bodies and
auditors that do not have an exemption and yet still do not meet the proposed new
dates.

To help Councils comply with these arrangements, for financial years 2024/25 to
2027/28, the Minister states that the deadline for filing Category 1 ‘draft’
(unaudited) accounts will be extended from 31 May to 30 June (allowing higher
quality draft accounts); and there will be no routine inspections of local audits (by
the Financial Reporting Council or by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales) for financial years up to and including 2022/23, unless there is
a clear case in the public interest to do so.

Once implemented, the hope is that the new arrangements will help to restore the
robust assurance needed to underpin good governance and accountability.

For the full statement, see Written statements - Written questions, answers and
statements - UK Parliament.

Title | August 2024 13


https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://www.themj.co.uk/beyond-the-local-audit-backstop

Commercial in Confidence

Lessons from recent Auditors’ Annual

Reports

In July 2024, Grant Thornton shared findings from a review of just under 100 recent
Auditors’ Annual Reports (AARs), covering around 30% of all Councils in England.
With around 730 different areas for improvement identified, the AARs highlighted
five key areas where local government is facing increased challenge:

—

Transformation and saving plans;

The Dedicated Schools Grant;

Financial governance and internal control;

Performance management and procurement; and

o F W N

The Housing Revenue Account.

o
o)

Q
@
\l
N

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

To help Councils with their challenge, Grant Thornton’s Lessons report summarised
suggestions for improvement into a single checklist for success.

Key questions for Audit Committees from the checklist for success:

* External audit recommendations - are we up to date with monitoring progress
and implementation and prior year recommendations?

* Savings and reserves - is our medium-term financial plan up to date?

* Special educational needs and disability - are we on track with arrangements to
close any deficit?

*  Workforce - do we have an up-to-date strategy?

* The Housing Revenue Account - when did we last review the strategy and
arrangements for governance and internal control?

Even before the July 2024 general election, local authorities were key to delivering
nationally important policies. Under the new government, the sector looks likely to
play an even more pivotal role as, for example, proposed reforms to planning and
housebuilding get underway. Audit Committees can use the Grant Thornton
checklist for success to assess how ready their organisation is to take advantage of
the new opportunities likely to open-up and to step into the new, higher profile role
they are likely to be invited to play.

For a full copy of the report, see Lessons from recent auditor’s annual reports
(grantthornton.co.uk)

Title | August 202% 14


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2024/report---lessons-from-recent-auditors-annual-reports-v.08.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2024/report---lessons-from-recent-auditors-annual-reports-v.08.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Learning from the new unitary councils

In September 202L|', Grant Thornton publlshed ﬁndings from Auditors’ Annual “LOCOI government re_organisation iS here to StoU.....(but]
..... One size does not fit all, and local government is no
exception”.

Reports for eight unitary councils created since 2019 [or, where relevant, from
Auditors’ Annual Reports for their predecessor councils).

Grant Thornton’s report includes a series of key messages for Councils who may be
facing local government re-organisation in the future, including:

During the transition period
§ppoint shadow authority roles as soon as possible;
%Ilocote adequate resources to planning and transformation;
%onsider how to reduce legacy staff capacity.

Financial sustainability

Have a finance team in pace at the start;

Understand the legacy reserves position early.

Governance

Prioritise the production of legacy accounts;

Don’t underestimate the complexity of internal audit.
Effectiveness, economy, efficiency
Develop a performance management framework early; and

Put in place clear strategies.

For a full copy of the report and the key messages within it, see Lessons from
recent auditor’s annual reports [grantthornton.co.uk]

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 15


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2024/report---lessons-from-recent-auditors-annual-reports-v.08.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2024/report---lessons-from-recent-auditors-annual-reports-v.08.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Code of practice on good governance

In June 2024, SOLACE, CIPFA and Lawyers in Local Government (LLG] jointly
published a new code of practice on good governance. The code provides advice
and sets expectations for the three highest profile statutory roles in local
government - the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer, and the
Monitoring Officer. The aim of the code is to enable these three high profile officers
to effectively work together in a ‘Golden Triangle’ - to best advise members,
implement decisions, and help achieve good outcomes.

This is a powerful publication because it is the first in which SOLACE, CIPFA and
LG have spoken as one voice. Whilst the Seven Principles of Public Life, or Nolan
rinciples, apply to all public office holders (and indeed all those in other sectors
%elivering public services), expectations of the three most senior statutory officers
on Councils go further. The fact that this guide is targeted specifically at their three
roles is therefore more than welcome.

The new code of practice sets out seven standards the “Golden Triangle” officers
should comply with, alongside a series of more direct requirements they should
adhere to. The code provides guidance to the three officers concerned; can be used
to explain their roles more clearly to others; and provides context for conversations
about the roles, the requirements, and actions to be undertaken.

Questions Audit Committees can use the code to ask themselves surround: Do we
understand what our most senior officers do? And do they understand the
standards they are bound by?

For a full copy of the Code of Practice, see Code of Practice on Good
Governance for Statutory Officers June 2024.pdf [solace.org.uk)

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The seven standards of the Golden Triangle are:

Op 00

@@ @ ® @@ @

Understand Governance

Roles and responsibilities

Act Wisely

A duty of enquiry & the exercise of statutory functions

Lead Ethically
The Seven Principles of Public Life

Act Effectively

Robustness in working arrangements

Resource the Roles

Get the tools to do the job

Build Resilience

Deputies and development

Deliver sound decision making

The outcome of good governance

Title | August 2024


https://solace.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Code-of-Practice-on-Good-Governance-for-Statutory-Officers-June-2024.pdf
https://solace.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Code-of-Practice-on-Good-Governance-for-Statutory-Officers-June-2024.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Internal Audit - supporting a healthy

service

The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) published an assessment of the
health and status of internal audit within local government in July 2024, using
research based on survey findings from 44% of all councils in the United Kingdom
and Northern Ireland. The findings were stark and could make worrying reading for
any Audit Committee, as survey responses unveiled:

* Fear of speaking out about key findings, including around financial
sustainability;

Difficulty in discussing financial assurance matters with Audit Committee
members in public meetings;

Lack of member understanding of the work of internal audit; and

. /).obed

Insufficient staffing and inability to recruit to vacant posts, affecting completion
of the Internal Audit plan.

New Global Internal Audit Standards (GIAS] are due to come into effect in January
2025 and can be adopted now if entities wish. They include considerations
specifically for the public sector.

Respective responsibilities for members and management around supporting,
overseeing, and resourcing the internal audit function can be found in the CIIA
report.

Audit committees and senior management in local government should consider
whether any of the findings are relevant to their organisation and, if so, consider
using the transition to the new GIAS as an opportunity to challenge and revisit their
practices.

For a full copy of the Institute’s findings, see An evaluation of the health of
internal audit in local authorities.pdf (iia.org.uk]

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Summary of respective responsibilities to provide:

Support:

Audit committee

Champion the internal audit function.
Senior management

Support recognition of the function throughout the organisation.

Oversight:

Audit committee

Gain an understanding of Internal Audit findings.

Discuss any disagreements with the Chief Executive and senior management.
Senior management

Assist members in understanding the effectiveness of the organisation's governance, risk

management and control processes and escalate to members any matters of importance.

Resources:

Audit committee

Discuss the sufficiency of resources, both in numbers and capabilities, at least annually.
Senior Management

Engage with members to provide sufficient resources and resolve any issues around
resourcing.

Title | August 2024


https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1693432/an-evaluation-of-the-health-of-internal-audit-in-local-authorities.pdf
https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1693432/an-evaluation-of-the-health-of-internal-audit-in-local-authorities.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Annual review of local government
complaints

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s latest Annual Review of
Local Government Complaints was published in July 2024.

The review shows that nationally, there has been an increase in the number of
complaints received, an increase in the number of complaints upheld, and ongoing
issues within special educational needs; housing; and adult social care services.

The review argues that complaints can be seen as a valuable source of information,

and it encourages councils to use complaints information to identify early warning

signs of service failure. It includes best practice resources to help councils take
-yaluable learning from complaints, including a performance map and data tables.

&Readers are advised by the review to consider, using the interactive data for those
%ouncils they are interested in:

o
- Uphold rates;
- Suitable remedy rates;
- Compliance rates; and

- The nature of service improvement recommendations made.

Councils should bear in mind that since April 2024 new overview and scrutiny:
statutory guidance for councils, combined authorities and combined

county authorities recommends that scruting committee work programmes are
informed by the reports and recommendations issued by the Ombudsman.

For a full copy of the Ombudsman’s Annual Review, see Annual Review of
Local Government Complaints.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 18


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities
https://files.localgov.co.uk/lgo_638574241294533121.pdf
https://files.localgov.co.uk/lgo_638574241294533121.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Homelessness and housing targets

The National Audit Office (NAO) published a report in July 2024 on the

effectiveness of government in tackling homelessness. £2 I-I-I-I-b

The report noted that homelessness is now at the highest level since comparable C n

data collection began in the early 2000s, despite local government spending on ) )
homelessness services having more than doubled since 2010/11. The report also Spent by local government in 2022/23 on homelessness services

noted that a co-ordinated government response is difficult because there was, at
the time of writing the report, no strategy or published target for statutory
homelessness; and, again at the time of writing the report, the Department for
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities had limited power to influence other 0
overnment departments’ decisions on cross-cutting matters that can affect 60 /0
%omelessness services.

~JIhe National Audit Office argued that homelessness funding is fragmented and ProPortion of |°‘?°| OV 2022/?3 total gross expenditure on housing
generally short-term, inhibiting homelessness prevention work and limiting services (excluding that relating to their own housing) that was used to deal
investment in good-quality temporary accommodation or other forms of housing. with homelessness, up from 25% in 2010/11

New housebuilding targets announced by the new government on 30 July may

help, but consistent funding and a move away from short termism and a clear

strategy are also going to be essential levers that national and local government

are now going to have to develop. 1 5

For a copy of the National Audit Office report, see the effectiveness of Cross-government boards that have a remit relevant to homelessness
government in tackling homelessness (nao.org.uk].

For the government’s new housebuilding targets, see Housing targets @
increased to get Britain building again - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk] NAO ﬁ

National Audit Office

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 19


https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/effectiveness-of-government-in-tackling-homelessness.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/effectiveness-of-government-in-tackling-homelessness.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/housing-targets-increased-to-get-britain-building-again
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/housing-targets-increased-to-get-britain-building-again

Commercial in Confidence

New approaches needed to key

educational issues

Two recent reports highlighted weaknesses in the educational system that councils
have to work with. Both include recommendations for the new government, intended
to give disadvantaged children and children with special educational needs and
disabilities better outcomes for the money spent.

On 239 July 2024, the National Audit Office (NAO) published its report on
Improving educational outcomes for disadvantaged children
(nao.org.uk], noting that disadvantaged children include those who are currently,
or have previously been, looked after by the council.

—ghe report highlighted that the government spends an estimated £9.2 billion on
upporting disadvantaged children and narrowing the attainment gap between
hem and their peers, but that disadvantaged children still perform less well than

%their peers across all areas and across all school phases.

Two days later, on 25% July, the ISOS Partnership published an independent
report commissioned by the County Councils network and the Local
Government Association showing that educational attainment amongst
children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) has not improved
since 2014, despite councils being projected to spend £12 billion on these services
by 2026 (compared to £ billion a decade ago).

s

NACE ISOS

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

National Audit Office p artnersh i p

Going forward for SEND, local government could play a pivotal role in delivering
any changes of policy. It is important for members to be aware of the changes that
could happen in future. The ISOS partnership recommends that the new
government:

* Invests in building capacity in mainstream schools to meet children’s needs,
such as therapists, educational psychologists, and wider inclusion support,
helping to reduce the reliance on specialist school places;

* Resets the vision and guiding principles of the SEND system towards inclusion,
prevention and earlier support which would cater for young people who do not
have a statutory plan, with such plans reserved for the most complex cases;

e Provides a new ‘national framework’ for SEND;

+ Establishes ‘Local Inclusion Partnerships’ to enable more effective assessments,
commissioning and collaboration between councils, schools and health; and

* Creates a National Institute for Inclusive Education as an independent arbiter
around inclusive education and support for children and young people with
additional needs.

Local 48

Government

Association

CCN

COUNTY COUNCILS NETWORK

Title | August 2024 20


https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/improving-educational-outcomes-for-disadvantaged-children-1.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/improving-educational-outcomes-for-disadvantaged-children-1.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5ce55a5ad4c5c500016855ee/t/669fcedacd1a1f608546f52b/1721749338168/SEND+report.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5ce55a5ad4c5c500016855ee/t/669fcedacd1a1f608546f52b/1721749338168/SEND+report.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5ce55a5ad4c5c500016855ee/t/669fcedacd1a1f608546f52b/1721749338168/SEND+report.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Demand management for social care

In July 2024 CIPFA published a guide to managing rising demand in adult and The report shows the importance of strong corporate and leadership buy-in;
children’s social care, drawing on lessons from nineteen different English councils. utilising funding and resources from diverse sources; focusing on improving
Having highlighted that requests for adult social care and the number of children in outcomes; making use of monitoring, forecasting and benchmarking tools; and
need are both rising, CIPFA shared examples of good practice around: investing in preventative action. However, CIPFA also highlighted the specific

. .. . contributions that innovative finance professionals can make:
* Adult Social Care - Market management; transitions; transformation and rout l vative ti Pr !

Tg20ed

innovation; and * Financial oversight, analysis and management;
. . oy . . M
+ Childrens’ Social Care - Market management; transitions; transformation and Grant and resource management;
innovation. + Compliance, reporting and risk management;
* Evidence-based decision making and communication;
ise in the demand for adult social care support for new clients: * Monitoring, forecasting and benchmarking;
* Strategic thinking;
2.050.000 * Funding maximisation;
2.000.000 . . .
1.950.000 /___\///" * Business case and scenario planning;
e e * Sustainable commissioning; and
1.850.000 ———
1.800.000 * Data utilisation, monitoring and evaluation.
1,750,000
1.700.000:
201&/17 2017/18 2018/19 201920 2020521 20222 2022/23

The examples of proactive work by professionals from across the nineteen councils
Rise in the number of children in need: show how co-operation can make a real difference. For more details on the report,
see_Managing rising demand in adult and childrens social care

410.000 [Limgl.
. 7~ =
395,000 ~ / N F 4
390.000 1;"“\-”"‘\; ‘\L 1’

385.000
380.000 1’
375.000
370.000
365.000
360.000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 21


https://www.cipfa.org/services/building-sustainable-social-care/managing-rising-demand-in-adult-and-childrens-social-care#:~:text=Requests%20for%20adult%20social%20care%20support%20from%20new,in%202022%2F23%3A%20an%20increase%20of%2026%25%20since%202018%2F19.
https://www.cipfa.org/services/building-sustainable-social-care/managing-rising-demand-in-adult-and-childrens-social-care#:~:text=Requests%20for%20adult%20social%20care%20support%20from%20new,in%202022%2F23%3A%20an%20increase%20of%2026%25%20since%202018%2F19.

Commercial in Confidence

The social landlord role - what can councils

do better?

The Housing Ombudsman published its latest Insight Report in July 2024: Insight
report - Issue 17 (housing-ombudsman.org.uk])

The report focused on London - noting that 47% of the cases determined by the
Ombudsman in 2023/24 were from residents living in a London postcode, despite the
fact that just under one in six homes in the Ombudsman’s membership is located
within Greater London.

No other region of England has such a wide gap between the proportion of social

housing and complaints, but the Ombudsman noted that outside Greater London,

othgr councils and landlords should also take note of the recommendations and

legrning points, especially in other urban areas, as they provide vital indicators of
re things go wrong and how to stop that from happening.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

The report recommends that landlords:

* Foster a positive complaints culture - leadership and governance should be
seen to support the complaints’ function, including promoting internal
cooperation and engagement with the complaints process;

+ Don’t lose sight of the person at the centre of a complaints issue - try to
ameliorate the impact of issues outside the landlord’s full control and avoid
blame. Be clear about landlord responsibilities where resolution involves dealing
with third parties;

* Show that the resident’s experience is important - ensure that details are taken
and recorded appropriately so that residents feel listened to; the right solution is
found to resolve the issue swiftly; and the communication to the resident is
courteous and accurate;

* Remember that complaint handling is a landlord’s opportunity to regain a
resident’s trust after they have had a bad experience; and

* Use insight and intelligence from complaints strategically. This ranges from
effective root cause analysis of casework through to identifying risks and
horizon scanning.

The report makes good reading for members looking to better understand how they
can help to stop things going wrong in the council’s relationship with residents.

Title | August 2024 22


https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Insight-report-London-FINAL.pdf
https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Insight-report-London-FINAL.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Devolution

On 16t July 2024, the new Deputy Prime Minister wrote a Letter to Local Leaders

fetting out the new government’s ambition to: M i n i Stry Of HOUSi ng ’

Devolve new powers over transport, skills, housing, planning and employment

Communities &

* Provide more regions with integrated settlement and with access to financial

flexibility;
*  Move away from a deal-based approach, “setting out clear conditions and a Local G Overn m ent

clear offer in return for places seeking devolution agreement”; and

Enshrine a presumption towards devolution, so that places can take on new
powers automatically if they meet certain conditions.

abed

o)

Uh the English Devolution Bill one day later, the government started arrangements to
legalise a new devolution framework; address within it growth drivers such as
employment and planning; and make devolution the “default setting”.

How and when the details of the new devolution revolution will work remains to be
seen, but the Deputy Prime Minister has made it clear that new arrangements will
be tailored to sensible economic geographies so that local leaders can act at the
scale needed to effectively deploy their powers. In most cases that will require
councils to come together in new combined authorities. Councils are now
encouraged to begin discussions with their neighbouring authorities on this basis.

Members will need to start asking themselves both how ready their organisation is,
and how ready their neighbours are.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Title | August 2024 23


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/66966f05ce1fd0da7b59263d/Letter_from_the_Deputy_Prime_Minister.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Audit Committee resources

The Audit Committee and organisational effectiveness in
local authorities (CIPFA):

https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-
authority-audit-committees

LGA Regional Audit Forums for Audit Committee Chairs

These are convened at least three times a year and are

supported by the LGA. The forums provide an opportunity to

share good practice, discuss common issues and offer training

on key topics. Forums are organised by a lead authority in each

region. Please email ami.beeton@local.gov.uk LGA Senior
(;;?\dviser, for more information.

nguinc Sector Internal Audit Standards
Hhttps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-
internal-audit-standards

Code of Audit Practice for local auditors (NAO):
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/

Governance risk and resilience framework: material for
those with a leadership responsibility on good governance
(CfGS):

https://www.cfgs.org.uk/material-for-those-with-a-leadership-
responsibility-on-good-governance/

The Three Lines of Defence Model (IAA)

https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-
three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-
2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

Risk Management Guidance / The Orange Book (UK Government):
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/orange-book
CIPFA Guidance and Codes

The following all have a charge, so do make enquiries to determine if
copies are available within your organisation.

Audit Committees: Practical Guidance For Local Authorities And Police

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-
committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-
edition

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-
good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition

Financial Management Code

https://www.cipfa.org/fmcode

Prudential Code

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-
code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2021-edition

Treasury Management Code

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-
management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-
guidance-notes-2021-edition

Title | August 202% 24


https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees
mailto:ami.beeton@local.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/material-for-those-with-a-leadership-responsibility-on-good-governance/
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/material-for-those-with-a-leadership-responsibility-on-good-governance/
https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf
https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf
https://www.theiia.org/globalassets/documents/resources/the-iias-three-lines-model-an-update-of-the-three-lines-of-defense-july-2020/three-lines-model-updated-english.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/orange-book
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/fmcode
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2021-edition

Gg abed

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement and
signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly for
the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP.



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



° Grant Thornton

The Audit Findings (ISA260)
Report for Avon Pension Fund

Year ended 31 March 2024
16 September 2024

/8 abed




Public

Private and
o GrantThornton Confidential

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Avon Pension Fund

. 2 Glass Wharf
Lewis House
Manvers Street, Bath Bristol
BA11JG BS2 OEL
16 September 2024 T +44 (0)117 305 7600

) . www.grantthornton.co.uk
Dear Corporate Audit Committee

Audit Findings for Avon Pension Fund for the 31 March 2024

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process and
confirmation of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents will be discussed with management.

As itor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the
finogcial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
tho% charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The%)ntents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify control
weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal
control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written
consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we have taken to drive
audit quality by reference to the Audit Quality Framework. The report includes information on the firm’s processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence and
objectivity, for partner remuneration, our governance, our international network arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at transparency-report-
2023.pdf [grantthornton.co.uk). PSAA has also published their own Quality Monitoring Report, this report is available at Audit Quality Monitoring Report 2023 — PSAA.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
BethvBowers

Director
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf
https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/contract-monitoring-2018-19-to-2022-23/contract-monitoring-2021-22/audit-quality-monitoring-report-2023/

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Beth Bowers

Key Audit Partner

68 abed

E beth.ac.bowers@uk.gt.com

George Amos
Audit Manager

E george.wm.amos@uk.gt.com

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section Page
1. Headlines L
2. FEinancial statements 6
3. Independence and ethics 20

Appendices
A, Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 24
B. Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements 25
C. Follow up of prior year recommendations 26
D. Audit Adjustments 29
E. Fees and non-audit services 32
F. Management Letter of Representation 34
G. Audit opinion 35
H. Consistency opinion 36

This Audit Findings Report (AFR] presents the observations arising from the audit
that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to
oversee the financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management.

BethvBowery

For Grant Thornton UK LLP
Date: 16 September 2024

Public

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of
our audit planning process. Itis not
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters,
which may be subject to change, and in particular
we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting
all of the risks which may affect the Pension Fund
or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your benefit
and should not be quoted in whole or in part
without our prior written consent. We do not
accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned
to any third party acting, or refraining from acting
on the basis of the content of this report, as this
report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square,
London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available
from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm
of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and
the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions.


mailto:beth.ac.bowers@uk.gt.com
mailto:george.wm.amos@uk.gt.com

1. Headlines

This table
summarises the key
findings and other
matters arising
from the statutory
audit of Avon
Pension Fund (‘the
Pension Fund’) and
Jhe preparation of
&he Pension Fund’s
Ginancial
Rtatements for the
year ended 31
March 2024 for the
attention of those
charged with
governance.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

Financial Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK] (ISAs)
and the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of
Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to
report whether, in our opinion:

*+ the Pension Fund’s financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial transactions
of the Pension Fund during the year ended 31
March 2024 and of the amount and
disposition at that date of the fund’s assets
and liabilities; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance
with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on
local authority accounting and prepared in
accordance with the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014,

Our audit work was commenced in mid-June 2024 and is substantially complete as at the point at which
this report was written.. Our findings are summarised on pages 6 to 22.

We have identified no adjustments to the financial statements that have resulted in a change to the
Pension Fund’s reported financial position. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix D, these detail
adjustments made to the statements that do not impact the reported financial position.

We currently have not identified any unadjusted differences in the valuation of the Fund’s investments
disclosed in the financial statements at 31 March 2024 and the valuation statements received from the
third-party investment managers. Should any arise, they will be detailed in Appendix D in our final report
and The Corporate Audit Committee will be asked to confirm their agreement to this through the Letter of
Representation.

We have also raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit work. These are set out in
Appendix B. Our follow up of recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed in Appendix C.

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require
modification of our audit opinion or material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following
outstanding matters;

* review of the consistency of the Annual report with the pension fund statements;
+ finalisation of work on the Fund’s service organisations

* finalisation of testing on contributions receivable

+ finalisation of testing on the Fund’s Journal entries

* finalisation of testing of Investment assets

* finalisation and issuance of IAS 19 assurance letters to admitted bodies

* final quality review of work

* receipt of management representation letter, and

* review of the final set of financial statements.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is consistent
with our knowledge of your organisation and the financial statements we have audited.

Our anticipated opinion on the financial statements will be unmodified.

Whilst our work on the Pension Fund financial statements is substantially complete, we will be unable to
issue our final audit opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements until the audit of the Administering
Authority is complete.

We are required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial
statements included therein are consistent with the audited financial statements. We propose to issue our
‘consistency’ opinion on the Pension Funds Annual Report following the completion of the administering
authority audit.




Public

1. Headlines

National context - audit backlog

For information only - this is not expected to be applicable to Avon Pension Fund given the progress of the 2023/24 audit and the fact that the 2022/23 audit has already been
signed.

Consultation

The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), working with the FRC, as incoming shadow system leader, and other system partners, has put forward proposals to
address the delay in local audit. The proposals consist of three phases:

Phase 1: Reset involving clearing the backlog of historic audit opinions up to and including financial year 2022/23 by 30 September 2024.

Phase 2: Recovery from Phase 1in a way that does not cause a recurrence of the backlog by using backstop dates to allow assurance to be rebuilt over multiple audit cycles.

Phase 3: Reform involving addressing systemic challenges in the local audit system and embedding timely financial reporting and audit.

The consultation ran until 7 March 2024. Full details of the consultation can be seen on the following pages:

° Consultations on measures to address local audit delays (fre.org.uk)

o Addressing the local audit backlog in England: Consultation - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)
o Code of Audit Practice Consultation - National Audit Office (NAQ)

Our response to the consultation

Grant Thornton responded to the consultation on 5 March 2024. In summary, we recognise the need for change, and support the proposals for the introduction of a backstop date of 30
%September 2024. The proposals are necessarily complex and involved. We believe that all stakeholders would benefit from guidance from system leaders in respect of:

©

= the appropriate form of reporting for a backstopped opinion
. the level of audit work required to support a disclaimer of opinion
o how to rebuild assurance in terms of opening balances when previous years have been disclaimed.

We believe that both auditor and local authority efforts will be best served by focusing on rebuilding assurance from 2023/24 onwards. This means looking forwards as far as possible, and not
spending 2023/24 undertaking audit work which was not carried out in previous years. We look for guidance from systems leaders to this effect. The timing of the general election has delayed
the implementation of these proposals. Once we have a further understanding of the new government’s intentions, and its priorities across the sector we will discuss this with you.

Impact on Pension Funds

Pension fund accounts fall within the scope of the outlined backstop legislation. Where an Administering Authority accounts may be required to be backstopped this would not automatically
apply to the Pension Fund accounts. We expect to be able to issue a separate opinion on the Fund accounts where the Pension Fund audit can be completed.

Update
Following the general election the Minister of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government has proposed backstop legislation which will revise the date of the first backstop for
financial years up to and including 2022-23 to December 13 2024.

National context - Triennial Valuation

Triennial valuations for local government pension funds have been published. These valuations, which are as at 31 March 2022, provide updated information regarding the funding position of
the Pension Fund and set employer contribution rates for the period 2023/24 - 2025/26. For the Pension Fund, the valuation was undertaken by Mercer and showed that the overall funding
position improved. The results of the latest triennial valuation are reflected in note 15 to the accounts to the financial statements. These valuations also provide updated information for the net

pension liability on employer balance sheets.
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5



https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/UwlbC731YuB83Zpt8lYDl?domain=frc.org.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/nMtfC821WSy2nYvI1Ub1i?domain=gov.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/S8TUC9r1Giwlo23s3V7oM?domain=nao.org.uk

2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising

from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of

those charged with governance to oversee the financial

reporting process, as required by International Standard on

Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the

Code’). Its contents will be discussed with management prior
;)Wo presentation to the Corporate Audit Committee.

%3 auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in

ccordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)

Nnd the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

For Avon Pension Fund, the Corporate Audit Committee fulfil
the role of those charged with governance. The Pension
Committee considers the draft financial statements and is
part of the overall member oversight process.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Pension Fund’s business and is risk
based, and in particular included:

* an evaluation of the Pension Fund’s internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls; and

* substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Public

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial
statements and subject to outstanding queries being
resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the completion of the Bath and North East
Somerset Council audit. These outstanding items include:

* review of the consistency of the Annual report with the
pension fund statements;

+ finalisation of work on the Fund’s service organisations
* finalisation of testing on Benefits and Contributions

+ finalisation of testing on the Fund’s Journal entries

* finalisation of testing of Investment assets

* finalisation and issuance of IAS 19 assurance letters to
admitted bodies

* final quality review of work
* receipt of management representation letter, and

* review of the final set of financial statements.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our
appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance
team and other staff during the course of this audit.



2. Financial Statements

<

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is
fundamental to the preparation of the
financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence
to acceptable accounting practice and
applicable law.

;JU Materiality levels remain the same as

Q reported in our audit plan in April 2024.
We have determined both materiality

w over the financial statements and set a
lower materiality over the fund account
transactions.

We set out in this table our
determination of materiality for the
Pension Fund.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Pension Fund Amount (£)

Public

Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial statements 62.9m

We considered the proportion of net assets to the Fund
to be an appropriate benchmark for the financial year.
In the prior year we used the same benchmark. Our
materiality equates to approximately 1% of your net
assets for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Performance materiality 47.1m

We have determined this using 75% of materiality. This
is considered an appropriate benchmark as we have
not identified a history of significant deficiencies in the
control environment or a large number of significant
misstatements in prior year audits. In addition, the
management and finance team remain stable.

Trivial matters 3.1m

This is based on 5% of materiality, which we consider
to be an appropriate threshold to use in terms of our
reporting to the Corporate Audit Committee as ‘Those
Charged with Governance’.

Materiality for fund account 23.8m

Due to the sensitivity of the fund account disclosures
to those stakeholders who are admitted members of
the Fund, we have determined a lower materiality
threshold over the relevant fund account disclosures.




Public

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the
potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Management override of controls We have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non- * evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;

rebuttable presumed r.'Sk that the risk analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;
of management over-ride of controls

is present in all entities. * tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

* gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied by management and considered their reasonableness with

We therefore identified management
regard to corroborative evidence; and

override of control, in particular
journals, management estimates and  «  evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

ESQEZEZZZSGO;;Sﬁighnet c;ic;trse of Our testing of estimates, judgements and journals has not identified any evidence of management override of controls. Testing of Journal Entries is in
B ’ currently in progress and if any findings arise from this we will communicate this to management and include in the final report. We have not raised
QD any new control recommendations in respect of our work on journals, any that remain relevant have been detailed in Appendix C as carried forward
% from prior audits.

O

'hlmproper revenue recognition We rebutted this risk in our Audit Plan. We have reconsidered this as part of our audit work on the financial statements and have not changed our
(rebutted) assessment and therefore we confirm that we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Avon Pension Fund.
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of improper revenue recognition.

rebuttable presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to
the improper recognition of revenue.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of Level 3 investments

The Fund revalues its investments on an annual basis at the year end to
ensure that the carrying value is not materially different from the fair
value at the financial statements date.

By their nature, Level 3 investment valuations lack observable inputs.
These valuations therefore represent a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the size of the numbers
involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key
assumptions.

0

DUnder ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-routine

transactions and judgemental matters. Level 3 investments require a

significant degree of judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at
ear end.

Management utilise the services of investment managers as valuation
experts to estimate the fair value as at 31 March 2024.

We therefore identified valuation of Level 3 investments as a significant
risk.

We have:
* evaluated management's processes for valuing Level 3 investments

* reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what assurance management has over the
year end valuations provided for these types of investments; to ensure that the requirements of the Code are
met

* independently requested year-end confirmations from investment managers and custodians

« for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts, (where
available) at the latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that
date. Reconciled those values to the values at 31 March 2024 with reference to known movements in the
intervening period.

* inthe absence of available audited accounts, we have evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuation expert

* where available reviewed investment manager service auditor report on design effectiveness of internal
controls.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in relation to the risk identified.

As highlighted above, our audit focuses on looking at external confirmations from both investments managers and
the custodian, and as a result there will always be differences in when information is received compared to the
information available when management are estimating the values for the accounts. Our work in this area is
currently ongoing and therefore we are unable to conclude on whether there are any significant estimation
differences to be reported at the time of writing.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: new issues and
risks

This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan and a summary of any
significant deficiencies identified during the year.

Issue Commentary Auditor view
IT Control deficiencies Please see page 14 which details any findings and Overdll, IT controls relevant to the audit of financial
deficiencies emerging from our IT Audit. statements are judged to be effective at the level of

testing in scope, with only 1 non-significant deficiency
identified relating to supplementary IT information and
policies.

96, abed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments Assessment

Level 3 Investments - £1.415bn

The Pension Fund has investments in pooled property funds,
pooled infrastructure funds, a long-term investment and hedge
funds that in total are valued on the balance sheet as at 31 March
2024 at £1.415bn These investments are not traded on an open
exchange/market and the valuation of the investments is highly
subjective due to a lack of observable inputs. In order to
determine the value, management has employed expert fund
managers who have the necessary experience and technical

As outlined in our testing of the valuation of level 3 TBC

investments we have;

- Assessed management’s expert, reviewing their
competence, expertise and objectivity where appropriate,

- Considered the valuation techniques used against industry
practice, and

- Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in the

Rv) expertise to ensure the correct valuation of these investments in financial statements.
Q . s . .
«Q Fhe year end OC.COUMS The f}md are also supported by Our work in this area is currently ongoing and therefore we
) investment advisors who are independent from the fund managers N
. . . are unable to conclude on whether there are any significant
© who can advise on the performance of this type of investments. . . . .
~ . L estimation differences to be reported at the time of writing.
The performance of these investments are scrutinised by the
pension fund investment board. The value of the investment has
increased by £188.8m in year, and level 3 investments and now
account for 24.3% of the funds investment assets.
Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green]We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Level 2 Investments - £4.226bn The Pension Fund investments in level 2 on the Net Assets Statement as Similar to our approach for level 3 investments, we TBC
at 31 March 2024 total £4.226bn. The investments are not traded on an have;
open exchonge/m.orket and the valuation of the investment is subjective. _ p ooy management’s expert, reviewing their
In order to determine the value, monagement has emplog.ed expert fund competence, expertise and objectivity where
managers who have the necessary experience and technical expertiseto ‘ot
. . ; ppropriate,
ensure the correct valuation of these investments in the year end ) ) ) .
accounts. The fund are also supported by investment advisors who are A Considered tbe valuation techniques used against
independent from the fund managers who can advise on the industry practice, and
performance of this type of investments. The performance of these - Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in
- investments are scrutinised by the pension fund investment board. The the financial statements.
Q value of the investments has decreased by £323.9m compared to the o Kin thi . " . d
«Q . ur work in this area is currently ongoing an
@ prior gear. therefore we are unable to conclude on whether there
8 are any significant estimation differences to be
reported at the time of writing.
Assessment
@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® [Green]We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 12



Public

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement or
estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Valuation of Pension  The fund has elected to take ‘option B’ from IAS 26 when considering the We have; Light Purple
Fund Liability oﬁtuorlol present;:olue of proml\l/lsed retlremer: beneflts‘, and g.s ?quh pre.sents Assessed management’s expert, reviewing their competence,
this as a note to the accounts. Management have obtomegl this in ormation expertise and objectivity where appropriate,
from the actuary for the fund. The actuary has been provided with all of the ) ] .
necessary information using the annual returns required, which results in the Considered the data upon which the valuation has been
actuary producing the valuation and required reporting paragraphs. The based
principal assumptions used by the actuary are in respect of mortality Considered the reasonableness of the assumptions used,
(longevity at 65 for current and future pensioners) and financial assumptions: and
rate of CPl inflation, rate of increase in salaries, rate of increase in pensions . . . .
. . e o Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in the
o and rate for discounting scheme liabilities. The Council’'s Group Manager, . . .
. . . . - financial statements and one disclosure amendment has
9’ Funding, Investment & Risk communicates with the externally appointed . . .
«Q . . been processed, see Appendix D for details. This does not
[ actuary throughout the year and the year-end report is considered by . . . . .
. . . - . impact the primary statements. We will confirm appropriate
© management prior to inclusion in the financial statements. . . . .
© correction of presentation as part of final quality checks on
the accounts.
Measurement of The Fund values its financial instruments at fair value, as informed by the We have; Light Purple
::lnoncml (;dVlcT\Aof externcll o‘nd |r|1de|oeno|er1t. Monogemenlt ololv[sors:nd Investmelnt ) Assessed management’s expert, reviewing their competence,
nstruments und Managers. Fair values are estlmotgd .bg calculating t e present value o expertise and objectivity where appropriate,
cash flows that take place over the remaining term of the instruments, as ) ) . . .
provided by management experts. Management consider the exposure of each Cons[dered the valuation techniques used against industry
of its categories of financial instruments to credit, liquidity and market risks . practice, and
Risks to accounting estimates used in our measurement of financial instruments Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in the
are managed through our Pensions Investment Strategy Statement and the financial statements and some disclosure amendments have
Funds overall risk management procedures which focus on the unpredictability been processed, see Appendix D for details. These do not
of financial markets to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources impact the primary statements. We will confirm appropriate
available to fund sources. correction of presentation as part of final quality checks on
the accounts.
Assessment

® Dark Purple We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

® Blue

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® Light Purple We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: Information
Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of Information Technology (IT) environment and controls which included identifying risks from the use of IT related to business
process controls relevant to the financial audit. This includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC) rating per IT system and details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas.

ITGC control area rating

IT system Level of assessment performed Overall ITGC rating Technology acquisition,

Security development and .Technologg
management maintenance infrastructure
Aqresso Roll-forward ITGC assessment
9 (design effectiveness only)

;)U . Roll-forward ITGC assessment
@ Altair . .
o (design effectiveness only)
H
o
o

Active Directory Roll-forward ITGC assessment . .

(design effectiveness only)

Other Findings:

There was one deficiency identified through other work relating to IT General Controls, which was the following:
It was noted that there is no Data Classification policy in place.

Management Response:

There is a draft data classification policy which is based on the North Somerset Council policy. Our policies, Information Security and Information Governance services are through
One West which support both BANES Council and North Somerset Council. The BANES specific data classification policy will be going through the approval process this year. Policies
are reviewed on a regular basis in our Cyber Security Operations Group (CySOG) who meet monthly.

Assessment

@ Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements
Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk
IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope

® Notin scope for testing

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4



Public

2. Financial Statements: Digital Audit

We have invested significantly in our digital tools and our audit approach is underpinned by a suite of tools, enabling us to capture and analyse the detailed data contained within the
general ledger. This supports more efficient and effective testing, with a focus on higher risk areas and unusual transactions. The ability to obtain full ledger data quickly and effectively is key
to the progress of audit work, as is documentation of the Pension Fund’s methodology for mapping code structures to the financial statements and use of off-ledger adjustments. Difficulties
and delays in obtaining data adversely impact on the scheduling and delivery of the audit and it is important that management engage with the audit teams to understand the requirements
for data transfer, providing a clearly documented understanding of how financial statement entries are produced from underlying ledger and a timetable for doing so.

We requested several reports/documents from the Pension Fund to aid with this and these are summarised in the table below along with comments on delivery.

Document requested Date requested Date received Comments
Closing trial balance for 01/03/2024 20/03/2024
2022-23
) No delays were experienced in obtaining this report
2 Opening trial balance for 01/03/2024 20/03/2024 information from the entity that impacting our ability to
% 2023-24 deliver the work required. Usual audit queries around
= reconciling these reports to the accounts were discussed,
|ECIosing trial balance for 18/06/2024 25/06/2024 but nothing above and beyond what we would expect of
2023-24 the usual audit process.
All general ledger 18/06/2024 25/06/2024
transactions during 2023-24
Mapping between the trial 13/08/2024 14/08/2024
balance and the financial
statements for 2023-24
Draft accounts for 2023-24 31/05/2024 28/05/2024 Draft accounts were published online ahead of the

statutory deadline.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: matters discussed
with management

This section provides commentary on the significant matters we discussed with management during the course of the audit.

Significant matter

Commentary

Auditor view and management response

Benefits payable breach reported to The Pensions Regulator
identified in November 2023

20T abed

This breach arose when the Fund became aware that circa
1,500 members had not received an annual increase to
their pension, with the majority relating to 2014 onwards.
The issue was highlighted by the April 2023 10.1% increase,
meaning more members reported the issue.

We discussed this matter with the Fund’s Management to
determine the impact this would have on the accounts, with
respect to provisions and litigation and claims.

The total estimated obligation for the Fund has been
estimated at less than £2m, with ‘Phase 1 of the remedy
paying out approximately £650k, and ‘Phase 2’ estimating a
similar amount. From an audit materiality perspective, this
falls below our trivial reporting threshold and therefore we
propose no further action to be taken. We are comfortable
that the Fund are dealing with the breach appropriately and
reported to the relevant regulatory authorities in a timely
manner.

Management response

A further phase 2 payment was made in September of £210k.
We are still working through the more complex cases and
believe the total costs will be in line our original estimate.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Corporate Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any other incidents in the period
and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Matters in relation to
related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

atters in relation to laws
gand regulations
«Q

We have been made aware of one breach of laws and regulation within the audit period, as detailed on page 16. We are satisfied management have
appropriately reported and dealt with the breach, therefore no further impact on the audit.

@, . .
Written representations

Aletter of representation has been requested from the Pension Fund, which we anticipate to be received in line with signing the audit opinion.

(e
GAudit evidence and
explanations

All information and explanations requested from management were provided.

Confirmation requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to all of the fund managers that work with the Fund and all banking institutions
that management. This permission was granted and the requests were sent, of these requests all were returned with positive confirmation.

Accounting practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Pension Fund's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. Our review
found no material omissions in the financial statements.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

¥0T abed

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of
management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern” (IS4

(UK) 570).

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice - Practice
Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial
Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are
applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in
that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources
because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply
where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty
related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised approach for the consideration
of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more
likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the
continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the
Pension Fund meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing so, we
have considered and evaluated:

the nature of the Pension Fund and the environment in which it operates

the Pension Fund's financial reporting framework

the Pension Fund's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern
management’s going concern assessment.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements:
other responsibilities under the Code

Ty
Issue Commentary l '”‘T Vi
Other information The Pension Fund is administered by Bath & North East Somerset Council (the ‘Council’), and the Pension Fund’s
accounts form part of the Council’s financial statements. We are required to read any other information published &
alongside the Council’s financial statements to check that it is consistent with the Pension Fund financial .
statements on which we give an opinion and is consistent with our knowledge of the Authority. No inconsistencies " )
have been identified. Our work is still in progress but will be completed prior to issuing the audit opinion. We plan i
. 4

to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect - refer to Appendix G
TTMatters on which We are required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial -
gwe report by statements included therein are consistent with the audited financial statements. We propose to issue our
(Dexception ‘consistency’ opinion (see Appendix H] on the Pension Fund’s Annual Report at the same time as the financial
IS statements opinion.
ol We are required to report if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties as outlined in the Code. We

have nothing to report on these matters.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 19



3. Independence considerations

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant
matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm or
covered persons (including its partners, senior managers and managers)

In this context, we disclose the following to you:

The Key Audit Partner for the 2023/24 audit engagement, Beth Bowers, has a close family
member who is an admitted member of the Pension Fund. An internal ethics consultation has
been completed and it has been cleared that there is no threat to independence arising from
this and that Beth can continue to fulfil the role of Key Audit Partner on this audit
engagement. Appropriate safeguards are in place, and we confirmed with the Corporate
Audit Committee that they were comfortable with the relationship.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor
Guidance Note Otissued in 7 September 2022 which sets out supplementary guidance on
ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

90T abed

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix F.

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the
action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of
internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Grant Thornton International
Transparency report 2023.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

20


https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf

Public

3. Independence considerations

Audit and non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Pension Fund. The following non-audit services were identified. Note that
fees for IAS 19 letters for employer body auditors were classed as non-audit fees prior to 2022/23, these fees are now included within the 2023/24 scale fees. The National Audit Office have

confirmed that the provision of IAS 19 assurances to auditors of local government and NHS bodies should be considered work undertaken under the Code of Audit Practice for 2022/23
onwards.

Service Fees Threats identified Safeguards

Audit related

IAS 19 Assurances (outside of £2,760 per letter Self-Interest & Advocacy Self-Interest - Work performed is similar to that of provision of IAS 19 assurances to auditors of local

Local Government Bodies) government and NHS bodies, which is considered work under the Code of Audit Practice. We therefore are
comfortable there is no self-interest threat, the work is undertaken by the same team of individuals as the work
considered as work under the Code.

Advocacy - Work is subject to internal review by qualified accountants. Template letters and methodology are
created centrally to support the teams in wording communications objectively.

Non-audit related No non-audit related services identified.

/QT abed

Currently these fees are estimated as we have received one additional assurance letter, but are anticipating another before finalisation of the 23/24 audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 21



Public

3. Independence and ethics

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter Conclusion

Relationships with Grant Thornton We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Pension Fund that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our integrity, independence and objectivity.

Relationships and Investments held by individuals We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the Pension Fund held by individuals.
Employment of Grant Thornton staff We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions in respect of
R employment, by the Pension Fund as a director or in a senior management role covering financial, accounting or control related
D areas.
«Q
2Business relationships We have not identified any business relationships between Grant Thornton and the Pension Fund.
o
Q
Contingent fees in relation to non-audit services No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided.
Gifts and hospitality We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Pension Fund, senior management

or staff [that would exceed the threshold set in the Ethical Standard]

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors, aside from those disclosed on page 20, that we are required or wish to draw to your
attention and consider that an objective reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. The firm and each covered person have complied with the Financial Reporting
Council’s Ethical Standard and confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements

Following this consideration we can confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. In making the above judgement, we have also
been mindful of the quantum of non-audit fees compared to audit fees disclosed in the financial statements and estimated for the current year.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 22



Public

Appendices

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Audit Adjustments

Fees and non-audit services

Auditing developments

Management Letter of Representation

T o WY o o>

Audit opinion

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 23



Appendices

Public

A.Communication of audit matters to those

charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit
Plan

Audit
Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged
with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing
and expected general content of communications including
significant risks

_UConﬁrmqtion of independence and objectivity

8A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

(Mregarding independence. Relationships and other matters which

Fmight be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work

lC?oer‘formed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with
fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to
independence

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written
representations that have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required
to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other
matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have
been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs
(UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the
financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight
of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those
charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals
charged with governance, we are also required to distribute our findings to those
members of senior management with significant operational and strategic
responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration and onward
distribution of our report to all those charged with governance.

24



Public

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified 2 recommendations for the Pension Fund as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with management and we
will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2024/25 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course
of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment  Issue and risk Recommendations
Low Contributions Receivable - The Finance officer reconciles the LGPS50 with We recommend that the review of the reconciliation and subsequent authorisation is
the amounts received in Agresso on a daily basis. The Pensions & Projects formally documented to allow for a clear audit trail to be viewed.

Accountant reviews the reconciliations periodically. Upon testing the
effective design and implementation of this control, the auditor identified
that there is no formal documentation of the control for authorization of
reconciliation and journals before they flow into the ledgers.

Management response

Agreed. This was also identified as part of the Internal audit

Bank Reconciliations - There is only one individual who signs off the bank We recommend that there is more than one individual that can sign off the bank
reconciliations. There have been extended periods of leave during 23/24 for reconciliation to ensure timely review and resolution of any issues, should they arise and
this person and as a result the reconciliations were not signed off in a timely ~ should there be extended periods of leave in future periods.

manner. Management response

Agreed. This reconciliation can also be signed off by the Finance Manager (Pensions)

Controls

@ High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 25



Public

C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

We identified the following issues in the audit of Avon Pension Fund's 2022/23 financial statements, which resulted in 6 recommendations being reported in our 2022/23 Audit Findings Report.

We have followed up on the implementation of our recommendations and note 2 are still to be completed.

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

Reconciliations of the Contributions population we identified a £1.18m
difference between the listing provided and the ledger balance. Itis
understood that these differences arise when employers send
insufficient or incorrect data and primarily relate to discounts and
adjustments between months.

While the difference is not significant, we would recommend that

management undertakes a reconciliation exercise to ensure the
contributions populations reconcile to the financial statements.

Avery small variance of £38k was identified this year, which is insignificant, and
we are comfortable that the reconciliation exercise has been implemented to
identify any larger variances.

Our testing of benefits identified one individual within the dependents
population who had passed away in 2019. While the fund had ceased
all benefit payments, the individual was still included in the total
benefit cost for the year. We assessed the potential impact of this
error and identified that there could be an overstatement of benefits in
the range of £700k to £1.6m.

While the projected error is not significant, we recommend that
management seeks to review dependent benefit recipients to confirm
that those they are no longer making payments to are removed from
the system. Undertaking regular recongiliations between the system
and actual benefit payments will also help to identify differences for
follow-up.

We have not identified any similar instances of this issue through our testing in
2023/24 and therefore we are satisfied that the final accounts figures are not
impacted by such issue.

Assessment

v

v
-
QD
«Q
(0]
H
[
N

Assessment

v Action completed
X Not yet addressed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

26



Public

C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

Partially addressed

As part of our risk assessment procedures around Journals, we
identified that the fund were reviewing all journals at year end rather
than throughout the year.

We also identified that user reviews are scheduled to take place
quarterly.

Both findings leave the fund open to significant time passing before
issues are identified.

NEW RECOMMENDATION IN 23/24: The audit team would
recommend that there should be a functionality is the system where
each journals is authorised by an approver before being posted into
the ledger.

Management has confirmed that journals were reviewed monthly throughout the
year.

Management response

We will investigate this to see if it is practical to implement with BENES.

X Inadequate oversight around generic user in Agresso application The finding has not been remediated.

T During the audit, we obtained and inspected the evidence relating to

o) the administration of generic accounts with privileged access within Management response

(Q . . .

[0} the Agresso OPR"Cthon gnd observed that the access toa generic The Financial System has to have administration in order to maintain and

= OCCOUht [Administrator] is shared between the,mUIt'ple odmlmst’rotors operate the system. Due to these roles that are undertaken the Financial

5 from Fmonce.sgstems depart.ment. The Council ,hf],s no controls in Systems team have unique knowledge of the system that no-one else within the
place to monitor the appropriateness of the activities performed by organisation would have, therefore there is zero benefit for other areas to have
the account. this oversight as they would not have the knowledge as to why these changes
Risk: have been made.
The use of generic or shared accounts with high-level privileges Due to segregation of duties no-one within the Financial Systems team posts
increases the risk of unauthorised or inappropriate changes to the journals, nor amends data, therefore the Financial Systems team cannot make
application or database. Where unauthorised activities are changes to important information without other areas of the business seeing this
performed, they will not be traceable to an individual. and querying what has happened. In addition, the various Intel Agents send the
Also, without appropriate audit logging and monitoring, unauthorised changes to thfe relevo.nt areas when changes are made withi.n Agresso, onc!
activities may not be detected in a timely manner, can go unnoticed, changes to this data is only nr?ode O.t the request and authorisation of Service
and evidence of whether the attack led to a breach can be Areas or Consultants suggesting a fix.
inconclusive.

Assessment

v Action completed
X Not yet addressed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

27



Public

C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

v

Lack of controls over granting new user access within Altair
application

Altair

For a sample user, we noted that the new user access to be mirrored
with appropriate user was not mentioned clearly in the new user
creation form to verify appropriateness of roles granted against roles
approved and had incorrect permissions to be granted within Altair.
This lack of information made it difficult to verify whether the
permissions requested versus the permissions granted were aligned, or
whether the permissions requested were appropriate for the user’s
role.

Risk
User access may not be appropriately aligned to job role requirements

which may lead to inappropriate access within the application or
underlying data.

The finding has been remediated.

We observed that a formal new request form for new joiners and movers is in place
to verify the roles assigned to the users in line with the requested roles.

vTT abed

Assessment
¥' Action completed
X Not yet addressed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

28



D. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

We have not identified any adjustments in the draft financial statements that impact the Net Asset Statement or the Fund Accounts as at 31 March 2024.

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Public

Disclosure/issue/Omission Adjusted?
Note 1.32 Critical Judgements Management response v
We challenged the fund on their inclusion of critical judgements in their accounts to Upon revision of the disclosure, we have removed the critical judgement disclosed
ensure these were appropriate and in line with the CIPFA Code. as this did not meet the definition as described by the code.
-
o))
Q
®Note 9 - Change in Total Net Assets Management response TBC
[N
EThe Fund disclosed Purchases and Sales for Cash Deposits, however these disclosures We will revise the Note and removed these figures from the disclosure in both the
were not in line with the CIPFA Code guidance. current period and prior period comparator table. These adjustments do not impact
the opening or closing values of Cash Deposits in the note or in the Net Assets
Statement.
Note 10 - Investment Assets Management response v
The narrative disclosure underneath this note detailing information relating to a Pension We have removed this narrative note.
Reimbursement Asset is immaterial and does not disclose any information relevant to
2023/24 or 2022/23. We therefore deem this note to be unnecessary.
Note 15 - Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits for the Purpose of IAS26 ~ Management response TBC

The draft accounts did not contain any disclosures relating to the actuarial position of the
fund, including the relationship between the actuarial present value of promised
retirements benefits and the net assets available for benefits, which is required under the
CIPFA Code paragraph 6.5.5.1(0).

A disclosure has been added to demonstrate this position and a comparative has
also been added. Clarification queries on the reconciliation of values included in
the disclosure are ongoing with Mercer/Record.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

29



D. Audit Adjustments

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Public

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Disclosure/issue/Omission Adjusted
?
Note 19 - Related Parties Management response v
We challenged whether the disclosure made for Officer and Manager related parties met The disclosure relating to Officer and Manager related parties has been removed as
the definition of a Related Party under IAS 24, given it is not possible to detail any income this did not meet the accounting standard requirement of a related party.
or expenditure specifically with these parties.
Note 22 - Financial Instruments Management response v
We challenged the classification split between Fair value and amortised cost for ‘Cash’ The Note 22 disclosure has been updated to show £150.6m held at fair value and
aydisclosed under Note 22, which showed £23.1m held at fair value and £139.4m at amortised ~ £11.9m at amortised cost. This adjustment has also impacted the comparative note,
%Cost. This appeared inconsistent between Note 23 (b), which quoted £150.6m held under seeing the fair value disclosure for Cash change from £11.6m to £111.3m and the
=l reasury Management arrangements, which by nature should be classified as fair value. amortised cost total change from £102.1m to £2.3m. A narrative description of the
HWe also questioned if this required revision in the prior year comparators, noting that it reason for prior period adjustment has been added.
would purely result in a classification change, rather than a change in net asset total.
Note 23 - Nature and Extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments Management response TBC
Accounting standards IFRS 7 para B 24 states that currency risk disclosures should present A sensitivity analysis by currency type has been added to Note 23.
a sensitivity analysis for each currency to which an entity has significant exposure. The
disclosures in the draft accounts only disclosed the risk by asset type and not currency
type. We recommended that the entity also disclose a sensitivity analysis by currency
type.
Note 24 - Fair Value Hierarchy Management response v
There was no comparative 2022/23 table disclosed for the ‘Reconciliation of Fair Value A comparative table has been added.
measurements within Level 3’ table.
Other changes Management response TBC
Various grammatical, spelling, note referencing and page number updates to be These will be corrected before accounts finalisation.
processed following audit review.
30



D. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

Public

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2023/24 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements. The Corporate Audit Committee is

required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below.

Pension Fund Account

Impact on total net assets Reason for

Detail £°000 Net Asset Statement £° 000 £°000 not adjusting

To date, there have been no
unadjusted misstatements identified.

Overall impact

abed

I;Pmpoct of prior year unadjusted misstatements

“Fhe table below provides details of adjustments identified during the prior year audit which had not been made within the final set of 2022/23 financial statements.

Pension Fund Account Net Asset Statement Impact on total net assets Reason for
Detail £000 £°000 £°000 not adjusting
Estimation differences identified in the £14,672 Relates to estimation difference based
valuation of L3 Investments. Investments are on the timing of the audit compared
estimated to be understated. to the timing of management’s
preparation of the financial
statements. Management used the
best available information at the time
to produce financial statements.

Overall impact £14,572

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

31



E. Fees and non-audit services

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Audit fees Proposed fee
Scale Fee 94,622
ISA 315 7,530
Pension Fund Audit 102,052
IAS 19 letters for employer body auditors, that fall outside of the PSAA Contract 5,500
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £107,5652

81T abed

*Note that fees for IAS 19 letters for employer body auditors were classed as non-audit fees prior to 2022/23, these fees are now included within the 2023/24 scale fees. The National Audit
Office have confirmed that the provision of IAS 19 assurances to auditors of local government and NHS bodies should be considered work undertaken under the Code of Audit Practice for

2022/23 onwards. Provision of IAS 19 assurances to auditors of any other type of entity remains non-Code work.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

32



Public

E. Fees and non-audit services

Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee

Audit Related Services - IAS 19 letters for employer body auditors, that fall outside of the PSAA Contract £2,750 per letter

Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT] - two letters are expected to be issued £5,500

e

e proposed fees of £107,5652 do not reconcile to the financial statements total fee disclosure of £112,000. Once the following reconciliation items are taken into account the amounts agree
ithin a reconciling difference:

3)

61T 3

£3,000 scale fee variation added for the 22/23 audit billed in 23/24

* £5,500 non-audit fees deducted as this was not known at the time of the audit plan and draft accounts preparation.
None of the above services were provided on a contingent fee basis

This covers all services provided by us and our network to the group/company, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected
parties that may reasonably be thought to bear on our integrity, objectivity or independence. (The FRC Ethical Standard (ES 1.69))

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 33



Public

F. Management Letter of Representation

Draft copy to follow and to be shared with Management ahead of audit completion and will be brought to the November Corporate Audit Committee.

02T abed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 34



Public

G. Audit opinion

Our audit opinion is currently being drafted.

We anticipate we will provide the Pension Fund with an unmodified audit report and will be brought to the November Corporate Audit Committee

T2T abed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 35



Public

H. Consistency opinion

The Consistency opinion will be drafted once the work on the consistency of the PF Annual Report has been completed. This is currently in progress.

2e1 abed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 36



€21 abed

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

"Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



° Grant Thornton

Bath and North East
Somerset Council

abed

dnterim Auditor’s Annual Report for the
“year ended 31 March 2024

17 September 2024



=4

We are required under Section 20(1)(c)
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 to satisfy ourselves that the
Council has made proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

The Code of Audit Practice issued by the
National Audit Office (NAO) requires us

to report to you our commentary
relating to proper arrangements.

We report if significant matters have
come to our attention. We are not
required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the
Council’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources are operating
effectively.

Contents

Section

Introduction
Executive summary
Opinion on the financial statements and use of auditor’s powers
Opinion on the Avon pension Fund Statements
Value for Money commentary on arrangements
The current local government landscape
Financial sustainability
Governance
Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
Avon Pension Fund

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Appendices
Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Audited Body
Appendix B - Value for Money Auditor responsibilities

Appendix C - Follow-up of previous recommendations

Commercial in Confidence

Page

10
1
14

16
21
25
29
30

37
38
39

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our work under the NAO
Code and related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for money. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify significant weaknesses, we will report these to you.
In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in arrangements that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept
any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting, on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered
office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are
not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 2



Introduction

Purpose of the Auditor’s Annual Report

This report brings together a summary of all the work we have undertaken for Bath and North East Somerset Council (the Council) during 2023/24
as the appointed external auditor. The core element of the report is the commentary on the value for money (VM) arrangements.

All councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of their resources.

This includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives and
safeguard public money. The Council’s responsibilities are set out in Appendix A.

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual governance statement.

HResponsibilities of the appointed auditor
D

H
gOpinion on the financial statements

Auditors provide an opinion on the financial statements
which confirms whether they:

* give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Council as at 31 March 2024 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended, and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority
accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24

* have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014

We also consider the Annual Governance Statement and
undertake work relating to the Whole of Government
Accounts consolidation exercise.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Value for money

We report our judgements on whether
the Council has proper arrangements in
place regarding arrangements under

the three specified criteria:
* financial sustainability

® governance

* Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness

The Value for Money auditor

responsibilities are set out in Appendix B.

Auditor powers

Auditors of a local authority
have a duty to consider
whether there are any issues
arising during their work that
require the use of a range of
auditor’s powers.

These powers are set out on
page 13 with a commentary
on whether any of these
powers have been used
during this audit period.

Commercial in Confidence

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 3



8¢T abed

Executive summary




Commercial in Confidence

Executive summary

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code'), we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAQ, in its consultation of February 2024, has indicated that it will in future require auditors to share a draft Auditors Annual Report
(“the Report”) with those charged with governance by a nationally set deadline each year and for the audited body to publish the Report thereafter. This was delayed by the calling of a
general election on 4 July 2024 and therefore has yet to be determined by the new government. As a firm, we are committed to reporting the results of our local audit work on as timely a basis
as possible. We are therefore sharing this report with you in advance of the National Audit Office’s new Code being introduced. In the event that any new audit requirements are introduced
when the Code is published, we will revisit these before finalising this report. Our summary findings are set out below. Our recommendations and management responses are summarised in
the section starting on page 31.

Financial sustainability

2023/24% was a challenging financial year, with continued financial pressures within demand led services. From three months into the year the Council was forecasting an
overspend and urgent action was required to reduce spend. The Council was successfully able to reduce overall spend and delivered a slight overspend of £0.13m at the end of the
year. However, there were overspends in the following service areas, Children’s and Adult Social Care and Waste and Fleet services.

In February 2024 the Council agreed a balanced budget for 2024/25 which identified a savings requirement of £16.42m, supported by a five-year Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) which identified a savings requirement of £35.33m over the next five years, illustrating that the Council continues to face a significant financial challenge.

62T abe

In 2022/23 a significant weakness was identified as the Council did not have proper arrangements in place to address the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit, this significant
weakness remains in 2023/24, although the key recommendation has been updated to reflect the changes made in the past year. In 2022/23 the Council was accepted as part of
the Department for Education’s Safety Valve (SV) Programme and secured additional funding of £19.22m over the next seven years. However, due to the deteriorating position in
2023/2Y4 the SV agreement was suspended and funding paused. Due to the significance of this matter we have raised a key recommendation which has been accepted by
Management, as set out on page 9.

The Council should continue to work with the DfE to ensure a realistic and deliverable management plan is agreed for the increasing DSG costs. The Council should:
* ensure that the actions within the plan are progressed in the intervening period while discussions remain in progress

+ develop a plan to address the residual deficit (E63m) to bring the Council back in balance at the end of the management plan in 2030/31.

We also identified the following areas where the Council could improve arrangements and as such, have raised two improvement recommendations, on page 20, which have been
accepted by Management. These are:

The Council should enhance its reporting arrangements for savings to Cabinet, ensuring that all savings are accurately profiled.

In order to enhance the governance arrangements and savings delivered through transformation the Council should identify and document all its transformation
activities within one plan.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 5



Commercial in Confidence

Executive summary

Governance @

The Cabinet, led by the Council Leader and other appointed Councillors, is responsible for significant decisions and publishes
key decisions in its Forward Plan, enabling scrutiny committees to review and call-in any decisions as they consider

appropriate. We plan to issue an unqualified opinion
In 2022/23 we raised the following improvement recommendation: The Council should ensure the risk assessment undertaken to after Corporate Audit Committee in
support a member decision is included within the supporting papers. The supporting member report should also set out the key November 2024.

risks relating to the decision. This recommendation remains outstanding and is set out on page 40.

In summary based on our areas of focus and evidence considered, we found no evidence of significant weaknesses in the
Council’s arrangements for ensuring that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks. We identified three areas
for improvement, on page 24, and have raised three improvement recommendation which have been accepted by Management:

*  Management should ensure that recommendations raised within Internal Audit reports are actioned within the agreed
timescale.

0cT abed

* The Council should consider how its governance arrangements could be improved to ensure that recommendations
raised by External Audit are addressed in a timely manner.

* The Council should consider if changing the company articles of association for Aequus would be beneficial to
ensure that shareholders are updated annually on progress and any changes in the three-year business plan.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 6



Commercial in Confidence

Executive summary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

e
@# The Council set out its strategic priorities within its Corporate Plan and reported to Cabinet its performance against its strategic priorities three times in 2023/24. The Council is
aware of the challenges it faces and has used consultants to review and support it in finding solutions.

In summary based on our areas of focus and evidence considered, we have not identified any significant weaknesses in arrangements to ensure the Council manages improving

economy, efficiency and effectiveness. However, we have identified three areas where the Council could improve arrangements and as such, have raised two improvement

recommendations which have been accepted by Management:

* In addition to revising the list of Strategic Performance Indicators, the Council should enhance its data collection and target-setting process to ensure timely and
accurate data availability for all key performance indicators, allowing for a more comprehensive and timely assessment of the Council's performance against its
Corporate Strategy.

* The Council should develop an action plan and implement the recommendations raised by the Contract Management Pioneer Programme, which includes
development of a contract management framework.

Further details on the improvement recommendations above can be found on page 28.

TET abed

The details relating to outstanding recommendations raised in our previous Auditor’s Annual Report can be found in Appendix C.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 7



Executive summary (continued)

Overall summary of our Value for Money assessment of the Council’s arrangements
Auditors are required to report their commentary on the Council’s arrangements under specified criteria and 2023/24 is the fourth year that these arrangement have been in place.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our
work under the NAO Code and related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for money. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify significant
weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in arrangements that a more
extensive special examination might identify. A summary of our judgements are set out in the table below.

- 2022/23 Auditor judgement on . I Direction
Criteria / uditorjudg 2023/24 Risk assessment 2023/24 Auditor judgement on arrangements : !
arrangements of travel
Sianificant weakness in A significant weakness in arrangements relating to the arrangements to
organgements identified and one manage the DSG deficit was identified and a key recommendation made
. . . . C We h | ised two i t ti
;)UFII’]CII’]CICH key recommendation made Risk of significant weakness ime roOv\f;emOefwi r?éi?;jmg:(;(:}c?;r?\ﬁ:rjr;u:eofer\r/]igj;(:; frzsreor:iisge “
Q@sustainability relating to the Council managing  identified relating to DSG. P . . P P L
[o) its Dedicated Schools Grant outstanding. These recommendations will support the Council in
[~ (DSG) recovery plan improving arrangements to monitor and deliver savings through
% y plan- transformation.
No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, although three
No significant weaknesses in improvement recommendation have been made this year and three from
Governance A arrangements identified, but seven No risk of significant weakness A our previous report have yet to be fully addressed. These improvement “
improvement identified. recommendations would support the Council in improving arrangements
recommendations made. for implementing Internal and External Audit recommendations in a timely
manner and managing its subsidiaries.
No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but two
Imbrovin No significant weaknesses in improvement recommendation have been made to support the Council in
P 9 9 . o . No risk of significant weakness improving its data collection and target-setting processes and
econom arrangements identified, but five 9 P 9 9 gp
efficiencg’ and im ro?/ement ’ identified. A arrangements for contract management. Three improvement “
effectivegess recpommenolotions made recommendations from our previous report have yet to be fully

addressed, these relate to partnership working and contract
management.

G No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 8



Commercial in Confidence

Executive summary (continued)

Significant weakness identified in Financial Sustainability arrangements

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.

Based on the work undertaken and evidence reviewed on the arrangements relating to the Dedicated Schools Grant deficit, we are not satisfied that the Council has proper arrangements in
place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources in 2023/24. We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements and raise the following key
recommendation.

Dedicate Schools Grants (DSG) High Needs Deficit

In 2022/23 we determined that the Council did not have effective arrangements in place to manage the High Needs element of the DSG within its agreed recovery plan and identified this as
a significant weakness in arrangements. We consider that this significant weakness remains in 2023/24.

—gThe Council has had a DSG deficit since 2019/20. In 2022/23 the Council began working with the Department for Education (DfE) as part of the Safety Valve (SV) programme and secured
g additional funding of £19.22m over the next seven years. The first part of this funding, £7.68m, was received in 2022/23. The aim of this original plan was to breakeven in 2028/29.

@ However, from the beginning of this plan the Council has not been able to deliver savings as required and the deficit at the end of 2022/23 was £1.53m behind plan and at the end of
w2023/24 was £7.06m (cumulative deficit of £22.263m) behind plan. As a result of this deteriorating position in 2023/2% the SV was suspended, and the Council was put under enhanced
Wmeasures. From this point funding was paused and discussions with the DfE began.

A new management plan has been developed (SEND collaboration). This plan was submitted to the DfE in May 2024 and as yet the Council has not received a response. The revised plan
now extends to 2030/31 and no longer breaks even but plans to have o cumulative deficit of £63m (after reflecting the DfE funding) in 2030/31. This is a significant change from the original
plan. The level of funding from the DfE remains unchanged.

The Council does not currently have a recovery plan for the £63m residual deficit. As at 31 March 2024 reserves were reported as £12.789 (general fund unearmarked) £73.652 (earmarked), a
total of £86.441m. Whilst this is a reasonable level of reserves for the Council, should the statutory override be removed in 2025/26 or not exist in 2030/31, this level of DSG deficit is likely to
have a significant impact on the Council's reserves.

It should be noted that should the position not improve, such as actions not progressed or no agreement reached with the DfE, we may consider using our statutory powers and raise a
statutory recommendation in subsequent reviews.

Key recommendation 1

The Council should continue to work with the DfE to ensure a realistic and deliverable management plan is agreed for the increasing DSG costs. The Council should:
* ensure that the actions within the plan are progressed in the intervening period while discussions remain in progress

+ develop a plan to address the residual deficit (£63m) to bring the Council back in balance at the end of the management plan in 2030/31.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 9



v£T abed

Opinion on the financial
statements and use of
auditor’s powers



Commercial in Confidence

Opinion on the financial statements

Audit opinion on the financial statements

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements,
following the November Corporate Audit Committee.

Grant Thornton provides an independent opinion on whether the
Councils financial statements:

* give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2024
and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended, and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/21

GeT 9bked

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

We conducted our audit in accordance with:

* International Standards on Auditing (UK)

*  the Code of Audit Practice (2020) published by the National Audit Office, and
* applicable law

We are independent of the Council in accordance with applicable ethical requirements,
including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Findings from the audit of the financial statements
The Council provided draft accounts in line with the national deadline.

Draft financial statements were of a reasonable standard and supported by detailed
working papers.

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements,
following the November Corporate Audit Committee.

* No significant findings have arisen from the audit to date, however work remains
in progress and subject to final quality reviews.

* Adjustments made to the draft financial statements are disclosure and narrative
related and do not impact the primary statements.

*  No significant control recommendations have been raised in 2023/24.

Audit Findings Report

We report the detailed findings from our audit in our Audit Findings Report. A final
version of our report is expected to be presented to the Council’s Corporate Audit
Committee in November. Requests for this Audit Findings Report should be directed
to the Council.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024



Opinion on the Avon
statements

Audit opinion on the financial statements

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Pension Fund’s financial statements,
following the November Corporate Audit Committee.

Consistency report on the financial statements within the Pension Fund
Annual Report

The Pension Fund is required to publish its Annual Report by 1 December 2024. We issue
—gn auditor’s consistency report which includes our opinion that the 2023/24% Avon
QPension Fund financial statements within the Pension Fund Annual Report are
aconsistent, in all material aspects, with those within the audited administering
&authoritg’s Financial Statements.

Qe expect to issue an unqualified consistency report on the pension fund financial
statements contained within the Pension Fund’s Annual Report following the November
Corporate Audit Committee..

Grant Thornton provides an independent opinion on whether the Pension
Fund’s financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Pension Fund as at 31 March
2024 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended, and

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/214

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in Confidence

Pension Fund

We conducted our audit in accordance with:

* International Standards on Auditing (UK)

+ the Code of Audit Practice (2020) published by the National Audit Office, and
* applicable law

We are independent of the Pension Fund in accordance with applicable ethical
requirements, including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard.

Findings from the audit of the financial statements
The Pension Fund provided draft accounts in line with the national deadline.

Draft financial statements were of a reasonable standard and supported by detailed
working papers.

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Pension Fund’s financial
statements, following the November Corporate Audit Committee.

* No significant findings have arisen from the audit to date, however work remains
in progress and subject to final quality reviews.

* Adjustments made to the draft financial statements are disclosure and narrative
related and do not impact the Fund’s Net Asset Statement or Fund Account.

No significant control recommendations have been raised in 2023/24.

Audit Findings Report

We report the detailed findings from our audit in our Audit Findings Report. A final
version of our report was presented to the Pension Fund’s Corporate Audit Committee
on 25 September 2024. Requests for this Audit Findings Report should be directed to the
Pension Fund.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024



Commercial in confidence

Use of auditor's powers

We bring the following matters to your attention:

2023/24
Statutory recommendations We did not make any written
recommendations under Schedule 7 of
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written recommendations to the audited body which  the | ocal Audit and Accountability Act
need to be considered by the body and responded to publicly. 2014,
Public Interest Report We did not issue a public interest report.

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the power to make a report if they consider a matter is
-gufficiently important to be brought to the attention of the audited body or the public as a matter of urgency, including matters which may
é}blrecdg be known to the public, but where it is in the public interest for the auditor to publish their independent view.

@D
=
%pplicotion to the Court We did not make an application to the
Court.
Under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item of account is contrary to law, they may apply
to the court for a declaration to that effect.
Advisory notice We did not issue any advisory notices.
Under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an advisory notice if the auditor thinks that the
authority or an officer of the authority:
* is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority incurring unlawful expenditure,
* is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss
or deficiency, or
* is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.
Judicial review We did not make an application for

judicial review.
Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an application for judicial review of a decision of an :

authority, or of a failure by an authority to act, which it is reasonable to believe would have an effect on the accounts of that body.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024+ 13



8¢T abed

Value for Money
Commentary on arrangements



Commercial in confidence

The current local government landscape

It is within this context that we set out our commentary on the Council’s value for money arrangements in 2023/24 and make
recommendations where any significant weaknesses or improvement opportunities in arrangements have been identified.

&

6£T abed

National context

Local government in England remains a challenged sector. In recent years, generationally significant levels of inflation put pressure on councils’ General Fund revenue and capital
expenditure. The associated cost of living crisis drove an increase in demand for council services such as social care and homelessness. At the same time, the crisis impacted adversely on
key areas of council income that were needed to service the increase in demand, for example fees and charges and the collection rates for council tax, business rates and rents.

In January 2024, the UK government announced an additional £600 million for local government, but the Spring Budget for 2024 brought little in the way of any further support. Rising
costs of delivering services, coupled with workforce shortages in key areas, supply chain fragility, and rising interest rates for servicing debt, brought a level of crisis to the local
government sector perhaps never experienced before. Current warning signs of difficulty include:

*  Seven councils issuing eleven section 114 notices between 2019 and 2023, compared with two councils issuing notices between 2001 and 2018, with an increasing number of other
councils publicly warning of a section 114 risk;

+ Twenty councils being with government approval for exceptional financial support during 2024/25, totalling approximately £1.5 billion. Only six of these councils had previously issued
a section 114 notice.; and

*  The Local Government Association warning that councils in England face a funding gap of £4 billion over 2023/24 and 2024/25.

Local government is coming under an increased spotlight in terms of how the sector responds to the financial challenge it faces. Since the start of 2024, the UK government has
emphasised the need for increased productivity rather than increased funding. New plans were announced by the Chancellor in March 2024 for public sector productivity to deliver up to
£1.8 billion worth of benefits by 2029. Councils have subsequently been asked to submit productivity plans, showing how they will improve service performance and reduce wasteful
spend.

Given the general election results on 4 July 2024 any changes to government policy relating to the sector are at present uncertain.
Local context

Bath and North East Somerset Council (the Council) is a unitary council formed in 1996 with an estimated population of 195,618 residents (ONS 2022). The Council covers approximately
135.2 square miles. Bath has the largest urban population (50%) with other smaller towns being Keynsham, Midsomer Norton and Radstock. The remaining population is spread across
diverse rural communities.

Pupils within the Council area achieve grades above the national average and 52% of the population are educated to degree level or above. The unemployment rate reported in the year
ending September 2023 was 2.4%, which was below the national average of 3.7%.

The Council operates under an Executive decision-making model, which oversees the formation of all major policies, strategies and plans and as such the Council’s formal decision making
and governance structure constitutes the Full Council and an Executive (the Cabinet).

The Council has 59 councillors, and the Council is elected every four years. The most recent elections were in May 2023 when the Liberal Democrats maintained control increasing their
majority to 41 elected councillors.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 15



Commercial in Confidence

Financial sustainability

We considered how the audited
body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

2023/24 was a challenging financial year, with high inflation and rising social care costs for adults and children’s services. The
Council delivered a slight overspend of £0.13m at the end of the year, funded from the budget contingency reserve. There were
overspends in the following service areas, Children’s and Adult Social Care, Waste and Fleet Management. In addition, the
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), high needs block continued to overspend and the deficit increased above planned levels.
ensures that it identifies all the significant
Tinancial pressures that are relevant to its
@short and medium-term plans and builds
Dthese into them; In 2022/23 a significant weakness was identified as the Council did not have proper arrangements in place to address the
'_; DSG deficit, this significant weakness remains in 2023/24. In 2022/23 the Council was accepted as part of the Department for
o Education’s Safety Valve (SV) Programme and secured additional funding of £19.22m over the next seven years. However, due
to the deteriorating position in 2023/24 the agreement was suspended and funding paused. Further details are set out on
pages ? and 19.

In February 2024 the Council agreed a balanced budget for 2024/25 which identified a savings requirement of £16.42m,
supported by a five-year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).

G No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 16



Commercial in Confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

We considered how the audited
body:

Commentary on arrangements Assessment

T1T abed

plans to bridge its funding gaps and
identifies achievable savings

The MTFS approved in November 2023 outlined the need for the Council to find £35.3 million in savings over five years with the
2024/25 budget requiring £17.31m in savings. This savings target was later revised to £16.42m following the spending review. A
3-year (2024/25 - 2026/27) Savings and Income Generation Proposal was included within the budget papers and agreed by
members.

The Council forecasted at quarter one (2024/25) that 83% of the savings included within its Savings Proposal will be delivered.
In 2023/24 the Council delivered 76% of its planned savings (£10.98m out of £14.38m), 90% in 2022/23 (£10.63m out of
£11.87m) and 93% (£7.89m out of £8.48m) in 2021/22. This rate of delivery demonstrates a reasonable track record for
delivering savings. The Council reported on savings delivery during the year, but we consider that these arrangements could
be improved, see page 20 for further detail.

Improvement recommendation 1: The Council should enhance its reporting arrangements for savings to Cabinet, A
ensuring that all savings are accurately profiled.

The Council has established a transformational programme to enable it to manage demand, reduce costs but also to identify
savings. However, the transformational programme is not yet delivering savings which translate into cashable savings for
inclusion into the MTFS. The Council needs its transformation programme to help reduce demand and contain service
overspends. We raised an improvement recommendation in 2022/23 on the transformational programme and this
recommendation remains outstanding, see page 39. We also consider that the Council should develop a Council wide
overview of the transformation programme.

Improvement recommendation 2: In order to enhance the governance arrangements and savings delivered through
transformation the Council should identify and document all its transformation activities within one plan.

G | Nossignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.

A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024



Commercial in Confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

We considered how the audited
body:

Commentary on arrangements Assessment

plans finances to support the sustainable
delivery of services in accordance with
strategic and statutory priorities

The Council’s MTFS and annual budget are the Council’s primary strategic and annual financial documents which set out the
Council’s anticipated position. These documents are aligned to its corporate objectives. The budget report for 2024/25
approved in February 2024 addressed key areas of strategic priority and focus over the next two years, such as delivering the
"Being Our Best" Programme, developing a new strategy and service provision for Adult Social Care Services, ensuring
financial sustainability in Children's services, and implementing a new Economic Strategy that prioritises green growth, good
jobs, and affordable housing.

The Council's approach to the Capital program, as outlined in the MTFS, ensures that sufficient funds are invested in critical
assets to support key services, aligning with the Corporate objectives. Additionally, the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement for 2024/25 outlined the Council's borrowing and investment activities, which are aimed at maintaining liquidity
and covering pension costs while aligning with the overall financial strategy. The Council also emphasises the consideration of
impacts on inequalities, health and well-being, and safeguarding in the budget reports, in line with the five priorities of the
Corporate Strategy.

nsures its financial plan is consistent
with other plans such as workforce,
capital, investment and other operational
planning which may include working with
other local public bodies as part of a
wider system

2T 9bed

The Council ensures that financial planning assumptions are consistent with key strategies such as workforce and treasury

management through a range of reports and strategies. The Treasury Management Strategy and Budget Report confirm that

budget assumptions align with the Council's debt strategy and prevailing market conditions. The 2023/24 Outturn report G
demonstrates consistency in cash-flowing capital projects in line with the Treasury Management Strategy, while the MTFS

aligns financial plans with workforce strategies and savings requirements. The Capital Strategy confirms a commitment to

consistent financial planning assumptions and asset management strategies.

identifies and manages risks to financial
resilience, e.g. unplanned changes in
demand, including challenge of the
assumptions underlying its plans

The outturn report for 2023/24 showed an improvement in revenue outturn and delivered o small overspend, after accounting
for transfers and carry forwards. The Council has managed risks to its financial position through corporate interventions and
department-specific plans.

The 2024/25 budget report outlines the financial risks and pressures, such as inflationary pressure, operational budget
pressures, and changes to government policy and has identified a corresponding reserve range to address these risks. The
2024/25 budget included a budget contingency of £3m to mitigate slippage on savings delivery. G

The 2024/25 MTFS has incorporated sensitivity analysis which includes a range of +/- 20% on the budget growth estimates.
This covers various factors such as contract inflation, demography, and rebasing of budget pressures. Scenario analysis has
not been undertaken. We note that an external review undertaken in October 2023 on the Council’s heritage assets
recommended the Council perform regular scenario analyses on pricing strategies to maximise revenue and adapt to market
conditions.

G | No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.

A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024



Commercial in Confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Significant weakness identified

On page 5 in the Executive Summary and on page 16, we identified the significant weakness relating to the DSG deficit. The following chart illustrates the increasing deficit since
2019/20 and the funding received to date from the DfE.

Dedicated Schools Grant Deficit
35

30
25

20

cpT abed

£m

) — ]

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 cumulative deficit ~ cumulative deficit ~ target cumulative
without funding with funding deficit after funding

Key Recommendation 1: The Council should continue to work with the DfE to ensure a realistic and deliverable management plan is agreed for the increasing DSG costs. The
Council should:

* ensure that the actions within the plan are progressed in the intervening period while discussions remain in progress
+ develop a plan to address the residual deficit (E63m) which is expected to exist at the end of the management plan in 2030/31 to bring them back in balance.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 19



Commercial in Confidence

Financial sustainability (continued)

Areas for improvement

In 2023/24 Cabinet received updates on savings delivery against the plan with a brief narrative under each directorate. We consider that arrangements could be improved and would enable
Cabinet to more effectively challenge performance if they included:

* RAG ratings indicating the risk in delivery of savings
* identification of balancing figures where savings not yet identified
* additional plans to mitigate slippage or shortfall in planned savings

-
‘g details on reasons for slippage.

Byithin the 2023/24 Savings Proposal the ‘Being Our Best Programme’, a review and rationalisation of the Council’s management and operating structures, did not deliver its planned savings
'End is not on track in 2024/25. Whilst these savings are likely to be deliverable the Council did not accurately take account of the time it would take to deliver these savings. The Council
Feeds to ensure it takes account of lead in times, to cover such things as staff and union consultation.

Improvement recommendation 1: The Council should enhance its reporting arrangements for savings to Cabinet, ensuring that all savings are accurately profiled.

The Business Change Team support the delivery of projects included within the Transformation Programme, but there are other pockets of transformation across the Council, such as
Community Services Transformation Programme. The Council does not have a Council wide plan that brings all elements of transformation together. Documenting all its transformation
activities within one plan should enable the Council to enhance the governance arrangements and savings delivered through transformation. It would also enable the Council to prioritise its
transformation activities and allocate resources, accordingly, including central resource such as the Business Change Team.

Improvement recommendation 2: In order to enhance the governance arrangements and savings delivered through transformation the Council should identify and document all its
transformation activities within one plan.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 20



Commercial in Confidence

Governance

We considered how the Audited
Body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

The Council identifies and understands its strategic risks and records them in its Corporate Risk Register (CRR). The Council's
Risk Management Strategy and Framework, is overseen by the Corporate Audit Committee (CAC). The CRR is regularly
reviewed by the Risk Management Steering Group and in 2023/24 was formally presented to the CAC in February 2024.

The Council's Internal Audit Service, One West, delivers regular updates to the CAC and reports on the progress of the internal
audit plan, with 27% of reviews still work in progress as at year end. The Head of Internal Audit provided a "Reasonable
;)U Assurance" opinion for 2023/24. The Internal Audit Service monitor and track the implementation of audit recommendations and

%monitors and assesses risk and gains as at the yearend 56% of reports with prior year Internal Audit recommendations were completed.

passurance over the effective operation of  |mprovement recommendation 3: Management should ensure that recommendations raised within Internal Audit reports A

Shinternal controls, including arrangements  gre actioned within the agreed timescale.
to prevent and detect fraud
We also identified that the Council had not implemented all the recommendations which it had agreed in our previous Auditor’s

Annual Report and considered that it would be beneficial to enhance the governance arrangements.

Improvement recommendation 4: The Council should consider how its governance arrangements could be improved to
ensure that recommendations raised by External Audit are addressed in a timely manner.

The Council has adopted an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy for 2022- 2024. This strategy is supported by related policies
such as a Whistleblowing and Anti-Money Laundering Policies.

The Council's 2024/25 budget-setting process involved multiple stages, including analysis, workshops, and public consultation.
The proposed budget plans were reviewed, presented to Scrutiny in February 2024 before being submitted to the Cabinet and

approaches and carries out its annual Full Council for final approval. G
budget setting process
The budget was developed with input from Directors, Senior Managers, and finance staff, ensuring estimates and strategies to

manage budgetary challenges were discussed and taken into account.

G No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.

A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 21



Commercial in Confidence

Governance (continued])

We considered how the Audited
Body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

ensures effective processes and systems

are in place to ensure budgetary control;

to communicate relevant, accurate and

timely management information; supports

its statutory financial reporting; and
Uensures corrective action is taken where
@needed, including in relation to
@significant partnerships

Budget monitoring reports were presented quarterly to Cabinet during 2023/24, with the reports including revenue and capital
performance. These reports identified the risks and pressures faced by the Council and enable decision makers to understand

the situation and the actions required to mitigate any overspends. Measures were implemented during the year to control G
significant overspends in Children’s Services, including setting up a dedicated project board to address budget pressures.

Separate quarterly Treasury Management reports provide insights into the Council’s investment and financing costs.

ot

In 2023/24% we found that decisions were based on detailed reports and discussions. The Cabinet, led by the Council Leader and
other appointed Councillors, is responsible for significant decisions and publishes key decisions in its Forward Plan, enabling
scrutiny committees to review and call-in any decisions as they consider appropriate.

In 2022/23 we raised the following improvement recommendation: The Council should ensure the risk assessment undertaken to
support a member decision is included within the supporting papers. The supporting member report should also set out the key

ensures it makes properly informed
propery risks relating to the decision. This recommendation remains outstanding.

decisions, supported by appropriate

evidence and allowing for challenge and  |n 2022/23 we also suggested that the Shareholder should have annual updates for the Aequus Group Business plan, and A
transparency, including from audit consideration should be given to the overall governance arrangements more detail can be found on page 41. These
committee

recommendations remain outstanding. Although, we understand that the articles of association only require the business plan
to be approved by the shareholder every three years, as a result we have raised the following recommendation.

Improvement recommendation 5: The Council should consider if changing the company articles for Aequus would be
beneficial to ensure that shareholders are updated annually on progress and any changes in the three-year business
plan.

G No ssignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 22



Commercial in Confidence

Governance (continued)

We considered how the Audited

Body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment
The Council's governance framework is detailed in its Constitution, which includes Financial Regulations, Codes of Conduct,
and various policies on integrity and anti-corruption. Senior officers have delegated authority to act under new legislation until
monitors and ensures appropriate responsibilities are formally assigned.
standards, such as meeting . . . .
legislative/regulatory requirements and The Council's Lo.cal Cod.e of Corporate Qoverncmce was up.d.dted in 2024 and |.nt’egr0t.es key VO|L.JeS, behovpurs, and protocols
tandards in terms of staff and board to ensure compliance with legal and ethical standards. Additionally, the Council is taking proactive steps to incorporate new G
@ member behaviour and where it procures legal requirements and enhance transparency. In 2023/24, the Council began a rewrite of the Constitution, which included
%ond commissions services. revisions to contract standing orders and financial regulations, although this updates have not yet been finalised. These

updates are being undertaken in response to pending legislation, notably the upcoming Procurement Act scheduled to be
implemented in 2024/25.

AVT

G No ssignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 23



Commercial in Confidence

Governance (continued)

Areas for improvement

Internal Audit have adopted the Pentana system to monitor and track the status of internal audit recommendations. It is the responsibility of management to ensure recommendations are
actioned.

In 2023/2Y4 Internal Audit reported that for only 13 out of 23 reviews undertaken the recommendations were implemented within the agreed timescales.

Of the remaining ten Reviews, four had 'Limited Assurance’” mostly related to IT reviews with a total of 16 high-risk recommendations covering the four reviews. The delays were caused by
scheduling issues, recruitment challenges, project work delays, and resource allocation issues.

,Jlmprovement recommendation 3: Management should ensure that recommendations raised within Internal Audit reports are actioned within the agreed timescale.
D
@D

Ew our previous Auditor’s Annual Report we raised 12 improvement recommendations, of which only 5 (42%) have been fully implemented, as set out in appendix C. In order to ensure
Othanagement address these recommendations in a timely and effective way the Council should consider how it could improve its governance arrangements to ensure agreed
recommendations are actioned. This might include an action tracked regularly presented to the Corporate Audit Committee.

Yo |

Improvement recommendation 4: The Council should consider how its governance arrangements could be improved to ensure that recommendations raised by External Audit are
addressed in a timely manner.

The Aequus Group produce a three-year business plan. We understand that the company articles of association only require the business plan to be approved on a three-year cycle not
annually. We would expect that performance, and circumstances would change within this time period and that the Shareholder (Full Council) would require at least annual updates.

Improvement recommendation 5: The Council should consider if changing the company articles of association for Aequus would be beneficial to ensure that shareholders are
updated annually on progress and any changes in the three-year business plan.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 24



Commercial in Confidence

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

{5

We considered how the audited
body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

Cabinet received performance reports on the progress made against a key set of Strategic Performance Indicators for quarter
two, three and four. The Council aimed to assessed its performance against 37 Strategic Performance Indicators, however, 27
could not be rated due absence of data or targets. For a large proportion of the indicators the Council relied on third parties for
the data, such as those relating to the Council plan "Focusing on Prevention" which aims to tackle inequalities and improve
local areas. This lack of data and targets for a significant number of indicators has limited the Council's ability to
comprehensively assess its performance against its Corporate Strategy.

-
guses financial and performance In July 2024 a report was presented to Cabinet recommending revisions to the Council’s Strategic Performance indicators to
Minformation to assess performance to demonstrate better alignment and improve performance assessment against the Corporate Strategy 2023-2027. A
I_Q’dentifg areas for improvement Improvement recommendation 6: In addition to revising the list of Strategic Performance Indicators, the Council should
© enhance its data collection and target-setting process to ensure timely and accurate data is available for all key
performance indicators, allowing for a more comprehensive and timely assessment of the Council's performance against
its Corporate Strategy.
The Council has used LG Inform to identify cost-saving opportunities, highlighting potential savings in Children’s Social Care.
External consults were commissioned in 2023/24 to find efficiency and savings opportunities in Children's services and led to a
detailed improvement plan focusing on cost reduction, demand management, and enhanced performance systems.
evaluates the services it provides to The Council considered and used the information provided by regulators to improve services. Children’s services were last rated
assess performance and identify areas as ‘good’ by Ofsted in 2021/22 and in the Council’s 2023/24 yearend performance report the latest Care Quality Commission G
for improvement inspection (COC) ratings were presented for the care facilities in Bath and North East Somerset.

G Nosignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 25



Commercial in Confidence

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness (continued)

{5

We considered how the audited
body:

Commentary on arrangements Assessment

ensures it delivers its role within
significant partnerships and engages
—pwith stakeholders it has identified, in
8order to assess whether it is meeting its
(Mobjectives
|

0
o

‘The Council has a wide network of partnerships collaborating with key partners such as the West of England Combined
Authority (WECA), Avon Fire Authority, and the Avon and Somerset Police and Crime Panel. These partnerships amongst others

span critical areas like transport, public safety, health, and economic development. The Council’s corporate documents
emphasise its significant partnerships.

In 2022/23 we raised the following improvement recommendation: The Council should work closely with the West of England

Combine Authority (WECA] to support (within its remit) the implementation of the required improvements to the governance of A
WECA (as set out in the Combined Authority’s governance report). Despite governance challenges highlighted by a 2023/24

Best Value Notice, the Council is committed to supporting WECA's improvement journey and manages partnership risks through

its corporate risk register. However, we understand that significant governance issues remain within WECA. These issues are not

as a result of behaviours and failings from the Council's perspective, but do have an impact on the effectiveness of the

partnership. Therefore, it is our view that this recommendation should remain. Further details are set out on page 42.

G | No ssignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.

A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 26



Commercial in Confidence

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness (continued)

{5

We considered how the audited
body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

The Council has an up to date procurement strategy 2020-2024 which sets out the ambitions and outcomes for improvement.
This strategy has been refreshed to reflect the new Procurement Act 2023 and is framed around six priority themes. This
refreshed procurement strategy was approved by Cabinet in September 2024. However, it does not have a contract
management framework. The Council maintains a list of key contracts, however, the Council has not agreed or regularly
undertaken performance monitoring of these contracts using agreed key performance indicators. In 2023/24 the Council
participated in the Contract Management Pioneer Programme delivered by Local Partnerships, this programme resulted in a
range of recommendations, including the need to develop a contract management framework. We understand that these
recommendations have yet to be implemented as the Council were progressing the refresh of its strategy first.

In 2023/2% nine contract waivers were authorised, compared to 13 in 2022/23. We understand that in both years all were below
EU limits and for each year five were above £100k. The Council does not report the number and total value of its contract
waivers and breaches to members, such as the Corporate Audit Committee. The improvement recommendations raised in our
commissions or procures services, assessing previous AAR remains outstanding, as noted on page 42.

I . . A
whether it is realising the expected benefits
9 P The Council has reviewed and is in the process of updating its Contract Standing Orders to take into account the new

Procurement Act 2023. Scrutiny, CMT and officers have been updated on the new legislation, including the opportunities and
changes required from October 2024 when the legislation comes into force.

TGT abed

Improvement recommendation 7: The Council should implement the recommendations raised by the Contract Management
Pioneer Programme, which includes development of a contract management framework.

The Council has arrangements in place to ensure large capital projects are monitored and effectively managed. Regular
updates through quarterly Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring reports are provided to Cabinet. These reports provide
detailed forecasts against the approved Capital Programme budget, with specific attention to variances. In 2023/24, a year-
end variance of £18.704m was reported, largely planned for re-phasing into 2024/25. Detailed breakdowns by portfolio and
explanations for slippage are included in these reports. Additionally, the Capital Strategy Group reviews the capital programme
as part of the budget-setting process, focusing on maintenance, investment, and service delivery improvements.

G Nosignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 27



Commercial in Confidence

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness (continued)

%

Areas for improvement

The Council monitored and reported its performance against its Corporate Plan based upon 37 Strategic Performance Indicators, however, 27 could not be rated due absence of data or
targets. This lack of data and targets for a significant number of indicators has limited the Council's ability to comprehensively assess its performance against its Corporate Strategy.

In July 2024 a report was presented to Cabinet recommending revisions to the Council’s Strategic Performance indicators to demonstrate better alignment and improve performance
assessment against the Corporate Strategy 2023-2027.

Improvement recommendation 6: In addition to revising the list of Strategic Performance Indicators, the Council should enhance its data collection and target-setting process to
“Pensure timely and accurate data availability for all key performance indicators, allowing for a more comprehensive and timely assessment of the Council's performance against

; its Corporate Strategy.

Bp

U;he Council has a procurement strategy which sets out the ambitions and outcomes for improvement. However, it does not have a contract management framework. The Council maintains a
Nist of key contracts, however, the Council has not agreed or regularly undertaken performance monitoring of these contracts using agreed key performance indicators. Recognising this, the
Council began updating its procurement strategy to include a more structured approach, which was agreed by Cabinet in September 2024. However, challenges such as a recruitment freeze

and the restructuring exercise has delayed progress, leaving contract management issues unaddressed.

In 2023/24 the Council participated in the Contract Management Pioneer Programme delivered by Local Partnerships, this programme resulted in arrange of recommendations, including the
need to develop a contract management framework. We understand that these recommendations remain outstanding.

Improvement recommendation 7: The Council should develop an action plan and implement the recommendations raised by the Contract Management Pioneer Programme, which
includes development of a contract management framework.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 28



Commercial in Confidence

VfM findings Avon Pension Fund

We considered how the audited
body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

The following committees met during 2023/21:

+  Avon Pension Fund Committee (the Fund Committee) - the decision-making committee with delegated authority from the
Council

+  Avon Pension Board (the Board) - its role is to ensure the effective governance of the Local Government Pension Scheme
R and compliance with regulations and legislation.

Q -

@Bath and North East Somerset Council is  Avon Pension Fund (the Fund) continued to manage its resources, monitor performance, and manage its risks throughout

®the administering authority for Avon 2023/24. Regular meetings were held for the Fund Committee and the Board. Key strategies and statements were discussed

?ension Fund (APF) and we are required  and agreed by the Fund Committee, such as the Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy Statement. Costing G

Wxto consider the Council’s arrangements in - gnd financial performance was closely monitored, with regular updates on both operational performance and investment
respect of the governance and outcomes.

management of Avon Pension Fund(AVP).
The Fund has continued to face challenges such as staffing vacancies and rising case demand and has taken steps to address
these issues, including engaging external consultants to review processes and controls.

Overpayments have been made and this issue has been reported by the Fund management to the Fund Committee and the
Board. Pension Increase errors were identified in the period, most of which have now been rectified and the Fund has a plan to
rectify the remining cases in the coming months. We do not consider these to indicate weaknesses in arrangements as the
Fund has resolved or is resolving these issues.

G Nosignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 29



¥GT abed

Value for Money

Recommendations raised in
2023/24



Commercial in Confidence

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Type of Criteria Impact or possible
Recommendation recommend . Evidence pact or p Actions agreed by Management
ation * impacted future impact
Actions: During 2023/2Y4 the council
commissioned external, expert advice to
support a review of our DSG cost and
delivery plan. The council liaised
Keu R dation 1: Th closely with DfE to put in place revised
ey Recommendation 1: The .
- . plans and we are awaiting a formal
Cf)uncﬂ should continue to vyor:k The aim of the original Safety Valve (SV) plan response on our revised plan and
W'tg ;hi DFE Jkt)(lj ensure d reoh:tlcl was to breakeven in 2028/29 after receiving timeline. Additional financial and
gn eliveraple n‘ﬁonoge‘men plan £19.22m from the DfE. However, at the end of . programme resources has been
Y is agreed for the inereasing DSG 2023/2% the Council was £7.06m (cumulative ZZ?'(L?’wzktgfoe(jZe(e:tsl;/ihe allocated to oversee delivery of the
&  costs. The Council should: deficit of £22.263m) behind plan. In 2023/24 the o O"S. i three key strands of work and delivery
* ensure that the actions within i increasing DSG costs - . .
@ the ol 4n th Financial SV was suspended, and the Council was put has resulted in an continues whilst we await a response
e plan are progressed in the . .
QKW intei/ening pFe)riogd while ey sustainability ;Ir::idneLzzrg)oer:r)\ec?e?;g:::s%é:zm:Svg:gement increase in the deficit from colleagues in the DFE. Bullet Tis

discussions remain in progress
* develop a plan to address the
residual deficit (£63m) to bring
the Council back in balance at
the end of the management

plan in 2030/31.

submitted to the DfE in May 2024, as yet the
Council has not received a response. The revised
plan now extends to 2030/31 and no longer

breaks even but plans to have a cumulative
deficit of £63m at the end of 2030/31.

and will impact the
Council’s ability to
maintain financial
sustainability.

therefore noted and agreed.

We will work collaboratively with DfE on
plans that do not put the council’s
financial position at risk.

Responsible Officer: Director -
Education & Safeguarding

Executive Lead: Director of Children’s
Services & Education

Due Date: Ongoing

* Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 31



Recommendations raised in 2023/

Type of

Commercial in Confidence

2L

Recommendation recommend .Cr|ter|a Evidence Impact. or possible Actions agreed by Management
ation * impacted future impact
In 2023/24 Cabinet received updates on savings
delivery against the plan with a brief narrative Actions: Enhanced savings reporting
under each directorate. Arrangements could be will be included in the 2024/25
improved and would enable Cabinet to more quarterly revenue budget monitoring
effectively challenge performance if they reports. The changes will be reflected
included: Improving the from the Q2 report to Cabinet
The Council should enhance its *  RAG ratings indicating the risk in delivery of  information provided to (November 2021).
reporting arrangements for Financial savings decision makers . . . .
;)UIFN savings to Cabinet, ensuring that Improvement sustainability *  identification of balancing figures where enables them to more ’\RAeOsnF;onesr;belitOfﬁcer. Head of Financial
«Q all savings are accurately profiled. savings not yet identified effectively review and 9
2 * additional plans to mitigate slippage or challenge performance. Executive Lead: Executive Director -
ol shortfall in planned savings Resources
(o] . i i
| .dfetcnls on reasons for slippage. Due Date: November 2021
ndividual savings did not always take account
of the time it would take to deliver the savings.
Complex savings often require long lead in times.
Actions: Draft single transformation
The Council does not have a Council wide plan plan for whole <.:ounC|I will be. completed
o Do S ey
governance arrangements and together. Documenting all its transformation The & (g . Xb.u Itv afi rl' 'Z ¢ blication b
savinas delivered through activities within one plan should enable the € -ouncil does no cabinet and finalised for publication by
g X gn Council to enhance the governance have a strategic view of 1April 2025 at the latest.
IR2 transformation the Council should  Improvement Governance all transformation and

identify and document all its
transformation activities within
one plan.

arrangements and savings delivered through
transformation. It would also enable the Council
to prioritise its transformation activities and
allocate resources accordingly, including central
resource such as the Business Change Team.

is not able to effectively
prioritise resources.

Responsible Officer: Head of Business
Change Hub

Executive Lead: Director of People and
Change

Due Date: 1 April 2025

* Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 32



Commercial in Confidence

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Recommendation

Type of
recommend
ation *

Criteria
impacted

Impact or possible

Evidence future impact

Actions agreed by Management

Management should ensure that
recommendations raised within
Internal Audit reports are actioned
within the agreed timescale.

/ST abed
3

Improvement Governance

It is the responsibility of management to

ensure recommendations are actioned.

In 2023/24 Internal Audit reported that for MPprovements are not
only 13 out of 23 reviews undertaken the addressed in a timely
recommendations were implemented manner.

within the agreed timescales.

Actions: Council agrees that implementing
Internal Audit recommendations in a timely
manner are important. However, it already has a
robust follow-up process which includes a clear
escalation protocol and reporting framework to
senior management and the Audit Committee. We
are not aware of any significant outstanding risks
that have not already been reported and have a
governance process in place which it will continue
to enforce. If the Head of Audit believes further
escalation is required, he will report the outcome
of this to the Audit Committee and/or the
Corporate Management Team.

Responsible Officer: Head of Audit & Assurance

Executive Lead: Director of Financial Services,
Assurance & Pensions

Due Date: Ongoing

The Council should consider how
its governance arrangements
could be improved to ensure that
recommendations raised by
External Audit are addressed in a
timely manner.

IRY

Improvement Governance

In our previous AAR we raised 12
improvement recommendations, of which
only 5 (42%) have been fully
implemented, as set out on in Appendix C.
The Council should consider how it could
improve its governance arrangements to
ensure agreed recommendations are
actioned by management.

Improvements are not
addressed in a timely
manner.

Actions: The Audit Committee is able to follow-up
progress of external audit recommendations
where required and this can also be included in
the Annual Governance Review process.

Responsible Officer: Head of Audit & Assurance

Executive Lead: Director of Financial Services,
Assurance & Pensions

Due Date: Ongoing

* Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024

33



Commercial in Confidence

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Type of

Recommendation recommend .Crlterla Evidence Impact. or possible Actions agreed by Management
ation * impacted future impact
Actions: Aequus is updating its current three-year
business plan which will be presented, and subject
to agreement, approved by the Shareholder and
aligned with the approval of the BENES Housing
Plan. The Shareholder is provided with regular
updates on Business Plan progress as part of
Rv) scheduled meetings with the Shareholder,
8 including:
) * Monthly Meetings of the Chair, MD with
= Shareholder and Lead Officer.
ul The Aequus Group produce a three-year .
%) . S . : *  Quarterly updates from Aequus to the Council
The Council should consider if business plan. Current company articles .
; ; ) ; Investment Panel/Shareholder against
changlng the company articles of only require the business plan to be Business Plan Objectives.
association for Aequus would be approved on a three-year cycle not The shareholder is not *  Six monthly Interim and Annual General
beneficial to ensure that Governance  annually. We consider that more regular ‘ € share 3 eris no Meeting of the Companu with the Shareholder
RS shareholders are updated Improvement reporting in public meetings is required rjpt lupkt)o late on a . Six mor?thl dati P ¢ ch Serutiny Panel ’
. . . ! ular basis. y updating to the Scrutiny Pane
annually in a public meeting on to ensure the Shareholder is fully 9 . . .
) . . against Business Plan Objectives.
progress and any changes in the informed and able to make informed . .
. . . * Annual Reporting of Accounts to the Council
three-year business plan. decisions in an open and transparent . .
way Audit Committee.

The Council will explore whether it is practical and
an effective use of resources to amend the
company articles to formalise annual Shareholder
updates, given that these updates already
happen in practice.

Responsible Officer: Director-Capital & Housing

Executive Lead: Executive Director of Sustainable
Communities

Due Date: 31 December 2024

* Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 34



Recommendations raised in 2023

Type of

Commercial in Confidence

2L

Recommendation recommend .Crlterla Evidence Impact. or possible Actions agreed by Management
N impacted future impact
ation
The Council monitored and reported its
. o ) performance against its Corporate Plan based Actions: Put in place a new quarterl

In Odd'tfon to revising the |_'St of upon 37 Strategic Performance Indicators, monitori.n S sth for Cor (():]rote J
Strategic F?erformonce |”d'CC_’t°"S: however, 27 could not be rated due absence of Strate ger?ormonoe indiIZotors based
the Council §hou|d enhance 'tS_ data or targets. This lack of data and targets for onu c?gtsd indicators as a reed,b
data collection cmc? target-setting a significant number of indicators has limited the Implementation of this Cobﬁ’\et 9 J
process to ensure timely and | Council's ability to comprehensively assess its recommendation )

mprovement

Ré accurate data availability for all
key performance indicators,

Improving 3Es

performance against its Corporate Strategy.

should enable more

Responsible Officer: Head of

effective performance  Corporate Office
;JU allowing for a more comprehensive In July 2024 a report was presented to Cabinet monitorinz of the per I
C(% and timely assessment of the recommending revisions to the Council’s corporate priorities. Executive Lead: Executive Director -
— Council's performance against its Strategic Performance indicators to demonstrate Resources (S151]
al Corporate Strategy. better alignment and improve performance .
© assessment against the Corporate Strategy Due Date: O3 2024/25
2023-2027.
Actions: The Council has already
iled ti lan f h of it
The Council does not have a contract Ck:gmptlfizrit(i]ens (i]r?clligepdgvr\:itsi;(ai?sc ors
management framework. The Council maintains JP .
. . refreshed Procurement Strategy which
a list of key contracts however, the Council has includes improvements in Contract
The.Counoil shogld develop an not qgrged or regularly undertdl{en performance Management. These actions are to be
action plan and implement the monitoring of these contracts using agreed key . implemented over the long term (multi-
recommendations raised by the performance indicators. Effective contract years) and will be monitored internally
. . t coul A .
IR7 Contract Management Pioneer Improvement Improving 3Es  |n 2023/24 the Council participated in the management could via the Procurement Steering Group.

Programme, which includes
development of a contract
management framework.

Contract Management Pioneer Programme
delivered Local Partnerships, this programme
resulted in a range of recommendations,
including the need to develop a contract
management framework. We understand that
these recommendations remain outstanding.

result in reduced costs
and savings.

Responsible Officer: Head of
Procurement

Executive Lead: Director - Financial
Services, Assurance & Pensions

Due Date: Action Plan completed
September 2024, delivery ongoing

* Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 35



Appendices



Appendix A:

Responsibilities of the Council

Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money are accountable
for their stewardship of the resources entrusted to them.
They should account properly for their use of resources and

manage themselves well so that the public can be confident.

Financial statements are the main way in which local public
bodies account for how they use their resources. Local
public bodies are required to prepare and publish financial
statements setting out their financial performance for the
ear. To do this, bodies need to maintain proper accounting
ﬁecords and ensure they have effective systems of internal
%ontrol.

HAll local public bodies are responsible for putting in place

Heroper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness from their resources. This includes taking
properly informed decisions and managing key operational
and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives
and safeguard public money. Local public bodies report on
their arrangements, and the effectiveness with which the
arrangements are operating, as part of their annual
governance statement.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent] is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Chief Financial Officer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

The Chief Financial Officer is required to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with proper practices as
set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom. In preparing
the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer (or
equivalent] is responsible for assessing the Council’s ability
to continue as a going concern and use the going concern
basis of accounting unless there is an intention by
government that the services provided by the Council will no
longer be provided.

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

-

I
J

:
5
:
&

]

[

Commercial in confidence

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 37



Appendix B:

Commercial in Confidence

Value for Money Auditor responsibilities

&

Value for Money arrangements work

All councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness from their resources. This includes taking properly informed
decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their
objectives and safeguard public money. The audited body’s responsibilities are set out in
Appendix A.

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part
—©f their annual governance statement.

‘ander Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that

ithe Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and

ffectiveness in its use of resources. The National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice
'the Code'), requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

T3
Governance 8K

Arrangements for ensuring
that the Council makes
appropriate decisions in the
right way. This includes
arrangements for budget
setting and management,
risk management, and
ensuring the Council makes
decisions based on
appropriate information.

Improving economy,
efficiency and
effectiveness
Arrangements for improving
the way the Council delivers its
services. This includes
arrangements for
understanding costs and
delivering efficiencies and
improving outcomes for service
users.

Financial
Sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring
the Council can continue to
deliver services. This includes
planning resources to ensure
adequate finances and
maintain sustainable levels of
spending over the medium
term (3-5 years).

2023/24 is the fourth year of the Code, and we undertake and report the work in three phases
as set out in the Code.

Phase 1 - Planning and initial risk assessment

As part of our planning we assess our knowledge of the Council’s arrangements and whether
we consider there are any indications of risks of significant weakness. This is done against
each of the reporting criteria and continues throughout the reporting period

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Information which informs our risk assessment

Cumulative knowledge and experience of the
audited body

Annual Governance Statement and the
Head of Internal Audit annual opinion

The work of inspectorates and other regulatory

Interviews and discussions with key stakeholders .
bodies

Progress with implementing recommendations Key documents provided by the audited body

Findings from our opinion audit Our knowledge of the sector as a whole

Phase 2 - Additional risk-based procedures and evaluation

Where we identify risks of significant weakness in arrangements we will undertake further
work to understand whether there are significant weaknesses. We use auditor’s professional
judgement in assessing whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and ensure
that we consider any further guidance issued by the NAO.

Phase 3 - Reporting our commentary and recommendations

The Code requires us to provide a commentary on your arrangements which is detailed within
this report. Where we identify weaknesses in arrangements we raise recommendations. A
range of different recommendations can be raised by the Council’s auditors as follows:

* Statutory recommendations - actions which should be taken where significant
weaknesses are identified with arrangements. These are made under Section 24
(Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and require discussion at
full Council and a public response.

* Key recommendations - actions which should be taken by the Council where significant
weaknesses are identified within arrangements.

* Improvement recommendations - actions which should improve arrangements in place
but are not a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 38



Appendix C:
Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation Type of

recommendation *

Date raised

Progress to date

Addressed?

Commercial in Confidence

Further action?

€97 abed

The Council needs to take action to address

The aim of the original Safety Valve (SV) plan was to
breakeven in 2028/29 after receiving £19.22m from
the DfE. However, at the end of 2023/24 the Council
was £7.06m (cumulative deficit of £22.263m) behind
plan. As a result, in 2023/2Y4 the SV was suspended,
and the Council was put under enhanced measures.

This significant weakness
remains in place, we have

the shortfall in the Dedicated Schools Deficit November updated the key
Key A new management plan has been developed No .
(DSG) recovery plan. 2023 . . " recommendation to reflect
(SEND collaboration). This plan was submitted to current arranaements and
the DfE in May 2024, as yet the Council has not an be foundgon aae 9
received a response. The revised plan now extends page 7.
to 2030/31 (one year longer) and no longer breaks
even but plans to have a cumulative deficit of £63m
at the end of 2030/31.
In the outturn report for 2023/24 the Council No
The Council should monitor and report on the identified the planned total savings and income .
. . . 2 We have raised an
amount of non-recurrent savings planned and generation required (£14.38m). This included £12.48 - .
. November . . additional recommendation
delivered each year. Improvement of ongoing base budget savings (recurrent) and Yes . Y .
. . . . 2023 - on savings monitoring with
This information could be included in the £1.9m of one-off (non-recurrent savings). The budaet " 20
outturn reporting. Council reported that it delivered £9.66mon a Haget reports on page e
recurrent basis.
Going forward the Council should ensure it The Council's Transformation Programme includes
takes advantage of the Transformation service redesign and future savings, but is not yet at ..
. . . November . . A Implement the original
Programme to consider service redesign and  Improvement the stage where savings are included within the No .
2023 recommendation

identify savings for 2024/25 and beyond.

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 39



Appendix C:
Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation

Type of
recommendation *

Date raised

Progress to date

Addressed?

Commercial in Confidence

Further action?

The MTFS should be strengthened by the
inclusion of more detailed sensitivity and

The 2024/25 MTFS has incorporated +/- tolerance
on variable contract and demand pressures to test
budget sensitivity. We note that an external review

¥9T1 abed

scenario analysis of the key financial risks Improvement ggggmber undertaken in October 2023 on the Council’s Yes No
and key demand pressures facing the heritage assets recommended the Council perform
Council. regular scenario analyses on pricing strategies to
maximise revenue and adapt to market conditions.
. . In 2023/2Y4 the CAC received its first risk
The. corporate risk rteSt?r should be .regulctrlg management update in February 2024. This update
rﬁvuéwed by meAmct;.eré, eltheTr by %C]A%n?t or November included a copy of Corporate Risk Register as at No
the .orpora.te udit ornrmttee ( ) na Improvement 2023 January 2024. We understand the Council intend to Yes
public meeting, so that it is more easily . - .
. . review the Corporate Risk Register at every other
accessible to the public. .
meeting.
The Council should ensure the risk assessment The S151 Officer and Monitoring Officer have begun
undertaken to support a member decision is N to challenge the inclusion of a risk assessment as .
. e . ovember . Implement the original
included within the supporting papers. The Improvement 5023 part of the clearance process of reports before Partial recommendation
supporting member report should also set out submission to Committee. Committee papers do not
the key risks relating to the decision. routinely identify the risks.
The business plan for the Aequus Group The Aequus Group produce a three-year business The Council should
should be reviewed and approved by plan. Current company articles only require the consider if changing the
members on an annual basis, ahead of the business plan to be approved on a three-year cycle company articles would be
period to which it applies. If the Corporate Novermber not annually. However, to compensate for this beneficial to ensure that
Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel isto  Improvement 5023 arrangement the Council informed us that that No shareholders are updated

have an effective scrutiny role, its members
should have the opportunity to scrutinise the
business plan prior to its approval by Full

Council.

when Aequus publish their half year report (usually
around Nov.) they do a review of the annuall
business plan and see if there are any changes to
be made.

annually on progress and
any changes in the three-
year business plan. See
page 24.

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 40



Appendix C:
Follow-up of previous recommendations

Type of

Recommendation —_
recommendation

Date raised

Progress to date Addressed?

Commercial in Confidence

Further action?

The Council should identify the risks in
relation the Aequus Group and record these
risks on an appropriate risk register and
manage them accordingly.

The risks are likely to include both
reputational risks as a shareholder, as well as
financial risks.

Improvement

November
2023

The risk in relation to the Aequus Group is included
within the Housing Services Risk Register (May
2024) within the Resources Directorate.

Yes

No

G9T afed

The Council should improve the performance
management arrangements for the Aequus
Group. Specifically, it should:

e determine which formal and informal
member committees and groups should be
involved in the performance management
of the Aequus Group, what information
should be reviewed, the frequently and if
Cabinet should be involved

Improvement

* ensure officer performance management
is undertaken on a regular basis in line
with the Council’s own protocol for
governance of local authority trading
companies.

November
2023

The Council intends to review the governance
arrangements and as such has not implemented the
first part of this recommendation. All performance
management is undertaken by informal meetings.

Partial

Implement the remaining
elements of the
recommendation

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024

"



Appendix C:

Commercial in Confidence

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Recommendation

Type of
recommendation *

Date raised

Progress to date Addressed?

Further action?

The Council should work closely with the West
of England Combine Authority (WECA)] to

The Council continues to work actively at all levels
with WECA on key programmes within the
transformation programme, and has engaged with
the Solace work commissioned by the Combined
Authority. However, we understand that significant

Implement the original

support (within its remit) the implementation November ! R i
o 9 of the required improvements to the Improvement 2023 governcmce issues remain within WECA' These. . No recommendation.
Q . issues are not as a result of behaviours and failings
Q governance of WECA [as set out in the from the Council's perspective, but do have an
@ Combined Authority’s governance report). . persp ’ .
N impact on the effectiveness of the partnership.
(o)) Therefore, it is our view that this recommendation
© should remain.
The Council should ensure that Cabinet In 2023/24 Cabinet did not receive a quarter one
receive quarterly performance reports on its November performance report, but did receive quarter two in No
10 strategic objectives as set out in the Improvement 2023 November 2023, quarter three in February 2024 and Yes
Corporate Strategy. Quarter four in June 2024.
The Council should define its key partnerships
and establish a register of key partnerships. The Council maintains a list of outside bodies
The partnership register should include: (partnerships) on its website. It also maintains an
) o ) internal list of partnerships/outside organisations . .
1y * thestrategic objectives to which the Improvement November with which it engages. This list includes a priority Partial Fully implement the original
2023 recommendation.

partnerships contribute

* why the partnership is a significant
partnership in line with the Council’s
definition.

rating but has not been completed for a number of
organisations. This should be completed to address
alignment with its strategic objectives.

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 42



Commercial in Confidence

Appendix C:
Follow-up of previous recommendations

Type of

Recommendation —_
recommendation

Date raised Progress to date Addressed? Further action?

The Council should consider reviewing its

process for approval of contract waivers, to

ensure appropriate independence. ol t the original
. . mplement the origina

o e

should be reported periodically to members

at a public meeting, such as Corporate Audit

Committee.

19T pbed

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Bath and North East Somerset Council - Interim Auditors Annual Report | September 2024 43



89T abed

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Agenda Item 11

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Corporate Audit Committee

MEETING "

DATE: 25" September 2024

TITLE: Treasury Management Performance Report to 315t March 2024
WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Performance Against Prudential Indicators

Appendix 2 — The Council’'s Investment Position at 315t March 2024
Appendix 3 — Average monthly rate of return for 2023/24

Appendix 4 — The Council’s External Borrowing Position at 315t March 2024
Appendix 5 — Arlingclose’s Economic & Market Review Q4 of 2023/24
Appendix 6 — Interest & Capital Financing Budget Monitoring 2023/24
Appendix 7 — Summary Guide to Credit Ratings

Appendix 8 — Extract from Treasury Management Risk Register

1 THEISSUE

1.1 Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in
the Public Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code), which requires
the Council to approve a Treasury Management Strategy before the start of each
financial year, review performance during the year, and approve an annual report
within six months after the end of each financial year.

1.2 This report gives details of performance against the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy for 2023/24.

2 RECOMMENDATION
The Corporate Audit Committee agrees that.

2.1 The Treasury Management Report to 315t March 2024, prepared in accordance with
the CIPFA Treasury Code of Practice, is noted.

2.2 The Treasury Management Indicators to 315t March 2024 are noted.

Page 169



3 THE REPORT

Summary

3.1 The Council approved the 2023/24 Treasury Management Strategy at its meeting on
215t February 2023. The Council ended the year with total borrowing of £246m and
total investments of £32.1m

3.2 The Council’s Treasury Management Indicators for 2023/24 were agreed by Council
in February 2023 and performance against the key indicators is shown in Appendix
1. All indicators are within target levels.

3.3 The estimated average total investment return for 15t April 2023 to 315t March 2024 is
4.85%, which is in 0.10% below the benchmark rate of 4.95% for the period.

3.4 The Council’'s revenue budget outturn for interest & capital financing costs for
2023/24 was £3.4m under budget. This was due to higher than budgeted investment
returns as a result of interest rate rises since budget setting, a delay to borrowing
requirements and associated interest costs, early repayment of a LOBO loan and
also a saving on Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) due to capital spend reprofiling.
The breakdown of the 2023/24 revenue budget for interest and capital financing, and
the year-end position, is included in Appendix 6.

Economic Overview

3.5 The Council’s Treasury Management Advisor's economic and market review for
2023/24 is included in Appendix 5. The main headlines are as follows:

- Interest Rates have risen from 4.25% at 31st March 2023 to 5.25% at 31st March
2024.

- UK Inflation declined from 8.7% in April 2023 to 3.2% February 2024.

- The UK Economy entered a technical recession in the second half of 2023 and
while indications are of a rebound in Q1 2024, indications are that prior increases
in interest rates and higher price levels are depressing growth.

- Gilt yields continued to be volatile during 2023/24 with the 10 year UK benchmark
gilt rising from 3.44% to peak at 4.75% in August and ending the year at 3.92%.

- The 7-day average SONIA (Sterling Overnight rate) for 2023/24 is 4.95%. This is
the benchmark rate used by the council.

Page 170



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Borrowing

The Council’'s external borrowing as at 31t March 2024 totalled £246m and is
detailed in Appendix 4. The summary of the movement in borrowing during the
guarter and for the full financial year is shown in the following table:

Borrowing Portfolio Movements Financial
Quarter 4 Year
2023/24 2023/24
£m £m
Balance as at 15t April 2023 210.254
Balance as at 315t December 2023 216.987
New Loans Taken 30.000 50.000
LOBO Repayments - (10.000)
PWLB Annuity Loan principal repayments (0.977) (4.244)
Balance as at 315t March 2024 246.010 246.010

In October 2023 the Council took the opportunity to repay £10m of its LOBO (Lender
Option Borrower Option) borrowing when the lender gave notice it was going to
increase the interest rate. Two PWLB annuity loans were taken out to replace this at
a blended rate of 4.58%, just above the original LOBO rate but well below the
revised rate. As a result of this repayment, the Council made a one-off in year
benefit of £427,700 due to accounting requirements to smooth upfront benefits over
the life of the 50-year LOBO loan, which was released upon early repayment.

In addition to the £10m new loans taken out to replace the £10m LOBO repayment,
the Council also took out £40m in new debt at an average rate of 4.94%. This
borrowing was undertaken to maintain the Council’s liquidity, with £30m taken in
February and March 2024. As a result of delaying borrowing, and only borrowing
what we needed to for liquidity purposes, we have been able to make savings on
interest payable. For every week delaying borrowing of £10m, a saving of £9,400 at
the average borrowing rate of 4.94% was achieved.

The Council’'s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) as at 315t March 2024 was
£367.6m. This represents the Council’'s underlying need to borrow to finance capital
expenditure and demonstrates that the borrowing taken to date relates to funding
historical capital spend.

3.10 The difference between the CFR and the current borrowing of £246m represents

re-investment of the internal balances including reserves, reducing the in-year
borrowing costs in excess of the potential investment returns.

3.11 The Liability Benchmark in Appendix 1 illustrates the current borrowing and

current and projected CFR and liability benchmark. The benchmark is lower than the
CFR as it recognises the Council’s ability to internally borrow to fund capital and
therefore shows the optimum level of borrowing for the council that minimises risks
and costs of borrowing. At the 315t March 2024 borrowing is almost in line with the
benchmark and as we look forward borrowing is projected to fall below the
benchmark providing and this funding gap can be used as a guide to the optimal

Page 171



amount and length of borrowing required in the future to minimise interest rate and
credit risk.

3.12 Following Local Government Reorganisation in 1996, Avon County Council’s
residual debt is administered by Bristol City Council. All successor Unitary
Authorities make an annual contribution to principal and interest repayment, for
which there is a provision in the Council’s revenue budget. The amount of residual
debt outstanding as at 315t March 2024 apportioned to Bath & North East Somerset
Council is £9.664m. Since this borrowing is managed by an external body and
treated in the Council’s Statement of Accounts as a deferred liability, it is not
included in the borrowing figures referred to in paragraph 3.6.

Investments

3.13 As demonstrated by the liability benchmark in Appendix 1, the Council expects to
be a long-term borrower and new treasury investments are therefore primarily made
to manage day to day cash flows using short-term low risk instruments. The existing
portfolio of strategic pooled funds will be maintained to diversify risk into different
asset classes and maintain stable investment income over the medium to long term.

3.14 At 31st March 2024, the Council had £32.1m in investments, with £22.1m in short
term liquid investments and £10m in externally managed strategic funds. The
balance of deposits is set out in the charts in this Appendix 2, along with the
equivalent for the previous quarter and year for comparison.

3.15 Appendix 3 details the investment performance, showing the average rate of
interest earned over this period was 4.85%. The split between investment type is as

follows:
Investment Type Average
Investment

Return

Short Term Investments Total 4.95%

Long Term Strategic Investments:

CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund 4.37%

FP Foresight UK Infrastructure Income Fund 4.47%

VT Gravis Clean Energy Income Fund 4.46%

Long Term Strategic Investments Total (Est.) 4.43%

Overall Total 4.85%

3.16 At 31%t March 2024, the Council had short terms funds of £22.1m invested in
Money Market Funds and Bank call accounts. Over the course of the year the
Council earned 4.95% from these investments, which is equal to the 7-day SONIA
benchmark Rate of 4.95%.

3.17 The Council also had £10m invested in externally managed strategic pooled
funds, where the objectives are regular revenue income and long-term price stability.
These investments were made with the knowledge that there is a risk that capital
value could move both up and down on a frequent basis, and are intended to be held
over a long period of time.

Page 172



This investment includes £5m in Environmental Social and Governance (ESG)
focused funds and £5m in a property fund, as listed below.

e £5m CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund.
e £3m FP Foresight UK Infrastructure Income Fund.
e £2m VT Gravis Clean Energy Income Fund.

In 2023/24 these funds generated an average income return of 4.43%, which is used
to support services in year, and a 10.85% or £1.09m unrealised capital loss.

The total unrealised capital loss as at 315t March 2024 is 23.03% or £2.30m, a
breakdown of which is below:

CCLA VT Gravis

Local FP Foresight | Clean

Authorities | UK Energy

Property Infrastructure | Income

Fund Income Fund | Fund Total
Historic Cost 5,000,000 3,000,000 2,000,000 | 10,000,000
2023/24
Fair Value at 31/03/2024 4,177,465 2,173,120 1,346,161 | 7,696,746
In Year % Value Lost/
(Gained) 3.31% 13.79% 25.30% 10.85%
Cumulative % Value Lost
/ (Gained) 16.45% 27.56% 32.69% 23.03%
2022/23
Fair Value at 31/03/2023 4,342,727 2,586,831 1,852,212 | 8,781,770
In Year % Value Lost/
(Gained) 17.14% 15.95% 9.68% 15.29%
Cumulative % Value Lost
/ (Gained) 13.15% 13.77% 7.39% 12.18%

This change in valuation does not currently have an impact on the revenue account
or usable reserves due to a statutory override, and gains/losses will instead go to an
unusable reserve. These will only be charged to revenue iffwhen the Council’s
holding in the pooled funds are sold, or if the Government removes the existing
override. The next review of the statutory override will take place prior to the end of
2024/25. The Council has in place a Capital Financing Reserve which can be used
to mitigate any future revenue impacts should the statutory override be removed.

3.18 Regarding the Council’s Property Fund investment, the commercial property
market improved marginally in 2023 and was more stable, in contrast to the very
challenging backdrop of 2022. Low transactional volumes were a constraint on
valuations and made prospective sellers and buyers more cautious. Although many
sectors lacked momentum, there was growing confidence in the longer-term outlook
as occupier demand and rental markets held up. Industrial and retail warehousing
sectors remained strong, but retail and office sectors remained weak, the latter
continuing to be hindered by low occupancy from hybrid working practices.

3.19 Regarding the Council’s Infrastructure and Clean Energy Funds, macroeconomic
factors of persistent inflation and consequent rising interest rates were the main
drivers of volatility and share price weakness. Outflows from listed real assets and
equities more broadly, towards higher-yielding fixed income investments and cash,

Page 173



were also a further factor which contributed to depressed capital values. Values
have however begun to stabilise as inflation decelerates and the risk of higher
interest rates diminishes, together with a positive reassessment of infrastructure
assets as energy price subsidy regimes also begin to fall away.

Despite the challenging macro environment, the funds’ underlying portfolio
companies have continued to deliver on dividend targets and the funds’ dividend
distributions per share have been relatively steady in the face of market turbulence.
Many companies in the funds’ portfolios, which focus on clean energy,
decarbonisation and the building of digital and social infrastructure, continue to
benefit from long-term contracted revenue streams, some with a high degree of
inflation linkage.

Budget Implications

3.20 The Council’'s revenue budget outturn for interest & capital financing costs for
2023/24 was £3.4m under budget. This was due to higher than budgeted investment
returns as a result of interest rate rises since budget setting, a delay to borrowing
requirements and associated interest costs, early repayment of a LOBO loan and
also a saving on Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) due to capital spend reprofiling.
The breakdown of the 2023/24 revenue budget for interest and capital financing, and
the year-end position, is included in Appendix 6.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 This report is for information only.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)
5.1 The financial implications are contained within the body of the report.
6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 The Council’s lending & borrowing list is regularly reviewed during the financial year
and credit ratings are monitored throughout the year. All lending/borrowing
transactions are within approved limits and with approved institutions. Investment
and borrowing advice is provided by our Treasury Management consultants,
Arlingclose.

6.2 The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice requires
the Council nominate a committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of
the Treasury Management Strategy and policies. The Corporate Audit Committee
carries out this scrutiny.

6.3 In addition, the Council maintain a risk register for Treasury Management activities,
which is regularly reviewed and updated where applicable during the year. An extract
from the risk register, detailing how the top 5 risks are managed, is included as
Appendix 8.

7 EQUALITIES

7.1 As this report contains performance information for noting only, an Equality Impact
Assessment is not considered necessary.

Page 174



8 CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 The Council will continue to avoid any direct treasury management investments in
fossil fuel related companies and will engage with its advisors to explore and assess
the potential for any future investment opportunities in funds with a Renewable
Energy & Sustainability focus as these products continue to be developed by the
market in response to the Climate & Nature Emergency agenda.

8.2 An ESG section has been included the Treasury Management Strategy document for
2023/24, with the treasury team monitoring investment options permitted under the
new guidelines.

8.3 The Council holds £5m in longer term investments, split across two ESG focussed
Strategic Funds, as detailed under 3.17.

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
9.1 None
10 CONSULTATION

10.1 Consultation has been carried out with the Cabinet Member for Resources,
Executive Director - Resources and Monitoring Officer.

Contact Claire Read - 01225 47 7109; Jamie Whittard - 01225 47 7213
person Claire Read@BATHNES.GOV.UK: Jamie Whittard@BATHNES.GOV.UK

Background 2023/24 Treasury Management & Investment Strategy
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Page 175



mailto:Claire_Read@BATHNES.GOV.UK
mailto:Jamie_Whittard@BATHNES.GOV.UK

APPENDIX 1
Performance against Treasury Management Indicators agreed in Treasury
Management Strategy Statement

1. Treasury Borrowing limits

These limits include current commitments and proposals in the budget report for capital
expenditure, plus additional headroom over & above the operational limit for unusual cash
movements.

The Authorised limits for external debt include current commitments and proposals in the
budget report for capital expenditure, plus additional headroom over and above the
operational limit for unusual cash movements.

The Operational boundary for external debt is based on the same estimates as the
authorised limit but without the additional headroom for unusual cash movements. This
level also factors in the proposed approach to use internal cash-flow and future capital
receipts as the preferred financing method for the capital programme.

2023/24 Actual as at
Prudential 31st March
Indicator 2024
Operational boundary — borrowing. £433m £246.01m
Operational boundary — other long-term liabilities £4m £0m
Operational boundary — TOTAL £437m £246.01m
Authorised limit — borrowing. £462m £246.01m
Authorised limit — other long-term liabilities. £4m £0m
Authorised limit —= TOTAL £466m £246.01m

2. Security: Average Credit Rating*

The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring
the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. A summary guide to
credit ratings is set out at Appendix 7.

2023/24 Actual as at
Prudential 315t March
Indicator 2024
Rating Rating
Minimum Portfolio Average Credit Rating A- AA+

* The calculation excludes the strategic investment in the CCLA Local Authority Property Fund and ESG focussed Investment Funds,
which are unrated.

Page 176



3. Liquidity

The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by
monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling
three-month period, without additional borrowing.

2023/24 Minimum Date of
Liquidity risk indicator Prudential | During year | minimum
Indicator
Minimum total Cash Available within 3 months £15m £15.6m 13-Mar-24

4. Interest rate exposures
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The upper
limit represents the maximum one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates.

2023/24 Actual as at
Prudential 31%t March
Indicator 2024
— - . o v
_Up_per limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise +-£1m _£0.096m
in interest rates
— - . 5
_Up_per limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall - £1m £0.096m
in interest rates

The impact of this limit is that the Council should never be holding a maturity adjusted net
debt / investment position on variable rates of more than £100m.

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing
loans and investments will be replaced at new market rates, which includes amounts
which are maturing each year in PWLB annuity loans.

5. Maturity Structure of borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Council’'s exposure to refinancing risk.

Upper Lower Actual as at
Limit Limit 31st March
2024
% % %
Under 12 months 50 Nil 4.1
12 months and within 24 months 50 Nil 8.1
24 months and within 5 years 75 Nil 0.0
5 years and within 10 years 75 Nil 6.1
10 years and within 25 years 100 o5 53.3
Over 25 years 100 284

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is
the earliest date that the lender can demand repayment. For LOBO’s, this is shown at the
date of maturity as the council would only consider repaying these loans if the lenders
exercised their option to alter the interest rate.

Page 177




6. Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 days
The purpose of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring
losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term principal
sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be:

2023/24 Actual as at
Price risk indicator Prudential 31st March

Indicator 2024
Limit on principal invested beyond 315t March 2024 £50m £10m*
Limit on principal invested beyond 315t March 2025 £20m £10m*
Limit on principal invested beyond 315t March 2026 £10m £10m*

*The Council includes the CCLA LA Property Fund & two long term ESG focussed Investment Funds against

this indicator as they are both held as Long-Term Strategic Investments.

7. Liability Benchmark

The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is likely
to be a long-term borrower or long-term investor in the future, and so shape its strategic
focus and decision making. The liability benchmark itself represents an estimate of the
cumulative amount of external borrowing the Council must hold to fund its current capital
and revenue plans while keeping treasury investments at the minimum level required to
manage day-to-day cash flow.

Liability Benchmark - Bath & North East Somerset

600

500 /,\

) / \
[
S N
-
,’I ‘\\
300 /7 R
/’ \\\
i
1 \\
~
ALY
~
~

200

100

0

2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046 2048 2050 2052 2054 2056 2058 2060 2062 2064 2066 2068 2070 2072 2074

B Fixed rate loans LOBO loans

Loans CFR ——— Liability benchmark

== = Net loans requirement

As at 315t March 2024, there is pretty much no difference between the actual borrowing
(the grey slopes) and the Liability Benchmark (the solid red line) and both are well below
the Capital Financing Requirement which is the absolute maximum we can borrow for
capital purposes. Looking forward the actual borrowing will fall below the liability
benchmark and this funding gap can be used as a guide to the optimal amount and length
of borrowing required to minimise interest rate and credit risk.

Page 178



APPENDIX 2

The Council’s Investment position at 315t March 2024

The term of investments is as follows:

Term Remaining Comparator
Balance at Balance at Balance at
31st March 2024 315t December 315t March 2023
2023

£m Em £m
Notice (instant access funds) 22.10 24.10 27.30
Up to 1 month 0.00 5.00 5.00
1 month to 3 months 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 months to 6 months 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 months to 12 months 0.00 0.00 0.00
Strategic Funds 10.00 10.00 10.00
Total 32.10 39.10 42.30

The investment figure is made up as follows:
Comparator
Balance at Balance at Balance at
31st March 2024 31t December 31t March 2023
2023

£m £m £m
B&NES Council 29.95 35.63 40.45
Schools 2.15 3.47 1.86
Total 32.10 39.10 42.30

The Council had a total average net positive balance of £49.69m during the period

April 2023 to March 2024.

Page 179




Chart 1: Council Investment Balances

60,000,000

50,000,000

40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000
10,000,000

0

Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

BE UK Banks EMoney Market Funds [ Foreign Banks ODMO [ Other Local Authorities [ Strategic funds

Chart 1a: Council Investments as at 31st March 2024- £32.1m

UK Banks
£500,000
- 1.6%

Strategic funds
£10,000,000
31.2%

Other Local Authorities -

£0
0.0%
r
// | __ Money Market Funds
/ £21,600,000
Foreign Banks " LDMO 67.3%
£0 £0
0.0% 0.0%

Page 180




Chart 2: Council Investments Per Lowest Equivalent Long Term Credit

Rating

60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000
10,000,000
0

Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23

W AAA Rated @ AA- Rated O A+ Rated O A Rated

B A- Rated M BBB+ Rated B Unrated Strategic Funds B Other Local Authorities

Mar-24

Chart 2a: Council Investments Per Lowest Equivalent Long Term Credit Rating as at
31st March 2024 £32.1m

Other Local Authorities

£0
0.0%
Unrated Strategic Funds
£10,000,000
31.2%
A- Rated AAA Rated
£0 £21,600,000
0.0% _67.3%
ARated -
£0
0.0%
|
AA- Rated
A+ Rated / £500,000
f0o 1.6%
0.0%

Page 181




APPENDIX 3

Average rate of return on investments for 2023/24

Benchmark = Performance
Average rate of Average 7 Day against
interest earned SONIA rate Benchmark
April 2023 4.16% 4.20% -0.04%
May 2023 4.28% 4.41% -0.13%
June 2023 4.47% 4.64% -0.17%
July 2023 4.79% 4.93% -0.14%
August 2023 4.98% 5.18% -0.20%
September 2023 5.09% 5.02% 0.07%
October 2023 5.11% 5.19% -0.07%
November 2023 5.10% 5.17% -0.07%
December 2023 5.09% 5.15% -0.06%
January 2024 5.13% 5.14% -0.01%
February 2024 5.01% 5.15% -0.14%
March 2024 4.97% 5.15% -0.18%
Average 4.85% 4.95% -0.10%

For comparison, the average rate of return on investments in 2022/23 was as

follows:
Benchmark = Performance
Average rate of Average 7 Day against
interest earned SONIA rate Benchmark
April 2022 0.90% 0.67% +0.23%
May 2022 1.11% 0.94% +0.18%
June 2022 1.21% 1.13% +0.08%
July 2022 1.34% 1.21% +0.13%
August 2022 1.63% 1.67% -0.04%
September 2022 1.85% 2.00% -0.15%
October 2022 2.16% 2.32% -0.16%
November 2022 2.94% 2.94% 0.00%
December 2022 3.42% 3.31% +0.11%
January 2023 3.47% 3.51% -0.04%
February 2023 3.74% 3.95% -0.21%
March 2023 3.85% 4.04% -0.19%
Average 2.09% 2.30% -0.21%

Page 182




€8T abed

6.00%

5.00%

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

1.00%

0.00%

Average Return on Investments 2022/23 & 2023/24 compared to Benchmark

xJ
)
]
)
t’?
k-4
97

m"“m'”ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ?’ﬁ?:{”i"g:ﬁ'ﬁ?’ﬁ?”"f’%:f’{’%

7 ~ A
< ’ < : : ’ : v : < : ; : :
O N T R Y- B S > O O N R L . O

Benchmark = Average 7 Day LIBID rate +0.05% (7 Day SOMIA) (source: Arlingclose)



APPENDIX 4

Council’s External Borrowing at 315t March 2024

Amount
outstanding @ Amount
31st December | Change in outstanding @

2023 Quarter 31st March 2024 Interest
Lender £ £ £ Start date End date rate
Long term
PWLB489142 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 | 15/10/2004 | 15/10/2034 | 4.75%
PWLB497233 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 12/05/2010 | 15/08/2035 | 4.55%
PWLB497234 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 12/05/2010 | 15/02/2060 [ 4.53%
PWLB498834 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 05/08/2011 | 15/02/2031 | 4.86%
PWLB498835 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 | 05/08/2011 | 15/08/2029 | 4.80%
PWLB498836 15,000,000 - 15,000,000 | 05/08/2011 | 15/02/2061 | 4.96%
PWLB503684 5,300,000 - 5,300,000 | 29/01/2015 | 08/04/2034 | 2.62%
PWLB503685 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 29/01/2015 | 08/10/2064 | 2.92%
PWLB505122 15,176,672 - 15,176,672 | 20/06/2016 | 20/06/2041 | 2.36%
PWLB508126 8,277,206 - 8,277,206 | 06/12/2018 | 20/06/2043 | 2.38%
PWLB508202 9,419,860 - 9,419,860 [ 12/12/2018 | 20/06/2068 | 2.59%
PWLB508224 4,126,469 - 4,126,469 | 13/12/2018 | 20/06/2043 | 2.25%
PWLB505744 7,614,067 (198,511) 7,415,556 | 24/02/2017 | 15/08/2039 | 2.28%
PWLB505966 7,913,674 (173,466) 7,740,207 | 04/04/2017 | 15/02/2042 | 2.26%
PWLB506052 6,724,810 (147,547) 6,577,262 | 08/05/2017 | 15/02/2042 | 2.25%
PWLB506255 6,520,109 - 6,520,109 [ 10/08/2017 | 10/04/2067 | 2.64%
PWLB506729 8,103,207 - 8,103,207 | 13/12/2017 | 10/10/2042 | 2.35%
PWLB506995 8,136,929 - 8,136,929 [ 06/03/2018 | 10/10/2042 | 2.52%
PWLB506996 8,571,644 - 8,571,644 [ 06/03/2018 | 10/10/2047 | 2.62%
PWLB507749 8,450,118 (165,489) 8,284,629 [ 10/09/2018 | 20/07/2043 | 2.42%
PWLB508485 19,027,920 (114,927) 18,912,993 | 11/02/2019 [ 20/07/2068 | 2.52%
PWLB509840 8,624,824 (177,356) 8,447,468 | 04/09/2019 | 20/07/2044 | 1.40%
PW677322 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 [ 22/11/2023 | 22/11/2038 | 4.88%
PW687799 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 [ 29/12/2023 | 29/12/2038 | 4.28%
PW700594 - | 10,000,000 10,000,000 | 09/02/2024 | 09/02/2039 | 4.54%

Page 184




Amount
outstanding @

Amount

31st December | Change in outstanding @

2023 Quarter 31st March 2024 Interest
Lender £ £ £ Start date End date rate
KBC Bank N.V * 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 08/10/2004 | 08/10/2054 [ 4.50%
KBC Bank N.V * 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 08/10/2004 | 08/10/2054 [ 4.50%
Commerzbank AG
Frankfurt* - - - | 27/04/2005 | 27/04/2055 | 4.50%
Medium term
West of England
Combined Authority 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 28/04/2023 | 26/04/2024 | 4.45%
Portsmouth C.C. 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 | 28/04/2023 | 26/04/2024 | 4.45%
PW711937 - | 10,000,000 10,000,000 | 15/03/2024 | 30/04/2025 | 5.42%
PW713077 - 5,000,000 5,000,000 | 20/03/2024 | 30/04/2025 | 5.37%
PW715777 - 5,000,000 5,000,000 | 28/03/2024 | 30/04/2025 | 5.34%
Total Borrowing 216,987,507 | 29,022,704 246,010,210

*All LOBO'’s (Lender Option / Borrower Option) have reached the end of their fixed interest
period and have reverted to the variable rate of 4.50%. The lender has the option to
change the interest rate at 6 monthly intervals. Should the lender use the option to change

the rate, then at this point the borrower has the option to repay the loan without penalty.

The "Change in Quarter” movement on some of the PWLB loans reflects that these loans
have an annuity repayment profile, so repayments of principal are made on a 6 monthly
basis throughout the life of the loans.

Page 185




APPENDIX 5: Arlingclose Economic & Market Review

Economic background: UK inflation continued to decline from the 8.7% rate seen at the
start of 2023/24. By the last quarter of the financial year headline consumer price inflation
(CPI) had fallen to 3.4% in February, but was still above the Bank of England’s 2% target
at the end of the period. The core measure of CPI, i.e. excluding food and energy, also
slowed in February to 4.5% from 5.1% in January, a rate that had stubbornly persisted for
three consecutive months.

The UK economy entered a technical recession in the second half of 2023, as growth rates
of -0.1% and -0.3% respectively were recorded for Q3 and Q4. Over the 2023 calendar
year GDP growth only expanded by 0.1% compared to 2022. Of the recent monthly data,
the Office for National Statistics reported a rebound in activity with economy expanding
0.2% in January 2024. While the economy may somewhat recover in Q1 2024, the data
suggests that prior increases in interest rates and higher price levels are depressing
growth, which will continue to bear down on inflation throughout 2024.

Labour market data provided a mixed message for policymakers. Employment and
vacancies declined, and unemployment rose to 4.3% (3mth/year) in July 2023. The same
month saw the highest annual growth rate of 8.5% for total pay (i.e. including bonuses)
and 7.8% for regular pay growth (i.e. excluding bonuses). Thereafter, unemployment
began to decline, falling to 3.9% (3mth/year) in January and pay growth also edged lower
to 5.6% for total pay and 6.1% for regular pay, but remained above the Bank of England’s
forecast.

Having begun the financial year at 4.25%, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy
Committee (MPC) increased Bank Rate to 5.25% in August 2023 with a 3-way split in the
Committee’s voting as the UK economy appeared resilient in the face of the dual
headwinds of higher inflation and interest rates. Bank Rate was maintained at 5.25%
through to March 2024. The vote at the March was 8-1 in favour of maintaining rates at
this level, with the single dissenter preferring to cut rates immediately by 0.25%. Although
financial markets shifted their interest rate expectations downwards with expectations of a
cut in June, the MPC’s focus remained on assessing how long interest rates would need to
be restrictive in order to control inflation over the medium term.

In the Bank’s quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) released in August 2023 the near-
term projection for services price inflation was revised upwards, goods price inflation
widespread across products, indicating stronger domestic inflationary pressure with
second-round effects in domestic prices and wages likely taking longer to unwind than
they did to emerge. In the February 2024 MPR the Bank’s expectations for the UK
economy were positive for the first half of 2024, with a recovery from the mild recession in
calendar H2 2023 being gradual. Headline CPI was forecast to dip below the 2% target
quicker than previously thought due to declining energy prices, these effects would hold
inflation slightly above target for much of the forecast horizon.

Following this MPC meeting, Arlingclose, the authority’s treasury adviser, maintained its
central view that 5.25% remains the peak in Bank Rate and that interest rates will most

Page 186



likely start to be cut later in H2 2024. The risks in the short-term are deemed to be to the
downside as a rate cut may come sooner than expected, but then more broadly balanced
over the medium term.

The US Federal Reserve also pushed up rates over the period, reaching a peak range of
between 5.25-5.50% in August 2023, where it has stayed since. US policymakers have
maintained the relatively dovish stance from the December FOMC meeting and at the
meeting in March, economic projections pointed to interest rates being cut by a total of
0.75% in 2024.

Following a similarly sharp upward trajectory, the European Central Bank hiked rates to
historically high levels over period, pushing its main refinancing rate to 4.5% in September
2023, where it has remained. Economic growth in the region remains weak, with a
potential recession on the cards, but inflation remains sticky and above the ECB’s target,
putting pressure on policymakers on how to balance these factors.

Financial markets: Sentiment in financial markets remained uncertain and bond yields
continued to be volatile over the year. During the first half of the year, yields rose as
interest rates continued to be pushed up in response to rising inflation. From October they
started declining again before falling sharply in December as falling inflation and dovish
central bank attitudes caused financial markets to expect cuts in interest rates in 2024.
When it emerged in January that inflation was stickier than expected and the BoE and the
Federal Reserve were data dependent and not inclined to cut rates soon, yields rose once
again, ending the period some 50+ bps higher than when it started.

Over the financial year, the 10-year UK benchmark gilt yield rose from 3.44% to peak at
4.75% in August, before then dropping to 3.44% in late December 2023 and rising again to
3.92% (28" March 2024). The Sterling Overnight Rate (SONIA) averaged 4.96% over the
period to 315t March.

Credit review: In response to an improving outlook for credit markets, in January 2024
Arlingclose moved away from its previous temporary stance of a 35-day maximum
duration and increased its advised recommended maximum unsecured duration limit on all
banks on its counterparty list to 100 days.

Earlier in the period, S&P revised the UK sovereign outlook to stable and upgraded
Barclays Bank to A+. Moody’s also revised the UK outlook to stable, Handelsbanken’s
outlook to negative, downgraded five local authorities, and affirmed HSBC’s outlook at
stable while upgrading its Baseline Credit Assessment. Fitch revised UOB’s and BMO’s
outlooks to stable.

In the final quarter of the financial year, Fitch revised the outlook on the UK sovereign
rating to stable from negative based on their assessment that the risks to the UK’s public
finances had decreased since its previous review in October 2022, the time of the mini-
budget.

Page 187



Moody’s, meanwhile, upgraded the long-term ratings of German lenders Helaba, Bayern
LB and LBBW on better solvency and capital positions, despite challenges from a slowing
German economy and exposure to the commercial real estate sector. Moody’s also
upgraded or placed on review for an upgrade, Australian banks including ANZ, CBA NAB
and Westpac on the back of the introduction of a new bank resolution regime.

Credit default swap prices began the financial year at elevated levels following the fallout
from Silicon Valley Bank and collapse/takeover of other lenders. From then the general
trend was one of falling prices and UK lenders’ CDS ended the period at similar levels to
those seen in early 2023. Earlier in the year some Canadian lenders saw their CDS prices
rise due to concerns over a slowing domestic economy and housing market, while some
German lenders were impacted by similar economic concerns and exposure to
commercial real estate towards the end of the period, with LBBW remaining the most
elevated.

Heightened market volatility is expected to remain a feature, at least in the near term and,
credit default swap levels will be monitored for signs of ongoing credit stress. As ever, the
institutions and durations on the Authority’s counterparty list recommended by Arlingclose
remain under constant review.

Page 188



APPENDIX 6

Interest & Capital Financing Costs — Budget Monitoring 2023/24

YEAR END POSITION

Actual

: Budgeted Actual over or

April 2023 to March 2024 Spend or  Spend or (under)
(Income) (Income) spend ADV/FAV
£'000 £'000 £'000

Interest & Capital Financing
- Debt Costs 8,872 7,026 (1,846) FAV
- Internal Repayment of Loan Charges (16,080) (16,080) 0 -
- Ex Avon Debt Costs 910 900 (10) FAV
- Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 11,164 10,184 (980) FAV
- Interest on Balances* (1,450) (2,011) (561) FAV
Total 3,416 19 (3,397) FAV

*this is after the transfer of £10,000 to the Capital Financing Reserve to go towards smoothing
any gains or losses on valuation of the strategic investment funds, should the statutory override
not be extended when it currently runs out on 31/05/2025

Page 189




APPENDIX 7

Summary Guide to Credit Ratings

Rating Details

AAA Highest credit quality — lowest expectation of default, which is unlikely to be
adversely affected by foreseeable events.

AA Very high credit quality - expectation of very low default risk, which is not likely to
be significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

A High credit quality - expectations of low default risk which may be more
vulnerable to adverse business or economic conditions than is the case for
higher ratings.

BBB Good credit quality - expectations of default risk are currently low but adverse
business or economic conditions are more likely to impair this capacity.

BB Speculative - indicates an elevated vulnerability to default risk, particularly in the
event of adverse changes in business or economic conditions over time.

B Highly speculative - indicates that material default risk is present, but a limited
margin of safety remains. Capacity for continued payment is vulnerable to
deterioration in the business and economic environment.

CCC Substantial credit risk - default is a real possibility.

CcC Very high levels of credit risk - default of some kind appears probable.

C Exceptionally high levels of credit risk - default is imminent or inevitable.

RD Restricted default - indicates an issuer that has experienced payment default on
a bond, loan, or other material financial obligation but which has not entered into
bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation, or other formal
winding-up procedure, and which has not otherwise ceased operating.

D Default - indicates an issuer that has entered into bankruptcy filings,
administration, receivership, liquidation, or other formal winding-up procedure, or
which has otherwise ceased business.

Page 190




APPENDIX 8

Extract from Treasury Management Risk Register — Top 5 Risks

Current Risk Score Trend
Likelihood Impact
i Description This Management Action
W Period
[+ Periods Ago
M L 1] 2] 3
1 ROG |Inflation Risk
The rigk that prevailing levels of inflation cause an
unexpected or unoudgeted burden on the Liaise with Chief Finance Officer to ensure Inflation both current and
organisation’s finances, against which the ) 12 E projected forms part of the medium term financial planning framewaork.
organisation has failed to protect itself adequately.
2 RO9 Iﬁ??:{hiﬁigﬂllgtt?]?yz‘r;zzéggi?gisotplannedforand Read, resond and calculate the impact of Local Government accounting,
adversely impact the Council's budget and or ability to investment and capital financing / borrowing consultations have on
b 3 12 12 treasury management.
Y] orrow Plan for the implementation of new regulations, conditions and accounting
é treatment
NN 3 RO4 |InterestRate Risk . Monitor interest rates on a monthly basis and compare with budget to
@ The risk that fluctuations in the levels of interest rates determine impact on Council finances and report through manthly
=B create an unexpected or unbudgeted burden on the Treasury Dashboard.
organisation’s finances, against which the Report implication of interest rate changes to Cabinet as part of quarterly
organisation has failed to protect itself adequately 3 3 9 Treasury Management Performance Report.
: = Explore alternative potential investment products following new freedoms -
including corporate bonds, gilts, Cerificate of Deposits etc.
Discussion with our treasury advisors on any new barrowing in terms of
duration and timing given the current valatility in the gilt market and PWLB
interest rates.
4 RO1 |Credit & Counterparty Risk - Default Risk ) i i i
The risk of failure by a third party to meet its pomplete annual review of Counterparty List with external advisors to feed
contractual obligations to the organisation under an into Treasury Management Sirategy. _ _
investment, borrowing, capital, project or partnership Re_gular revu_aw of counterparty financial s_tandlng through use ofcrelle
financing, particularly as a result of the third party's 2 8 8 ra_tlngs,_creqn default swap rates and natlo_nal press coyerage aljd liaison
diminished creditworthiness, and the resulting with Chl_ef F_mance Officer and external E!dwsors to consider any issues |
detrimental effect on the organisation’s capital or change in circumstances of counterparties.
current (revenue) resources.
5 | RO8 |Legal & Regulatory Risk - Acting Qutside Powers Obtain independent review of the council's strategy and polices to ensure
The risk thatthe organisation itself, or a third party compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management
with which it is dealing in its treasury management Local Authorties (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations,
activities, fails to actin accordance with its legal 2 s 5 Local Government Act and any other regulation or guidance as specified
powers or regulatory requirements, and that the by the Secretary of State..
organisation suffers losses accordingly. Stay on top of Government and CIPFA consultations on Treasury and
Capital Financing regulations




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 192



Agenda Item 12

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | Corporate Audit Committee

MEETING AGENDA
25th September 2024 ITEM

DATE: P NUMBER

TITLE: Internal Audit — Update Report (Planned Work 2024/25)

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1 - Audit Reviews Position Statement (2024/25)

Appendix 2 — Follow-Up Reviews

1 THEISSUE

1.1 This report is to provide an update on the work of the Internal Audit team and
progress made in delivering the Annual Audit Assurance Plan 2024/25 which was
presented and approved by the Committee on 15t May 2024.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Corporate Audit Committee notes the progress in delivery of the 2024/25
Annual Audit Assurance Plan.

3 THE REPORT

3.1 The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2024/25 was presented to the Corporate Audit
Committee on the 15t May 2024.

3.2 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK UPDATE
3.2.1 Internal Audit Plan — Half Year Review

3.2.2 This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during 2024/25 (to
September 2024), this includes planned and unplanned reviews from the
2024/25 audit plan along with carried forward work from 2023/24 and associated
work to support the internal control framework.

3.2.3The 2024/25 Internal Audit Plan was approved in May 2024 and Appendix 1
records progress to 30" August 2024.

3.2.4To support delivery of the plan we are pleased to report that in June / July we
appointed an Auditor and a Senior Auditor. They started their employment with
Printed on recycled paper Page 193




the Council in August and September respectively and this provides the team
with the resource capacity to fulfil the B&NES Internal Audit work plan.

3.2.5 Audit Reviews in the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan carried forward into
2024/25 (Audit Reports published in 2024/25) - As at the date of reporting to
the last Audit Committee (15t May 2024), one audit review was at draft reporting
stage and five others were still ‘work in progress’. All six have been completed
with 1 at draft reporting stage. For information the Assurance Levels assigned
for each are recorded below.

Audit
Review

Scope / Objective of Review

Assurance
Level

Housing
Services -
Management
of Housing
Rent &
Charges

1) To ensure that charges are raised
accurately and timely in respect of all
agreed rent and associated service charges
for all relevant housing schemes.

2) To ensure that all income is accurately
recorded in Agresso to allow each scheme
to be effectively reported and monitored.

3) To ensure that all debts are effectively
monitored, controlled and recovered in
accordance with the formally adopted
systems and processes.

4

(Substantial)

Property
Maintenance
- Corporate
&
Commercial
Estates

1)Ensure that programmed maintenance is
carried out timely to protect property assets.
2)Ensure that Corporate and Commercial
Estate properties are maintained through a
programme of planned maintenance based
on accurate / timely surveys and an
assessment of risk.

3)Ensure fairness and transparency
regarding the award of works and value for
money is obtained.

4)Ensure that the condition of the Corporate
and Commercial Estate property is
monitored, and assurance reports are
presented to individual responsible Officers
and Groups / Committees (Officer &
Member).

5)Ensure that property maintenance
expenditure is monitored against approved
budgets.

2

(Limited)

User Access
Management
- Starters,

1) Starters: To ensure timely network
access is provided in line with officers’
specific responsibilities and approved by an

Printed on recycled paper

Page 194




Leavers authorised individual/team. (Reasonable)

(Council) 2) Movers: To ensure network access rights
and Post | are reprovisioned in line with new
Changes responsibilities where applicable and

approved by an authorised individual/team.
3) Leavers: To ensure network access is
revoked in a timely manner e.g., within 2
weeks of departure. Note — removal of
network access includes removal of access
to approved council applications.

Firewalls 1) To avoid unauthorised access and
exploitation of systems and networks.

2) To avoid disruption of network and 4
information systems operations. (Substantial)
3) To avoid theft and disclosure of data and
information.
Malware and 1) To avoid disruption of network and
Ransomware | information systems operations. 4

2) To avoid theft and disclosure of data and
information. o (Substantial)
3) To ensure that the organisation can
recover from a malware or ransomware

attack.
Corporate 1) Wi-Fi networks are available and have
Wi-Fi sufﬂmgnt_ clapaC|ty to cope with the Draft Report
Networks organisation's demands.

2) Confidentiality and integrity of Wi-Fi
network traffic is maintained.

3.2.6 The audit review of Property Maintenance- Corporate & Commercial Estates
resulted in a Level 2 ‘limited’ assurance rating being assigned. Further
information about agreed actions to improve the internal control environment are
recorded below.

3.2.7 Property Maintenance- Corporate & Commercial Estates actions included:

1) That the specification for the repairs and maintenance module for procurement
of a dedicated property management IT application, should include
requirements for sufficient tracking of repair jobs, job costing and pre /post
inspection/feedback, reporting/performance analysis.

2) Condition surveys to be implemented and maintained for corporate
property/assets.

3) That relevant supporting information for jobs be recorded — i.e. surveyor
comments, contractors’ quotations for work after inspection, agreement and any
variations. The separate record keeping procedure should be an interim
measure prior to the implementation of a property management IT application.

Printed on recycled paper Page 195



4) That feedback should be obtained for reactive repairs jobs carried out to
provide assurance that the works are in accordance with that specified. This
could be carried out on a sample basis by for example inspections being carried
out by property surveyors or feedback from building users (either by written
questionnaire or phone call). When a new property management IT application
is implemented, automated questionnaires to be sent or direct online access by
building users to request and capture feedback.

5) Due to limited segregation of duties between requesting works and processing
payments the Support Services Manager should periodically check a sample of
payments to the job requests to verify that the repair work is reasonable /
legitimate.

6) That the Engineering Services Framework Contract be renegotiated as a
priority.

7) The Term Service Contract — Maintenance of Fire & Security Installations be
retendered to comply with Contract Standing Orders.

It should be noted that management have formally agreed to implement all the
audit report recommendations by 30" March 2025.

3.2.8 Internal Audit Plan Work 2024/25 - In relation to the 2024/25 planned work the
following progress is to be noted —

Planned Audit Reviews - 7 core audit reviews are either at report stage or
‘Work-In Progress’.

Grant Certification Work — The bulk of the grant expenditure review and
certification is carried out during the month of April. 32 grant certification reviews
have been completed up to the end of August 2024. This generally relates to
external funding received from the West of England Combined Authority, with the
one exception being the Historic England’s grant allocation to the Midsomer
Norton High Street Heritage Action Zone.

Investigations, Whistleblowing & Unplanned Work — Internal Audit have
responded to two reports of ‘financial irregularity’ requiring advice/ investigation.
The first was related to salary payments being made to an individual who was
set up on the Council’s payroll system as a new starter and received salary
payments despite not actually starting their employment. The second case was
related to fraudulent claims for Early Years Entitlement from a child carer. In
addition to identifying the amount of the ‘overpayments’ and taking recovery
action, work was carried out to identify the internal control failures and to
implement actions to avoid a repeat.

3.2.11 For the first 5 months of 2024/25, there have not been any whistleblowing
cases reported to Internal Audit which have highlighted dangerous, illegal or
unethical activity by Council Officers or Members that required investigation.

3.2.12 Follow-Up Reviews - The Internal Audit team have carried out 4 Audit ‘Follow-
Up’ reviews to ensure sufficient action has been taken to manage the internal
control risks identified and reported. The ‘Follow-Ups are recorded in the table at
Appendix 2 — a simple RAG rating has been used to indicate Internal Audit’s
assessment as at the date of the ‘Follow-Up’ activity.

Printed on recycled paper Page 196



The Chief Audit Executive is confident that planned 2024/25 audit work will be
completed by the financial year end if the level of unplanned work remains low.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 There are no specific statutory considerations related to this report. Accounts &
Audit Regulations set out the expectations of provision of an Internal Audit
service. This is supported by S151 of the Local Government Act and CIFPA
Codes of Practice and the IIA professional standards for delivery of an adequate
Internal Audit Service.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 There are no direct resource implications relevant to this report.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 A proportionate risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has
been undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision-making risk
management guidance. Significant risks to the council arising from an ineffective
Internal Audit Service include lack of internal control, failures of governance and
weak risk management. Specific risks include supplementary External Audit Fees
and undetected fraud. Internal Audit assists the Council in identifying risks,
improvement areas and recommending good practice.

6.2 The Corporate Audit Committee has specific responsibility for ensuring the
Council’'s Risk Management and Financial Governance framework is robust and
effective.

7 EQUALITIES

7.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

8 CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 There are no direct climate change implications related to this report.

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 No other options to consider related to this report.

Printed on recycled paper Page 197



10 CONSULTATION

10.1 The Council's Section 151 Officer has had the opportunity to input to this report
and has cleared it for publication.

Contact person

Andy Cox (01225 477316)

Background
papers

Reports to Corporate Audit Committee — 1st May 2024 ‘Internal Audit Plan
2024/25’ and ‘Annual Report of the Chief Audit Executive 2023/24’.

Please contact the
alternative format

report author if you need to access this report in an

Printed on recycled paper

Page 198




Audit Reviews Position Statement (as at 30" August 2024) Appendix 1
Ref Topic Status Assurance| Recommendations
Level Made Agreed

B24-002|Learning Disabilities Pooled Budget - Governance WipP

B24-003|Financial Saving Plan - Monitoring & Delivery Review

B24-004|Community Sub Contracted Services - Governance (ICB Lead)

B24-005 DSG -Safety Valve - Programme Management (Mechanisms & Draft Report 4 3
Framework) (GT VFM)

B24-006|IT - IT Services Recovery Management WIP

B24-007|IT - Liquidlogic EYES - Data Integrity Audits

B24-008|IT - Penetration Testing - IT Healthcheck Remediation Plan

B24-009|IT - Public Website Security

B24-010|Car Parking - Emissions income charging WIP

B24-011|Supported Lodgings (Family Placement Team)

B24-012 WECtA Funding — Fashion Museum (Project Initiation / Resourcing &
Funding)

B24-013|Corporate Estate - Energy Management

B24-014|Debt Management - Corporate Policy (Development of new policy)

B24-015 Aeq.ul_Js Grouy:? - Fi.nancial G'overnance .(Client Simon Martin) Aequus
Decision Making links to Michael Hewitts framework

B24-016|Homes for Ukraine — LA Housing Fund Grant (Dept of LUHC)

B24-017|Creditor Payments - Supplier Set-Up & Duplicate Payments WIP

B24-018|Brokerage (Adults & Children)

B24-019|Corporate Parent - Child Protection Independent Reviewing Officers

B24-020|Car Parking - Park & Ride Contract

B24-021|Fleet Management - Workshop Activity / Trading

B24-022 Payroll (Variations - salary award / increment increases / mileage & WIP

expenses)

B24-023

Contract Management - Reporting clause waiver (loss of legal rights)

B24-024

Temporary Accommodation

B24-025

Risk Management - Decision Making -adequacy of report risk
management assessment

B24-026

WECA bidding - Regeneration Schemes programme management (linked
to B24-008 Fashion Museum)

Printed on recycled paper Page 199




Follow-Up Reviews Appendix 2

Audit Report Reported Summary of Follow-Up findings
Assurance Level

23-003B Workforce — 3 (Reasonable
Recruitment & Retention Assurance)

23-014B Care Leavers 3 (Reasonable x4 High Risk Recommendations — all
Assurance) have been substantially progressed,
however, there were key actions to be
completed.

x3 Medium Risk Recommendations — 2
have been fully implemented and 1 has
some remaining actions.

The management responses to
recommendations highlighted
resourcing and capacity issues of
providing PA support to care leavers.
The 1A response to this was that it was
important for management to record
the risks and actions within a service
risk register to ensure management
have on-going sight of the risk(s) and
progress on implementing actions.

The Director of Children’s Services and
Education/DCS advised that the service
risk register was to be updated with
regards to care leaver risks.

It was also noted through the
management response that
recruitment was underway to increase
capacity to provide additional support
to care leavers.

23-010B Planning 3 (Reasonable 3 of the 9 medium risk weakness

Enforcement Assurance) recommendations fully implemented, 3
were being implemented and 3 not
implemented.

Printed on recycled paper Page 200



23-025B Bankline - 4 (Substantial
Treasury Management Assurance)
Investment and ‘other

Council Payment’

Transactions

The Head of Service was asked to

monitor implementation of those
recommended actions still outstanding
through an email dated 14t August
2024.

Printed on recycled paper Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 202



Agenda ltem 13

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | Corporate Audit Committee

MEETING AGENDA
25t September 2024 ITEM

DATE: P NUMBER

TITLE: Risk Management — Update Report — Corporate Risk

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Corporate Risk Register

1 THEISSUE

1.1  This report provides an update on a specific area of the Council’s risk
management arrangements to assist in providing assurance to the Committee on
the system of risk management within the Council.

1.2 The Council’'s Corporate Audit Committee has responsibility within its terms of
reference for overseeing the risk management framework of the Council.

2 RECOMMENDATION

2.1  The Corporate Audit Committee is asked to:
Note the report.

3 THE REPORT

3.1 The Corporate Audit Committee has responsibility for overseeing the risk
management framework within the Council. This does not mean accountability or
responsibility for the risks which clearly sit with the respective Service area but the
Committee does have a role in providing assurance that a system is in place and
working.

3.2 Atits february meeting the Committee received a detailed report on the Council’s
risk management arrangements, its corporate risk register and a presentation on
roles and responsibilities in the Council’s governance framework.

3.3 Itwas agreed that continued overview of risk management arrangements would
include reviews of specific themes as well as corporate risks and the proposed
forward look is set out as follows —

A) February 2024 — Overview of Corporate arrangements and Corporate Risk
B) May 2024 — Fraud Risk

C) September 2024 — Corporate Risk

Printed on recycled paper Page 203



D) November 2025 — Cyber Risk
E) February 2025 — Procurement Risk

F) May 2025 — Corporate Risk

Context — Risk Management Framework

3.4 Our strategy to manage risk recognises that both taking and accepting more risk is
part of modern service delivery. However in accepting more risk we will do this in
both a transparent and informed way to achieve the best results for citizens and
customers.

3.5 Therefore we want to promote an approach that focusses on the effective
identification and management of risks to ensure the council is focussed on
minimising adverse impacts and maximising benefits within the delivery of its
objectives throughout all of its services.

3.6 Active risk management is an integral component of our local code of corporate
governance which is designed to help us achieve our aspirations, priorities and
outcomes to deliver the Council’s Vision. This strategy therefore expects that we
focus on taking the right actions to address risks and opportunities both in a
transparent way and based on evidence.

P F 4

\-_\ Vision &

'.\ Ambitions - ~
> ‘/'_*I
- l/’
N |
j\ - - / -
[ Good I PN .
/I. Governance ! k S~ " ’,7
& . > N
\‘/’/\\ r_//““” / N\
Ao T— Delivery of Priorities —
! ]
\/\ \\

3.7 The framework is therefore designed to support Officers and Members in delivering
on the Council’s plans and operational objectives.

3.8 Risk Management forms the second line in the ‘Three Lines of Defence Model’
protecting our organisation.

3.9 We do this in a sensible and proportionate way to actively manage risks down the
risk matrix in terms of their potential impact on the organisation.

Printed on recycled paper Page 204



Senior Management

1

Governing Body/Board/Audit Committee

1

1st Line of Defense 2nd Line of Defense

Internal

Management
Control

Controls

—
Measures Audit

1

3rd Line of Defense

upny [euiaxy
JojejnBay

LIKELIHOOD

Unlikely

Almost

Possible Certain

Catastrophic

Major

Moderate

IMPACT

Minor

Negligible

Corporate Risk Register (CRR) (Appendix 1)

3.10 Allrisk registers are dynamic documents, currently the CRR contains 28 risks
which are owned by the Corporate Management Team and 10 risks in watching brief
mode. Corporate Management Team review the register formally on a quarterly
basis. The CRR identifies themes, service area/ director/ officer leads and describes
the risks and commentary around actions, status and mitigation. This allows regular
review of the changing landscape in local government and ability to provide co-
ordinated responses to major threats.

3.11 The inherent, residual and risk change are also captured along with an
assessment of risk appetite and risk tolerance and structured around the following

themes detailed in Appendix 1:

Regional Partnership Working

Resource & Budget Management

Climate Change

Transformation

Printed on recycled paper

Page 205




Housing Cyber Risk Management
Infrastructure Financial Planning

Climate Emergency Capital Programme

Transport Safety Valve — DSG Management
Safeguarding Health and Safety

Childrens Services Transformation Health & Social Care Joint Working
Social Care — Various Emergency Management

Public Health & Pandemic Planning Social Care - Deprivation of Liberty
Corporate Governance Avon Pension Fund

3.12 The watching brief element of the register includes outlines risks for —
a) Public Transport
b) Project Delivery
c) Commercial Income
d) Homelessness
e) Customer Standards & Customer Contact
f) Capital Programme Financial Risks
g) CRSTS Delivery
h) Cost of Living/Inflationary Pressures
i) Funding Risks for core services

j) Emergency Management

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The council has statutory duties to plan and prepare for emergencies under the
provisions of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 This is an information and update report so there are no direct implications arising
from this report.

Printed on recycled paper Page 206



6 RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1  No decision or recommendation is being made and this report details the council’s

approach to risk management. As a result, there are therefore no new significant
risks to consider in relation to this report.

7 EQUALITIES

7.1 An equalities impact assessment has been considered using corporate guidelines
and no significant issues have been identified.

8 CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 There are no direct climate change implications related to this report. In terms of
risk management, risks associated with the Council’s roles in respect of climate
change are captured at different levels, including in the CRR and other risk
registers.

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 Thisis an update report to aid assurance, no decisions or recommendations are
being proposed so no other options are being considered.

10 CONSULTATION

10.1 The report is an information and update report and has been consulted with the
Council’'s S151 Officer.

Contact person Jeff Wring — Director — Financial Services, Assurance &
Pensions

Background

papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Printed on recycled paper Page 207




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 208



60¢ abed

B&NES Corporate Risk Register

Corporate Management Team

| Q2 2024/25

Mitigations &

Action Plans

Residual Risk - Post Action

Risk Management Approach & Assessment

Inherent Risk - Pre Action

Service [Risk Description

Area

Director Lead

Officer Lead

Commentary on Current Status of Action Plans

Current Status

Likelihood

Impact

This
Period

Risk Appetite

Risk Tolerance

Risk Change

Sustsnable
Communite|

Climate Emergency (Adaption & Resilience) - Risk that the Council does not adapt its own operations
to reduce the impacts of Climate Change and make them more resilient for the community to meet the
challenges ahead.

hie
Broadfield

Climate Emergency Strategy and Action Plan reported on to full Council. This highlighted the many areas of progress

significant long-term work to complete as this risk remains both significant and highly complex.

Potentially Off-Target

Open

Moderate

No Change

Chidrans

Childrens - Risk that the Council is unable to manage the budget deficit for the dedicated schools grant
with the Department for Education, impacting on future education spending

Mandy Bishop/
Chris Wilford

[The Council has delivered a revised DSG safety valy to the DFE. This new deliveredina
timescale agreed with the DFE (submitted May 24). To refine the new plan we have:

eworked within the ofa I review of our plan, including scrutinty of all lines of
growth and spend

*Appointed a dedicated programme manager for the SV plan and external financial support.

*Appointed a new Team of Staff to deliver a SEND and AP advice service to demand manage request for EHCP's,
operational from 1.9.24, as well provided additional revenue to appoint SV staff into the SEND team.

a capital toinclude - 4 New Resource bases, 2 Free Schools, AP & SEND 1
Residential School. The LA is also building a 16-25 residential facility at a SEND Further Education (FE) college facility.
The LA is providing additional capital investment and land as part of its commitment to SEND in our local area and to

Resources

Statutory Compliance - Risk that the Council is unable to deliver on its duties as a landlord managing
complex compliance risks around fire and building safety to its users and tenants from its major
Corporate & Commercial Estate holdings

Simon Martin/
Andy Rothery

Potentially Off-Target

Regular reports provided into Property Board and H&S Steering Group. Compliance Manager appointed and

f compliance works o estate assets, ZetaSafe system implemented with clear audit tail on
evidence and action. Early dashboard content beis d. Service ion work for

by end of Y. Centralisation of budgets and resources will further improve assurance. . Immediaite void property risks
are being addressed via programme management and longer term via the Asset Plan and asset challenge Framework.

Potentially Off-Target

Chidrens &

Hesth

- Risk that we do not fulfil our statutory duties to safeguard Children & Vulnerable
Adults

Pannershlp Working - Risk that we do not maximise the opportunities to retain an influential role in

he gion through effective ip working and issioning with our Health Partners in
the Integrated Care Board (including the BCF & Pooled arrangements) across Public Health, Children's
and Adult Social Care

Mary Kearney-
Knowles

The service has worked hard to deliver safe and effective services. The service has experienced significant increase in
demand - 500 more contacts than in previous 12 months, increased complexity and increased LAC/Care Leavers, of
which a significant % are UASC. The service continues to experience recruitment and retention challenges, notably in
the Safeguarding Outcomes part of the service: this has required the use of agency staff to meet statutuory

d deliver timely i

On Target

Mandy Bishop/
Suzanne
Westhead/ Mary
Kearney-
Knowles/ Becky
Reynolds

The inherent isks vary across teams. Senlor Officers are embedded in nnm local ICA arrangements and broader BSW
system arrangements. There are a number of es financial 3
envelope and that are yet to be resolved (2024). The risks to the council continue

we i ion of jith increased pressure on 2024/2025 budget. As a
direct result of savings not being realised for LD pooled budget this has resulted on pressure of ASC reserve. Joint

gy and policy ingwell. 75 reviewed as part of the ICB Co-ordinating commissioner for B&NES
HCRG Care Group new for 2024/25. There is a risk register in place for the 24/25 new contract
arrangement for ICB led joint contract for HCRG Care Group for Wilt and B&NES. There remains the need to ensure
system alignment given the complixit of BSW system. The annual Better Care Fund (BCF) report has been olntly
developed between ICB and B&NES integrated i ith g &SLTprior,
o submission at February 2024 Health and Wellbeing Board. Integ ity Based for April
2025 - SW and BR remain the B: ives at the board. Single Member Decision 9th Sept
for delegated authority to DASS & Lead Member to agree contract for ICBC April 2025 following competitve

ted by ICB, i g for 7 year contract term and DASS authority to be representative on the
Collaborative Oversight Forum as required in foning Agreement - this is the
cabinet forward plan. ICB contract award decision to be taken 19th Sept. Risk Register in place for ICBC programme

tract award as of April 2025. B tive and engaged with regional and national networks to work
effectively across ASC, CSC and PH sector through LGA, ADASS and ADPH. Significant impact of change across system

and within ICB and B&NES taken i ion for for y ag
can be resourced and may result iority activity being stowed down i.e and
articulation of the risk this poses to CQC inspection ion. The BENES i issioning review and staff

o revie issioni for B&NES. i i onlLD

ple) with fi it meetings with S151 officer and planned audit for Q2 2024/25.

PH servi ing, risk register in place, ties into ICB of community
services.

Potentially Off-Target

Cautious

Moderate

No Change

No Change

No Change

No Change




0Tz abed

Charens

Childrens - Risk that we do not transform Children's Services to deliver an effective service, manage
the market demands and demographic changes on the cost of childrens social care within available
resources

Mary Kearney-
Knowles

Th childrns s ducation sarvces continue o exparisnce scalaing damand (ocked aftar ildran, SEND/EHCPs).
Early help are bscribed, the hboard has a of ‘red’ ised KPIs
and the net overspend continues to rise despite a further £1m of in year saving mitigations being identified. Turnover
in experienced social workers in Q2 continues toescaate.  Mitigations include family reunifications,new early help

Conferences, review of senior social worker pay packages for safeguarding
outcomes teams and a targeted recruitment campaign. The Children's Transformation Programme continues to plan
for delivery of savings and service remodeling. The service has transformed the fostering offer - adopted a banding
model for fostering rates, created a stand alone fostering website, appointed to a marketing post and introduced the
fostering families offer. We have an ongoing focus on foster care recrutiment as the demand for placements outweighs
our in house abailablity /UASC demands. Family /Connected Carers is the placement of choice when children cannot
be in thier birth family. is now embedded and However, the cost of care has also increased:
e are engaged around a new framework agreement for post 16 provision 01/04/2023 and providers are indicating
that they will seek significant increase in placement costs due to costs of living and inflation. UASC care leavers with
no recourse to public funds is addying to our financial challenges.We are working with housing colleagues/third sector
to increase sufficieny. Finally an external review from EY has been commissioned to provide additional assurance and
potential ities to further imp ion activity.

Potentially Off-Target

Financial Control - Risk that we do not manage budgets effectively in-year by not identifying and
mitigating financial pressures.

Andy Rothery/
Gary Adams

Early forecasts for 2024/25 have identified a c£4m over budget position, the finanacial risks are service specific in the
following areas: Corporate Estate, Children's Services, Adult Social Care and Waste. The Cabinet Member for Resources
and 5151 Officer are seeking assurance from Directors and Portfolio holders that budget issues are understood and
managed ith mitigations to avoid a recurring budget pressure. If this position has
not improved by Q2 this risk will need escalating with management options to be agred by the Exective Leadership
Team in consulation with the Cabinet.

Potentially Off-Target

Adutsocil
e

vxlal Care - Risk that we are unable to manage the MCA/DoLS/community DolLS backlog including
Il indivi per the and Cheshire O

from and their

decision.

Suzanne
Westhead

There is a signifi iting list for Dols
monitoring processes of backlog

in B&NES. Mitigation plan through effective review and

itise. We i try and attract BIAs h our not
competitve with other SW authorities. We have commissioned Action First o provide additional BIA agency sessions,
this has reduced the backlog from 600 to 537 in a 3 month period. However, the risk to individuals and the population
remains high. A DoLs Backlogremains high s iscase nationaly ollowingthe Cheshire westjudgement. We are
following the national ADASS protocol to screen and priori ion of liberty

to support the of people o have their Artcle 5 Human Rights upheld tis is

through the high satistacti 3 inues to be a ional risk for LA's as

well as financial and

on ings for DoLs of any

Potentially Off-Target

No Change

No Change

Sustsnable

Housing - Risk that we do not deliver sustainable solutions to the housing needs for the wider

Communities| COMMUnNity as detailed in the Council’s development plan and meet our targets for housing, including

and social housing, informed by higher Government expectations following the election.

Sophie
Broadfield,
Simon Martin

Following the election, the Government is consulting on changes to the National Planning Policy Framework that
[would sgnificantlyincresse the housing targe for the Bath and North East Somerset area. The Councll wil respondto

and recognises the in the reforms (a greater range of powers to local govenrment to
deliver affordable and social housing) as well as the challenges. The West of England Combined Authority will also
likely take on a regional planning role, though the scope of that is as yet unclear. As a consequence of the reforms, the
Local Plan will need to be reset - a new timeline for the production of a revised Local Plan is now under production.

[ Affordable housing has been identified as a key priority in the Corporate Strategy. To reduce the risk and mitigate
market failure on the supply of affordable homes, the Council is producing a Housing Delivery Plan for publication in
Quarter 2 2024/5. The Plan establishes the organisation's role alongside partners in direct delivery of more affordable
and social housine. Resource olanning is within the Budeet for both additional resource and canital.

Potentially Off-Target

Cautious

Improving

e

Partnership Working - Risk that we do not maximise the opportunities to retain an influential role in
*,|the sub-region through effective partnership working in the West of England area to deliver continued
economic growth, skills and funding through the WEP/LEP, Western Gateway & City Deal

Sophie
Broadfield

Following audit and SOLACE reviews and slower pected progress, the issued a Best Value
Notice to the West of England Combined Authority reqiring evidence of improvement. WECA have accelerated the
og! to take this work d an Panel will be ished to oversee
progress. WECA remains a critical partner to lead on major infrastructure improvements across the region so its
success or otherwise in delivering on its responsibilities s a significant risk to B&NES and its ambitions.

B&NES is also part of the Western Gateway and continnues to work closely with other LAs across the sub region and
region, particularly around economic recovery and renewal, which includes infrastructure, transport, skills, supporting
businesses and employment.

On Target

Cautious

No Change

Charens

Transport - a) Home to School Transport - Risk that due to escalating costs from contractors and a lack
of resilience in the market place we are unable to support delivery of services to vulnerable children;
Risk that re-procurement related to Passenger Transport for 2024 will increase financial pressures
for all transport related activity by highly significant amounts leading to service delivery failures

Chris Major/Chris|

Sector has been significantly impacted through Covid and with inflationary pressures that have led to ongoing impacts
in terms of availability of skilled drivers, costs associated with pay, fuel, insurance and other costs. In addition
increased demand through SEND etc has led to significant overspends in 2022/23 and 2023/24 of £1M+. Council
instigated a number of pieces of work to look at options to maximise route planning, key criteria around usage and
engagement with providers. Further risks exist in this area around a re-procurement of Transport in 2024/25 which
could 'bake-in' the inflati costs already i d could lead inued financial pressures. Again work
is underway assessing delivery options and external Transport specialists have reviewed the demand and supply side
efficiencies and costs and the internal financial growth requirements. Officers continue to work with our specialists to
identify opportunities to deliver cashable efficiencies around 4 key areas and to inform the MTFS.

Potentially Off-Target

No Change




TT¢ abed

Adut socsl

Social Care - Risk that we are not able to re-commission health and ASC services following the HCRG
insourcing — This involves managing service delivery risk in relation to the HCRG Care Group 1 year
Direct Award and new delivery model for ing and of ity health
services and community partners as of April 2025/26 to manage best outcomes for B&NES residents:

Suz
Westhead/ Claire
Thorogood

HCRG Care Group Contract - 1 year Direct Award dinated by ICB and Cont

issued and signed by all parties early April. Robust contract governance arrangements remain for 24/25 for CQPM FIG
and serivce level meeitngs. Head of ind Per at B&NES continues to oversee the
contract with AD and Lead Member 1year contract
performance. Governance forward plan has been agreed for assurance of B&NES funding liability of approx. £18m in
2024/25. Community Partners - DASS and AD the and

council funded ASC/housing services as of April 25. Saving Plan target of £401K 24/25 for ASC community parterns.
Director Public Health leading on new contracting and commissiong of PH services as of April 2025. Revised
governance arrangements commenced in March 2024 with the Strategic Board chaired by Mandy Blshop for

and Early Help. Progs 1 P: for 2
Public Health the gic board. 1risk register reviewed and updated in July 2024,

g Based April 2025 - SW remains the B&NES representative at the ICBC
Single Member Sept for delegated authority to DASS & Lead Member to agree contract

for ICBC April 2025 following competitve procurement led by ICB, best estimate funding for 7 year contract term and
DASS authority to be representative on the Collaborative Oversight Forum as required in the Collaborative
Commissioning Agreement - this is entered onto the cabinet forward plan. ICB contract award decision to be taken
19th Sept. Risk Register in place for ICBC programme contract award as of April 2025.

Ria

Adutsocil
e

Adults - Risk that our adult social care capacity, systems and governance are not working effectively
resulting in a low rating at first CQC inspection and poor outcomes for users and clients.

Suzanne
Westhead

Potentially Off-Target

Improving

B&NES notififed of CQC inspection on 15th April and submitted large evidence base against CQC information return
requirements on 3rd May. This included approx 180 pieces of evidence and a self assessment. All CQC milestone
dates have been achieved by deadline. This has incldued planning template 15th July and case tracking 22nd July.
B&NES notified on 8th July of CQC site visit week ing 9th Sept. plan and

plan ich is led by ASC d team. On 15th Aug the ASC
leadership team delivered to CQCa ion following pe outlined by CQC and this sessi ttended
by CX, COO and Head of Corp ice as well as Director Public Health and Head of Housing. The
logictics planning meeti 20th Augto determine the timetable for i during site visit.

KCC will provide the base for the inspection with estate and facilities supporting ASC for room avilability and bookings
as well as HSW formal induction to the inspector team. Welcome pack and site visit to be co-ordinated by ASC for staff
as well as external partners. Lead Member is updated on CQC progress monthly as well as a monthly briefing pack.
External partners and democratic leadershp have recieved a briefing and ASC staff are updated weekly at Staff Huddle.
The DASS is booked to receive CQC high level feedback on 20th Sept. ASC received the timetable from CQC on 28th Aug|
and will now confirm those for interivew and respond to CQC by 4th Sept.

On Target

Mansgement]

Emergency Management - ) Risk that we do not have the right plans in place or effective overall
response to a major incident or emergency within our Community, i.e. Flooding, Fire, Security incident
to ensure that services continue to operate and the community is safe. b) Risk that the number of
severe weather events, due to climate change, are increasing in frequency due to climate change and
this will result in signficant additional resources to be identifed to deal with the issues that arise.
Failure to provide resources could result in legal, financial and reputational impacts.

Mandy Bishop,
Chris Major

2) As with the risk relating to a Pandemic above, the Emergency Management function must consider a whole range of
potential risks that could direclty impact and affect our local communities. Whilst many incidents are outside of our
control our key risk remains our ability to co-ordinate and work effectively across the organisation to manage and
recover from incidents when they occur. Plans exist for all major incidents but these will need constant exercising to
ensure the corporate body, our partners and volunteers is able to respond in the right way when any situation occurs.
This will need increased exercising and greater assessment of key skills needed to meet the types of emergency
incidents we may face. b) Flood Response Plan and Action Plan updated following New Year flooding (4/5 Jan). We
will continue to review all Emergency Planning processes and plans to ensure they are adequate and relevant on a
rolling basis. We will conduct regular exercises to test our response to events and encourage all relevant staff to
attend. We have increased resilience by adding the role of Tactical Lead to the Director on Call resources, along with a
pool of volunteers, to ensure that we can undertake necessary actions during events.

On Target

No Change

Social Care - Risk that following the ASC transfer 1st April of services from HCRG we are unable to
manage delivery risks within the current budget envelope until satisfied they are within normal BAU
tolerances. The primary financial risk relates to ASC transfer of services along with a secondary
corporate risk that we are unable to provide adequate support for service delivery

Suzanne
Westhead

[ASC services transferred safely from HCRG Care Group on 1t April 2024 with a workforce of 237 across the ransferred
services. Monthly ASC assurance meeting will remain in lace o a period of 6 months post ransfer (same as previous

1 y meeting) to of of transfer and oversight of service review and
redesign to implement new Target Operating Model. i to CMTin May TOMand
finance modelling of the new structure to mitigate transferred budget pressure. June 2024 reports to scrutiny and
cabinet on ASC transfer project evaluation and lessons learnt. ASC transfer evaluation reported at July Corporate Risk

p. Inyear budget recovery for LD d Adult Social Care D Operations at

hly ASC fi ing. Aug ASC Redesign & LD Services - RAG rated red. irst phase staffing
restrucutre is paused due to BoB & work will conti bilise th however

the staffing budget due to vacancies. LD Services HR Business Partner is supporting AS to review budget Vs cost of
running the service post transfer. Period of time needed to take stock which will inform next steps to reshape activity
and potentially review staffing.

Potentially Off-Target

No Change

K

Sustsinable

Climate Emergency (Reducing Emissions) - Risk that the Council does not meet its 2030 net zero

* |ambitions by not actively planning for its operations to reduce emmissions and provide an adequate

community leaders|

Sophie
Broadfield

Climate Emergency Strategy and Action Plan reported on to full Council. This highlighted the many areas of progress
and roadmap towards our 2030 targets. Meeting these targets or even exceeding them remains achievable but is
directly linked to the level of investment and funding to achieve this challenging targets. Methods continue to be
established to measure progress and performance in overall emissions. Additional work required to identify progress
indicators across areas — will allow us to monitor progress more quickly. Climate and nature impacts embedded into
corporate strategy decision tool. Budget decisions will need to use the decision tool to prioritise efforts to reduce
emissions and support officers in embedding this priority across our wider governance structure. Annual Climate
Report due to be presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny in Summer 2024.

On Target

Open

Moderate

Pl
Management]

Infrastructure - Risk that we do not plan for and manage investment in our infrastructure at a local and
regional level to meet the infrastructure needs in our community through our Capital Programme &
other Grant Funded Schemes (WECA) - i.e. Housing, Transport, Structures, Economic Development

Simon
Martin/Chris
Major

An updated Infrastructure Plan is being produced alongside the new Local Plan to capture the district's infrastructure
requirements to cope with new growth. Council Delivery plans for transport, housing, climate & nature are in
preparation (Housing and transport for completion in Spring) to set captal prioitis. Existing highway infrastructure

been maintained to deliver ‘steady state’ for the last 2 years. Improvements to capacity, capability and
council staffing structure are being following Prog: &Project maturity audits
in WECA and B&NES Council.

On Target

Cautious

No Change




212 abed

Management|

Asset Management - Risk that our Asset Management Plans do not deliver sufficient resource to
ongoing maintenance of key Corporate & Commercial Estate assets which could lead to significant
transport, health and community impacts

Simon Martin,
Mandy Bishop,
Chris Major

Maintenance Plans are in place for all Strategic Assets however they are often of a very short nature and in some cases
it is difficult and complex to compile long term plans (or views) for mitigation of potentially

Vaults. Effects of severe weather, i.e. heavy rain has seen certain buildings continue to cause concern (Bath Library)
and therefore impacts of structural failure could be highly significant on many fronts and therefore this risk remains
high. Further updates provided through the Capital Strategy Group. Vacancies in key posts, such as structures, have
been hard to fill and remain vacant, which results in reliance in external consultants to keep our programme of work
on track. Developed the asset management plan and using technology to identify and prioritise investment. This needs
to include structures, lighting and signals. Cross Directorate working groups in place to manage issues where necessary
such as Pulteney Bridge. Failure in the vaults (private and publicly owned) within the city may result in Utility damage
and road closure / evacuation causing delay and distruption on the network. Need to progress further inspections and
remedial lus orivate vaults will remain a risk. Funding identified in CRSTS but this only.

Potentially Off-Target

No Change

Resources

Financial Planning - Risk that we are unable to set a medium term financial plan demonstrating that
we can operate within the available funding envelope, and satisfy 525 of the Local Government Act.

Andy Rothery/
Gary Adams

The latest spendi and local ttlement along with the council's transformation and savings plans
provided the council with a robust balanced budget for 2024/25 after extensive work over the previous 6-9 months.
However significant risks and pressures remain through increased demand, inflation and other wider economic
uncertainty. As a result of the impacts on future years extensive budget modelling for 24/25 and beyond was
undertaken to assess budget gaps and match investment with priorities. This included budget workshops to assess
initial options and from EY were i to assess the rob and
further targeted work which was necessary. This work continues into 2024/25 to support further budget work.

On Target

No Change

Cyber/Information Technology - Risk that despite protecting the Council's systems and essential data
from Cyber attacks, malicious attempts to damage critical services within the Council could be
disruptive.

Andy Rothery,
Liam Abbott

Update 20th August 2024: Significant Cyber improvements have been made over the last 2 years as part of a 2 year
cyber roadmap. Some of the improvements include;

1) 24/7 Cyber security monitoring by external 3rd party from 1st April 2024 onwards.

2) Cloud migration of IT systems to Microsoft Azure offering much better Cyber protection. This will be completed by
December 2024

3) Security Event (SIEM) solution llates all security logs for analysis.
4) Cyber training for all staff is now mandatory and is part of the new Learning Management Solution.

5) Phishing testing is being carried out at regular intervals to improve staffs knowledge of phishing.

6) PSN certification completed in March 2024 with complete assurance.

On Target

Cautious

Improving

Organisational Development - Risk that we do not effectively manage the Being Our BEST change
programme to deliver its benefits, i.e. great jobs, smarter structures, culture of excellence

Cherry Bennett

This s underway. team fully d montioring underway. Great jobs
workstream is progressing well although role profile matching took longer than planned. Collective bargaining on new
pay and grading ith TUs began . Risk of failure to agree new structure being
monitoried. ACAS involvement a possibilty if agreement not reached. Restructure of Tiers 2,3,4 concluded June 2024.
Potential risk to staff from both - given the length of time of the
programme.

On Target

Open

No Change

Public Health - Risk that we do not both plan and prepare effectively with our partners for the impacts
f a pandemic or significant public health emergency both on our community and for continued

delivery of essential services.

Mandy Bishop,
Becky Reynolds

Whilst COVID has effectively passed as a national pandemic ongoing review and future planning remains a high risk
activity. The national COVID inquiry has commenced and witnesses are already being called along with high numbers
of requests from organisations - including ourselves - and all current requests have been met. The learning from the
inquiry will clearly directly influence how we plan, prepare and manage the impacts of any future pandemic and clearly
plans exist for any such fi ridng in cl rdination with th Localised infectious
disease outbreaks are picked up through UKHSA SW and managed jointly with the council, ICB, and the provider
concerned. LRF involved in pandemic preparadness and response

On Target

No Change

Pensions & Financial Stability - Risk that we do not carry out our statutory duties in relation to the
administration and governance of the Avon Pension Fund leading to significant financial risk for
employers & the administering authority (B&NES) - (Fund is a top 10 Fund in LGPS with a value in
excess of £5.5BN)

Jeff Wring/ Nick

Workforce Development - Risk that we are unable to recruit and retain approriate levels of skilled staff|
to ensure delivery of services to the public and prevent reduced performance and impacts on service
delivery

Cherry Bennett,
Jo Griffin

B&NES has establised a Pensions Committee, Investment Panel, Pensions Board and entered pooling with Brunel

funding at 98%) Investment Strategy has also been approved in April 2023 and key activity currently revolves around
risk trategie: i and significant ing to increase the ies of
contributing to the 2030 net zero targets. This continues to attract continued scrutiny from employers within the Fund
and put pressure on governance mechanisms and remains the most significant risk to the viability of the Fund in the
short and long-term (Cash Flow etc). A revised risk management strategy has been endorsed with Investment Panel
during Q2 and i and member i d our Net Zero targets have commenced
in Q2 and completed in Q3 with a review by Pensions Committee at its December 2023 meeting which accelerated Net
Zero Targets and i iendly Latest activif sgnificant our new
Local Impact Portfolio which should benefit not just the fund but also our Climate and Housing goals with £50M
already allocated to Solar Energy and a further £50M to be invested in affordable housing.
TS 1S DOTN @ COTPOTate WIGE and Service

Climate f

On Target

Improving

PECIC SET OF FISKS GIECINg Many SErvices ana 5 yKea o e
Korn Ferry work. Data at a corporate level indicates low turnover and vacancy rates and the situation was discussed in
depth at a recent CMIT performance surgery. There remains pockets of issues within services on key roles with
difficulty recruiting and lack of candidates in many areas - including care workers, waste operatives, social
workers,engineers exacerbated by low supply of agency workers. Work continues as part of a wider programme to
improve our employee offer with direct support from recruitment BP and HR BPs. Lots of targeted work both achieved,
in-play and planned around recruitment fairs, campaigns, different uses of social media. A new Applicant Tracking
System went live on 2 April 2024 alongside new streamlined processes and a new careers website is under

On Target

Resources

Health, Safety & Wellbeing - Risk that we are unable to adequately safeguard the Health, Safety and
Welfare of our staff. (Including Mental Health)

Cherry Bennett,
Tracy Curtis

H&S Steering Group give assurance on oversight and oversight remains strong. H&S Annual report prepared along with
new set of performance indicators and good levels of reporting from our key risk areas. HSWB team carrying 2
vacancies (BP and wellbeing post), Manager compliance reviews undertaken and action plans produced, RAs in place
and overseen by corporate steering group. MHFAs and Health Champions across organisation, Stress Toolkit
developed alongside RAs and training for managers and individuals. Absence rates and OH referrals monitored and
full reporting in place across Property, Place and People.

On Target

No Change

No Change




Capital Programme - Risk that there is insufficient capacity to resource and deliver the Capital

#17 | neources | Programme, specifically in relation to Transport and Corporate activity. This specifically impacts on Simon Martin
delivery of our Corporate Strategy and priorities.
for capital P of busi d project
initiation decisi of initial busi
Diversify delivery models to utilise a hmader supply chan (partne/ provider modsl particularyfor arger programmes
of linked activity (CRSTS and Housing). B!
of resources through a hub and spoke operating model.
Refreshed cmporm Strategy agreed by Council in July 2023 using the same pillars as the previous strategy with
updated targets and objectives. Signficant actitivy to assessal servlce plans and internal priorities against manifesto
identify for This will feed into an
n for ported to Cabinet during the year, progress continues to
be positive with npdaled s!rateglc indicators forquarterly reporting agreed by the Cabinet following scrutiny by the
ot | neowes | COTPOYate Strategy & Performance - Risk that the organisation does not set out a clear plan of its Andy Rothery, Corporate Panel.
priorities and desired outcomes and manage and report on delivery of these to its stakeholders Andy Thomas
Constitutional refresh completed through a Member working group, LGA Training offered and carried out. Following
elections new roles all now sllocated and new administration and committee'sset-up and n full operation with
Corporate Governance - Risk that the Council's reputation is severely damaged or subject to legal Andy Rothery, support and training ficers. All meeti h no decision making issues.
725 | neourcs | challenge arising from a failure in Corporate Governance, i.e. inabilty to make essential decisions or | Michael Hewitt, Previously concers raised with regard to decision making at WECA which is relevant to Risk 3 above but there are no
Jeff Wring significant concerns internally with our own processes. Major new improvement programme about to start on

€Tz abed

failure to engage key stakeholders in key decisions or changes to service delivery

Financial Governance (Financial Systems) which will include review and refresh of Financial Regulations and Contract
Standing Orders and associated governance procedures.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 214



Agenda ltem 14

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | Corporate Audit Committee

MEETING AGENDA
25" September 2024 ITEM

DATE: P NUMBER

TITLE: Audit Committee — Draft Workplan

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Draft Workplan 2024/25

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The draft workplan for the Committee is attached at Appendix 1 for comment.

2 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 The Corporate Audit Committee is asked to —

Note the 2024/25 workplan for the Committee subject to any proposed
amendments.

3 THE REPORT
3.1 The workplan for the Committee ensures that the terms of reference for the
Committee are appropriately delivered. Appendix 1 details the current workplan

which is kept under ongoing review and the Committee is asked to note this, subject
to any comments or proposed amendments.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 There are no specific statutory considerations related to this report.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 This is an information report so there are no direct implications arising from this
report.

Printed on recycled paper Page 215 1



6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 There are no new significant risks or issues to report to the Committee as a result

of this report.

7. EQUALITIES

7.1 An equalities impact assessment has been considered using corporate guidelines
and no significant issues have been identified.

8. CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 There are no direct climate change implications related to this report.

9. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 This is an update report, no decisions or recommendations are being proposed so
no other options are being considered.

10 CONSULTATION

10.1 Consultation has been carried out with the Section 151 Finance Officer.

Contact person

Jeff Wring, Director — One West (01225 477323)

Background
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 216




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Improving People’s Lives

Appendix 1 - CORPORATE AUDIT COMMITTEE WORKPLAN - 2024/25

Date of Report title Requirement & Purpose (TOR)

meeting

1st May External Audit Plan for Council - | To Approve — Oversight of work of External Auditor
2024 Y/E 2023/24

External Audit Plan for Avon
Pension Fund — Y/E 2023/24

Internal Audit Annual Report —
Y/E 2023/24

Internal Audit Annual Plan — Y/E
2024/25

Risk Management Update
Report — Fraud Risk

Annual Governance Statement
& Local Code of Corporate
Governance — Update Report

To Approve — Oversight of work of External Auditor

To Note — Oversight of work of Internal Audit

To Approve — Oversight of work of Internal Audit

To Note — Oversight of Risk Management
Arrangements

To Note & Endorse — Oversight of Corporate
Governance Arrangements

@

B
(@)
:
=

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

Bath and North East Somerset —
The piace 1o live, work and visit




25th

External Audit — Update Report

To Note — Oversight of work of External Audit

September | & Avon Pension Fund Audit
2024 Findings Report
Y/E 2023/24 External Audit To Note — Oversight of work of External Audit
Annual Report (Including VFM
Assessment Report)
Audit Committee Annual Report
& Review of Effectiveness To Approve & Recommend to Council — Report
2022/23 back to Council on delegation of responsibility
Treasury Management Qutturn To Note — Oversight of Treasury Management
Report — Y/E/ 2023/24 (Financial Governance)
Internal Audit Update Report - To Note — Oversight of work of Internal Audit
2023/24 To Note — Oversight of Risk Management
Risk Management Update Arrangements
Report — Corporate Risk
27t Annual Accounts 2023/24 — To Note — Oversight of Financial Governance
November | Informal Briefing
2024 To Approve Accounts — Approve Accounts on

Y/E 2023/24 External Audit
Findings & Accounts & Annual
Governance Statement
Approval

ADL Accounts Y/E 2023/24 -
Accounts Update

Treasury Management 6 month
update - 2023/24

Risk Management Update
Report — Cyber Risk

behalf of Council

To Note — Oversight of work of External Audit

To Note — Financial Oversight of Council
Owned Companies

To Note — Oversight of Treasury Management
(Financial Governance)

To Note — Oversight of Risk Management
Arrangements

5t February
2025

Treasury Management Strategy
- 2025/26 Consultation

Internal Audit Plan - 2025/26
Consultation

To Recommend to Council/Cabinet — Oversight
of Treasury Management (Financial
Governance)

To Note — Oversight of work of Internal Audit

Page 218




Risk Management Update
Report — Procurement Risk

To Note — Oversight of Risk Management
arrangements

30t April
2025

External Audit Plan for Council
& Avon Pension Fund - Y/E
2024/25

Internal Audit Annual Report —
Y/E 2024/25

Internal Audit Plan Annual Plan
— Y/E 2025/26

Risk Management Update
Report — Fraud Risk

To Approve — Oversight of work of External
Audit

To Note — Oversight of work of Internal Audit

To Approve — Oversight of work of Internal
Audit

To Note — Oversight of Risk Management
arrangements

Page 219




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 220



	Agenda
	7 MINUTES - 1ST MAY 2024
	8 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 2024
	08 Review of Effectiveness Appendix 1
	08 Review of Effectiveness Appendix 2
	08 Review of Effectiveness Appendix 3
	08 Review of Effectiveness Appendix 4

	9 ANNUAL REPORT - APRIL 2023 - MAY 2024
	09 Annual Report Appendix 1

	10 EXTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE
	10 External Audit Update Appendix 1
	Slide 1: Bath and North East Somerset Council
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Progress at September 2024
	Slide 5: Progress against Significant risks
	Slide 6: Progress against Significant risks
	Slide 7: Progress against Significant risks
	Slide 8: Progress against Significant risks
	Slide 9: Progress against other areas
	Slide 10: Progress at September 2024 (cont.)  
	Slide 11: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 12: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 13: Ending the local audit backlog
	Slide 14: Lessons from recent Auditors’ Annual Reports
	Slide 15: Learning from the new unitary councils
	Slide 16: Code of practice on good governance
	Slide 17: Internal Audit - supporting a healthy service
	Slide 18: Annual review of local government complaints
	Slide 19: Homelessness and housing targets 
	Slide 20: New approaches needed to key educational issues
	Slide 21: Demand management for social care
	Slide 22: The social landlord role – what can councils do better? 
	Slide 23: Devolution
	Slide 24: Audit Committee resources
	Slide 25

	10 External Audit Update Appendix 2
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings (ISA260) Report for Avon Pension Fund
	Slide 2: Dear Corporate Audit Committee
	Slide 3
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines
	Slide 6: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements: new issues and risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements - key judgements and estimates
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: Digital Audit
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: matters discussed with management
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 20: 3. Independence considerations
	Slide 21: 3. Independence considerations
	Slide 22: 3. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 23
	Slide 24: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 25: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 26: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 27: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 28: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 29: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 30: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 31: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 32: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 33: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 34: F. Management Letter of Representation  
	Slide 35: G. Audit opinion  
	Slide 36: H. Consistency opinion   
	Slide 37

	10 External Audit Update Appendix 3
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Executive summary
	Slide 6: Executive summary
	Slide 7: Executive summary
	Slide 8: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 9: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 10
	Slide 11: Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 12: Opinion on the Avon Pension Fund statements
	Slide 13: Use of auditor's powers
	Slide 14
	Slide 15: The current local government landscape  It is within this context that we set out our commentary on the Council’s value for money arrangements in 2023/24 and make recommendations where any significant weaknesses or improvement opportunities in a
	Slide 16: Financial sustainability 
	Slide 17: Financial sustainability (continued) 
	Slide 18: Financial sustainability (continued) 
	Slide 19: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 20: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 21: Governance 
	Slide 22: Governance (continued)
	Slide 23: Governance (continued)
	Slide 24: Governance (continued)
	Slide 25: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 26: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 27: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 28: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 29: VfM findings Avon Pension Fund
	Slide 30
	Slide 31: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 32: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 33: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 34: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 35: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 36
	Slide 37: Appendix A: Responsibilities of the Council
	Slide 38: Appendix B:  Value for Money Auditor responsibilities
	Slide 39: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 40: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 41: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 42: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 43: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 44


	11 TREASURY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT TO 31ST MARCH 2024
	12 INTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE REPORT (PLANNED WORK 2024/25)
	13 RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT - CORPORATE RISK
	13 Risk Management Appendix 1

	14 DRAFT WORKPLAN 2024 - 2025
	14 Draft Workplan 2024 - 2025 Appendix 1


	C7: Off
	C3: Off
	C4: Off
	C5: Off
	C6: Yes
	C12: Off
	C11: Off
	C10: Off
	C9: Off
	C8: Yes
	C17: Off
	C16: Off
	C15: Off
	C14: Off
	C13: Yes
	C22: Off
	C21: Off
	C20: Off
	C19: Yes
	C18: Off
	C27: Off
	C26: Off
	C25: Off
	C24: Yes
	C23: Off
	C32: Off
	C31: Off
	C30: Off
	C29: Off
	C28: Yes
	C37: Off
	C36: Off
	C35: Off
	C34: Off
	C33: Yes
	C47: Off
	C46: Off
	C45: Off
	C44: Yes
	C43: Off
	C52: Off
	C51: Off
	C50: Off
	C49: Yes
	C48: Off
	C57: Off
	C56: Off
	C55: Off
	C54: Off
	C53: Yes
	C125: Off
	C124: Off
	C123: Off
	C122: Off
	C121: Yes
	C130: Off
	C129: Off
	C128: Off
	C127: Yes
	C126: Off
	C135: Off
	C134: Off
	C133: Off
	C132: Off
	C131: Yes
	C140: Off
	C139: Off
	C138: Off
	C137: Off
	C136: Yes
	C145: Off
	C144: Off
	C143: Off
	C142: Off
	C141: Yes
	C150: Off
	C149: Off
	C148: Off
	C147: Off
	C146: Yes
	C155: Off
	C154: Off
	C153: Off
	C152: Off
	C151: Yes
	C160: Off
	C159: Off
	C158: Off
	C157: Off
	C156: Yes
	C165: Off
	C164: Off
	C163: Off
	C162: Off
	C161: Yes
	C170: Off
	C169: Off
	C168: Off
	C167: Yes
	C166: Off
	C175: Off
	C174: Yes
	C173: Off
	C172: Off
	C171: Off
	C120: Off
	C119: Off
	C118: Off
	C117: Off
	C116: Yes
	C62: Off
	C61: Off
	C60: Off
	C59: Off
	C58: Yes
	C67: Off
	C66: Off
	C65: Yes
	C64: Off
	C63: Off
	C72: Off
	C71: Off
	C70: Yes
	C69: Off
	C68: Off
	C77: Yes
	C76: Off
	C75: Off
	C74: Off
	C73: Off
	C82: Off
	C81: Off
	C80: Yes
	C79: Off
	C78: Off
	C87: Off
	C86: Off
	C85: Yes
	C84: Off
	C83: Off
	C92: Off
	C91: Off
	C90: Off
	C89: Off
	C88: Yes
	C97: Off
	C96: Off
	C95: Off
	C94: Off
	C93: Yes
	C102: Off
	C101: Off
	C100: Off
	C99: Yes
	C98: Off
	C107: Off
	C106: Off
	C105: Off
	C104: Off
	C103: Yes
	C1012: Off
	C1011: Off
	C1010: Off
	C109: Off
	C108: Yes
	C1015: Off
	C1014: Off
	C1013: Off
	C111: Off
	C110: Yes
	C1018: Off
	C1017: Off
	C1016: Off
	C113: Off
	C112: Yes
	C1021: Off
	C1020: Off
	C1019: Off
	C115: Off
	C114: Yes
	C1024: Off
	C1023: Off
	C1022: Off
	C187: Off
	C186: Yes
	C1027: Off
	C1026: Off
	C1025: Yes
	C189: Off
	C188: Off
	C1030: Off
	C1029: Off
	C1028: Yes
	C191: Off
	C190: Off
	C1033: Off
	C1032: Off
	C1031: Off
	C193: Off
	C192: Yes
	Text Field 13: 
	Text Field 14: 
	Text Field 15: 
	Text Field 16: 
	Text Field 17: 
	Text Field 12: 153


